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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 28th Annual Report on the Company’s business and operations, together with
audited financial statements and accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.
1.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
(` in Millions)
Consolidated
Particulars
Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Year ended

Year ended

Standalone
Year ended

Year ended

2017-18

2016-17

2017-18

2016-17

9,962.79

13,057.87

5,692.62

8,387.22

168.50

322.99

77.44

257.07

10,131.29

13,380.86

5,770.06

8,644.29

Direct Cost

4,719.56

8,180.58

2,670.91

5,860.97

Employee Benefit Expense

1,153.92

1,642.15

612.58

1,137.06

181.33

640.22

475.78

933.77

TOTAL INCOME

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

51.83

929.10

37.51

870.45

Other Expenses

2,032.76

1,674.59

969.67

857.56

TOTAL EXPENSES

8,139.40

13,066.64

4,766.45

9,659.81

-

541.68

(839.22)

613.43

1,991.89

(227.46)

1,842.83

(1,628.95)

Current Tax

47.96

87.40

-

3.73

Deferred Tax

1.83

71.06

-

-

1,942.10

(385.92)

1,842.83

(1,632.68)

Finance Cost

Less: Exceptional Item
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
Less: Tax Expenses

PROFIT/(LOSS) OF THE YEAR

 ote: The above figures are extracted from the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the
N
Company as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS).
	During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, your Company on a standalone basis had recorded Revenue from
Operations of ` 5,692.62 million as compared to ` 8,387.22 million recorded during the previous financial year ended
March 31, 2017. The Net Profit of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 stood at ` 1,842.83 million
as compared to Loss of ` 1,632.68 million for the financial year ended March 31, 2017.
	There are no material changes and commitments which have occurred between the end of the financial year ended on
March 31, 2018 to which these financial statements relate and the date of this report, which may affect the financial
position of the Company.
	During the financial year 2017-18, no significant or material orders were passed by any Regulator, Court or Tribunal
against the Company, which could impact its going concern status or operations.
	Further, the Company has a comprehensive framework for evaluating entity level controls. There are no elements of risk
which threatens the existence of the Company.
2.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:
Company Overview
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	In year 2017, India became the second largest smartphone market in the world, and with further reductions in
data costs, is poised to be one of the largest markets for online video consumption. Year 2017 saw the Media and
Entertainment industry in India firmly pivot its focus to digital, with multiple pieces of content being released first (or
only) online. Our Company is very optimistic about being able to further build and monetize its assets digitally. The
Company is committed to its integrated business model, and is focused on utilizing the internet in every business area.
This year also experienced the introduction of GST and the near complete digitization of TV distribution. The global
parent of our Company has re-organized its business areas to better focus on delivering content direct to consumers,
and our Company remains committed to the same endeavor.
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	Our global parent (The Walt Disney Company, USA) in December 2017 began a bid to acquire the assets of 21st Century
Fox, a process which is still underway. The proposed acquisition would help our Company to better create and deliver
content to the consumers.
Studios
	Marvel movies have become a mass pop-culture phenomenon in India, with Thor: Ragnarok and Black Panther achieving
unprecedented success at the box office. Black Panther continued the trend established by Doctor Strange, that a
Marvel film does not need established characters to succeed. Ticket sales continued to have a sizeable contribution
from dubbed language releases, confirming that Marvel has truly connected with viewers across the country. This large
fan-base helped push April 2018’s Avengers: Infinity War to the highest box office collection by a Hollywood movie ever
in India, breaking the earlier record held by The Jungle Book. This was soon followed by July’s release of Incredibles
2, which became the highest grossing animation movie of all time in India. These milestones justify the Company’s
decision to focus on the Hollywood slate.
Syndication business
	The demand for our content assets from third party platforms, both global and local and across various formats,
continues to be strong. Our Company has forged lucrative partnerships with leading players across both Satellite and
Digital, with the latter growing in prominence owing to the accelerated growth of online video viewership.
	Live Entertainment
	The Company continued its foray into the Live Entertainment business by entering into a licensing arrangement with
a local producer to launch a local version of the Disney’s Aladdin musical in India. The production was launched in
Mumbai in April 2018, and completed a very successful month-long run in the city. It has since moved to Delhi, with
potential future seasons in Hyderabad and Mumbai being planned. The response from the audience in Mumbai and
Delhi has been very enthusiastic, with the successful ‘localization’ of the musical receiving global accolades.
Media Networks
	The television audience in India continued to grow, at the upper end (HD channel viewers) as well as the lower-end
(FreeDish/ FTA channel viewers). The TV industry grew at 11.2% in year 2017, with growth in both Advertising and
Distribution revenues. Near complete digitization led to increased collections from end consumers, and an increase in
revenue realization by MSOs and Broadcasters.
	Our Company continued to perform well in the Kids genre, with two of our channels – Disney Channel and Hungama –
ranking in the Top 3 in terms of viewership for most weeks of the year. The Company launched a local animation series
called Simple Samosa, developed in house, on prime time slots on Disney Channel in May 2018 and the audience
reception has been positive. The aim is to strengthen our content pipeline in the Kids space with local animation that
has a global appeal.
	The Movie Channels genre continued to show an upside in ad sales interest, driven by strong performance of the
genre as a whole in the BARC ratings measurement system. Our channels continued their successful and profitable
performance from last year, with the dubbed versions of Marvel movies translating their success from the big screen.
	The Company also launched an HD channel in October 2017, Disney International HD, which is programmed with
international live action content and caters to the underserved tween/teen segment in Urban India. The channel has
received a very positive reaction from viewers, ranking among the top few English GEC HD channels.
	Our Company continues to pursue its omni-channel strategy for the brand Bindass, with web series like Dil Buffering and
Tere Liye Bro achieving strong traction on YouTube and Facebook. The Company also continued to build upon previous
successes, with the release of the third chapter of Girl in the City in July 2018. The response to the same has been
better than the earlier seasons, with millions of views on YouTube and Facebook.
	Our Company had complied with the requirements of the Tariff Order from the Telecom Regulatory Authority of India
(TRAI) in 2016 with the filing of prices for each of our channels. The said Tariff Order was not implemented since it
was sub-judice, but the matter has since been cleared in July 2018. The Company is set to re-file prices as per the
appropriate directions received from TRAI in this regard.
Games and Interactive Business
	Due to disruption and consolidation in the telecom industry, the embed business market as a whole continues to
degrow. The Company has shifted its focus towards the subscription business, offering consumers game packs and
video packs.
Licensing Business
	The Consumer Products business of our Company continued to grow with growing affinity for Marvel leading to an
55
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increased adoption of our products among multiple age groups. The business remains a steady contributor for the
Company, with minimal volatility. The Company continued to increase its partnerships with online retailers, ensuring
a sufficient presence in the e-commerce space. Myntra, Amazon, FirstCry and Flipkart remain key relationships for
the company. During the year, our Company was able to implement dedicated Store-in-Store portals on the major
e-Commerce portals, in conjunction with tent-pole movie releases.
	The Company also partnered with DLF Brands in Delhi to launch three licensed ‘Disney & Me’ stores selling exclusive
merchandise in the National Capital Region in April 2018. The stores are a one-stop destination for merchandise across
categories, with a focus on Fashion and Toys. The stores have outperformed initial expectations, with the fourth location
opening in New Delhi in July 2018.
3.

DISCLOSURE ON ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

	The Company has prepared financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred
to as the “Ind AS”) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016, as applicable.
4.

DIVIDEND & AMOUNT CARRIED TO RESERVES:

	In order to conserve the resources to augment future growth, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the
financial year 2017-18.
Your Directors do not propose transfer of any amount to the General Reserves.
5.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
As at March 31, 2018, the Company has the following subsidiaries viz.

(1)	Disney Entertainment (India) Limited and its subsidiaries i.e. Genx Entertainment Limited, Disney Broadcasting
(India) Limited and United Home Entertainment Private Limited (2) IG Interactive Entertainment Limited and its wholly
owned subsidiary; Ignition Entertainment Limited - UK and further its step down wholly owned subsidiaries i.e. Ignition
Entertainment Limited (USA) and Ignition London Limited (formerly known as Digi-Guys Limited) (3) UTV Communications
(USA) LLC (4) UTV Games Limited and its subsidiary True Games Interactive, Inc.
	As at March 31, 2018, IG Interactive Entertainment Limited, UTV Communications (USA) LLC and UTV Games Limited
are wholly owned subsidiaries of your Company.
As at March 31, 2018, Disney Entertainment (India) Limited is a 57.43% subsidiary of your Company.
	The statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 containing the salient features of the financial statement of its subsidiaries in Form AOC 1 are annexed to
the financial statements.
	Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the standalone financial statements,
consolidated financial statements and separate audited financial statements along with other relevant documents, in
respect of subsidiaries, are available on the website of the Company viz. www.utvgroup.com.
DISNEY ENTERTAINMENT (INDIA) LIMITED (“DEIL”):
	DEIL was incorporated on June 06, 2007. DEIL continues to carry on the business of live entertainment and aggregating
& distributing channels outside India to various distribution platforms.
	As at March 31, 2018, DEIL had two wholly owned subsidiaries - namely Genx Entertainment Limited (“Genx”) and
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (“DBIL”) and a 99.99% subsidiary namely United Home Entertainment Private
Limited (“UHEPL”). Genx, DBIL and UHEPL are engaged in the business of broadcasting entertainment channels (nonnews / current affairs). The channels ‘bindass’ and ‘UTV Action’ are owned and operated by Genx and channels ‘UTV
Movies’, ‘Disney International HD’ (formerly ‘Bindass Play’), ‘Disney Channel’, ‘Disney XD’, ‘UTV Movies International’
and ‘Disney Junior’ are owned and operated by DBIL. Further UHEPL owns and operates one Television Channel named
‘Hungama TV’.
	During the financial year 2017-18, the Board of Directors of DBIL and Genx at their meeting held on March 09, 2018,
had approved the draft Scheme of Merger by absorption between Genx (“Transferor Company”) and DBIL (“Transferee
Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) and filing of the same with the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“the Tribunal/NCLT”). The Scheme was envisaged under the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and was to come into effect from
April 1, 2017 (“the Appointed Date”). The Scheme was approved by the members of DBIL and Genx at their respective
meetings held on May 22, 2018, on the direction of the Hon’ble Tribunal where the application seeking permission
for the Scheme was filed. Accordingly, Joint Petition was filed before the Hon’ble Tribunal for sanctioning the proposed
6
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scheme on June 08, 2018. The said Petition was heard by the Hon’ble Tribunal on August 30, 2018 and based on the
submissions made the Hon’ble Tribunal was pleased to sanction the Scheme vide their order dated August 30, 2018
subject to securing the approval of the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting (MIB), Government of India, under the
policy guidelines for uplinking and downlinking of television channels which obligates Genx to take prior permission
from the MIB before effecting the Merger with Genx. Accordingly, requisite application has already been made to the
MIB for its clearance to the Genx Merger upon receipt of which necessary filings will be made with the Registrar of
Companies, Mumbai to give effect to the Scheme.
	Subsequent to the balance sheet date, UHEPL stands merged with DBIL pursuant to the order of the Tribunal dated
June 08, 2017 (“UHEPL order”) and Ministry of Information & Broadcasting approval letter dated August 29, 2018.
The above UHEPL order was filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra on September 16, 2018 and
accordingly, the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between DBIL and UHEPL (“UHEPL Scheme”) has become
effective from that date. Upon the UHEPL Scheme becoming effective entire assets and business of UHEPL have been
transferred and vested in DBIL with effect from the appointed date viz. April 01, 2015.
	Pending implementation of the aforementioned UHEPL Scheme on August 06, 2018, the Company had made an
application to the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai seeking an extension for holding the 28th Annual General Meeting
(‘28th AGM’) beyond September 30, 2018 which was approved and an extension of 03 (three) months was granted to
the Company allowing it to hold its 28th AGM on or before December 31, 2018.
	As at March 31, 2018 DEIL, on standalone basis, posted revenue income (from operations) of ` 3.96 million (Previous
Year ` 65.25 million) and a net profit of ` 1,449.13 million (Previous Year net loss ` 814.83 million).
	The contribution of DEIL to the overall performance of the company during the period under report was ` 3.96 million
(turnover) which amounts to 0.04% % of the Company’s revenues on consolidated basis.
IG INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED (“IG”):
	IG was incorporated on September 06, 2004 to carry on Film Acquisition, Syndication and Distribution business in the
United Kingdom. As at March 31, 2018 it posted sales of GBP 798,232 (Previous Year GBP 2,678,724) and a net loss
of GBP 44,651 (Previous Year net loss GBP 745,891).
	As at March 31, 2018, Ignition Entertainment Limited (UK) (“Ignition”) continued to be a 100% subsidiary of IG and
Ignition Entertainment Limited (USA) and Ignition London Limited continued to be a 100% subsidiary of Ignition. During
the year under review Ignition, Ignition Entertainment Limited (USA) and Ignition London Limited did not carry out any
business activity.
	The contribution of IG to the overall performance of the company during the period under report was ` 68.83 million
(consolidated turnover) which amounts to 0.69% of the Company’s revenues on consolidated basis.
(Conversion rate of 1 GBP = INR 86.2237)
UTV COMMUNICATIONS (USA) LLC (“UTV US”):
	UTV US was incorporated on April 26, 2004 to carry on film acquisition, syndication and distribution business in the
United State of America (North America) and other surrounding territories. As at March 31, 2018 it posted sales of
USD 841,271 (Previous year USD 6,789,818) and a net loss of USD 859,187 (Previous Year net profit USD 1,524,945).
	The contribution of UTV US to the overall performance of the Company during the period under report was ` 54.26
million (turnover) which amounts to 0.54% of the Company’s revenues on consolidated basis.
(Conversion rate of 1 USD = INR 64.5017)
UTV GAMES LIMITED (“UTV Games”):
	UTV Games is a 100% subsidiary of your Company and was incorporated on September 05, 2008 to carry on the
principal activity of investment holding. During the year under review, UTV Games did not carry out any business activity.
Hence, there was no contribution by UTV Games to the overall performance of the Company during the period under
report.
	True Games Interactive, Inc. continued to be 100% subsidiary of UTV Games. During the year under review True Games
Interactive, Inc. did not carry out any business activity.
6

REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

	
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Board of Directors of your Company at its meeting held on April 06, 2018,
approved the reduction of equity share capital under the provisions of Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 held by
existing public shareholders (except five employee shareholders) for a consideration of ` 500 per equity share subject
to the approval of shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting. Pursuant to the aforesaid board
resolution, an extra-ordinary general meeting of the equity shareholders was convened on May 29, 2018 at Emerald

7

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Hall, Kohinoor Continental, Andheri-Kurla Road, J B Nagar, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400 059, India and the
special resolution for approval of the proposed capital reduction was passed by the requisite majority of shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on May 29, 2018.
	Pursuant to the aforesaid approvals, the Company had filed an application with the Hon’ble Tribunal on June 14, 2018
to seek confirmation for reduction of paid-up equity share capital and consequential reduction of securities premium
account of the Company. Accordingly, the reduction application was admitted by the Hon’ble Tribunal on July 04, 2018.
The Tribunal on July 04, 2018 passed the order to issue notices to the unsecured creditors of the Company, statutory
authorities like Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Mumbai and as well as to publish a notice in the newspaper
confirming the dispatch of the notice to the creditors. The Company complied with the directions of the Hon’ble Tribunal
and the notices were dispatched on July 09, 2018 and the newspaper notices published on July 10, 2018. The matter
is pending before the Hon’ble Tribunal for further process.
	Upon the Capital Reduction becoming effective under the Act (1) the Company shall debit the equity share capital
account to the extent of the face value of the shares cancelled under the Capital Reduction and (2) the difference
between the face value per cancelled share and the amount of consideration paid per cancelled share to the
Non-promoter shareholder be debited to the securities premium account under the head “Other Equity”.
	The form of the minute proposed to be registered under Section 66 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is as follows:
	“The paid up share capital of UTV Software Communications Limited, is henceforth ` 891,70,85,790 [Rupees Eight
Ninety-One Crores Seventy Lakh Eighty-Five Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety Only] divided into 89,17,08,579
equity shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up, reduced from ` 8,91,86,55,740 divided into 89,18,65,574 shares of ` 10
each fully paid up. At the date of registration of the minute 89,17,08,579 shares of ` 10 each have been issued and
are deemed to be fully paid-up. Further the securities premium account of the Company be and is hereby reduced by a
sum not exceeding ` 7,69,27,550 from the existing ` 14,83,26,91,995.”
7.

SHARE CAPITAL:

	During the year under review the following changes have taken place in the authorised and paid-up share capital of the
Company:
a)	As a part of the implementation of the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between The Walt
Disney Company (India) Pvt. Ltd. (“TWDCI”), Indiagames Limited (“Indiagames”) and the Company (‘Scheme’),
the authorised equity share capital of the Company stands increased by the authorised share capital of the
amalgamating companies aggregating to ` 2,612,500,000/- Accordingly, the Company’s authorised share capital
as on the date of this report is ` 19,101,415,00/- divided into 16,602,415,000 Equity Shares of ` 10/- (Rupees
Ten) each and 1,666,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of ` 1,500/- each.
b)	Further, in compliance with the aforesaid Scheme, your Company issued and allotted 11,394,818 equity shares
of face value ` 10/- each (Rupees Ten Only) to the shareholders of TWDCI and 4,882,271 equity shares of face
value ` 10/- each (Rupees Ten Only) to the shareholder of Indiagames.
8.

DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Directors:
The Board of Directors as on March 31, 2018 comprises of the following directors:
Name of Director

Director Identification Number

Designation

Mr. Mahesh Samat

02321902

Managing Director

Mr. Sujit Vaidya

03287161

Whole Time Director

Ms. Monisha Shroff

05220951

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Prem Mehta

00005622

Independent Director

Mr. Narendra Ambwani

00236658

Independent Director

	During the year under review, Ms. Parul Tevatia resigned as Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect from
July 01, 2017. Further, the Board of Director of the Company had appointed Ms. Monisha Shroff (DIN: 05220951)
as Non-Executive Director, Mr. Mahesh Samat (DIN: 02321902) as a Managing Director and Mr. Sujit Vaidya (DIN:
03287161) was designated as Whole Time Director of the Company with effect from July 01, 2017.
	The members of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on December 18, 2017, have approved and
regularised the aforesaid appointments of Ms. Monisha Shroff as Non-Executive Director, Mr. Mahesh Samat as a
Managing Director and Mr. Sujit Vaidya as Whole Time Director of the Company and had also approved the payment of
remuneration to Mr. Mahesh Samat and Mr. Sujit Vaidya.
8
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	In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Monisha Shroff
retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. The Board of Directors on the
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee has recommended her re-appointment.
	Brief resume, nature of expertise, details of directorships held in other companies of the Directors proposed to be
reappointed, along with their shareholding in the Company, as stipulated under Secretarial Standard 2, is appended as
an annexure to the Notice of the ensuing AGM.
Key Managerial Personnel:
The Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Company as on March 31, 2018 were as follows:
Name of Key Managerial Personnel

Designation

Mr. Mahesh Samat*

Managing Director

Mr. Sujit Vaidya*

Whole Time Director

Mr. Vishwas Joshi

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Puneet Juneja

Company Secretary

 Mr. Mahesh Samant (Managing Director) and Mr. Sujit Vaidya (Whole Time Director) were designated as KMP of the
*
Company with effect from July 01, 2017.
Board Meetings
	During the financial year 2017-18, the Board of Directors met 05 (five) times on June 21, 2017, July 07, 2017, November
03, 2017, November 17, 2017 and March 09, 2018 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed one hundred
and twenty days. Further, the Board has met at least once in every calendar quarter of financial year 2017-18.
	The details of Meetings of the Board with the names of the directors, their attendance at board meetings held during
the year are provided herein below:
Name of the Director

Category

Number of board meetings during
the year 2017-18
No. of meetings
held

No. of meetings
attended

Mr. Mahesh Samat**

Managing Director

5

2

Mr. Sujit Vaidya***

Whole Time Director

5

5

Ms. Monisha Shroff**

Non-executive Director

5

2

Ms. Parul Tevatia*

Non-executive Director

5

0

Mr. Prem Raj Mehta

Independent Director

5

5

Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani

Independent Director

5

5

*Resigned with effect from July 01, 2017
**Appointed with effect from July 01, 2017
***Designated as Whole Time Director with effect from July 01, 2017
Evaluation Mechanism
	The annual performance evaluation of all the directors, Board including its committees was conducted based on the
criteria and framework adopted by the Board. The evaluation is primarily basis the attendance in various Board and
Committee meetings, timely inputs on the minutes of the meeting, contribution and active participation in the meeting,
adherence to the ethical standards and Code of Conduct of the Company amongst few.
9.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
I.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

		The Company has an adequately qualified Audit Committee in line with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.
		As on March 31, 2018 the committee comprised of Ms. Monisha Shroff (Chairperson), Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and
Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani as members.
		The Audit Committee primarily recommends appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors
of the Company, review auditors independence, examines financial statements and auditors report, approval of
9
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related party transactions, scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments, monitor end use of funds, overseeing
vigil mechanism and such other functions as may be entrusted by the Board.
		The Company has a robust vigil mechanism whereby the genuine concerns expressed by the employees and
directors are adequately addressed. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism are uploaded on the website of
the Company in accordance with requirements of Section 177(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.
		

Meetings of the Audit Committee:

		During the financial year 2017-18, the Committee met 03 (three) times on June 21, 2017, November 17, 2017
and March 09, 2018.
		The details of Committee meetings held and attendance of each member thereat is as follows during the year
2017-18:
Name of the Member

Category

Number of Audit Committee
meetings during the year 2017-18
No. of meetings
held

No. of meetings
attended

Mr. Sujit Vaidya*

Whole Time Director

3

1

Ms. Monisha Shroff*

Non-executive Director

3

2

Mr. Prem Raj Mehta

Independent Director

3

3

Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani

Independent Director

3

3

		
*Mr. Sujit Vaidya ceased to be a Chairman of the Committee with effect from July 07, 2017 and
Ms. Monisha Shroff elected as Chairperson of Committee with effect from July 07, 2017.
II.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

		The Company has an adequately qualified Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder.
		As on March 31, 2018, the Committee comprised of Ms. Monisha Shroff (Chairperson), Mr. Prem Raj Mehta and
Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani as members.
		The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining
remuneration and other matters provided under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 is appended as
Annexure A to this report.
		

Meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

		During the financial year 2017-18, the Committee met 02 (two) times once on July 07, 2017 and November 17,
2017.
		The details of Committee meetings held and attendance of each member thereat is as follows during the year
2017-18:
Name of the Member

Category

Number of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee
meetings during the year 2017-18
No. of meetings
held

No. of meetings
attended

Ms. Monisha Shroff*

Non-executive Director

2

1

Mr. Sujit Vaidya*

Whole Time Director

2

1

Mr. Prem Raj Mehta

Independent Director

2

2

Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani

Independent Director

2

2

		
*Mr. Sujit Vaidya ceased to be a Chairman of the Committee with effect from July 07, 2017 and
Ms. Monisha Shroff elected as Chairperson of Committee with effect from July 07, 2017.
III.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”) COMMITTEE:

		The Company has an adequately qualified CSR Committee in line with provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014.
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		As on March 31, 2018, the committee comprised of Ms. Monisha Shroff (Chairperson), Mr. Sujit Vaidya and
Mr. Prem Raj Mehta as members.
		The Committee is primarily responsible for developing and overseeing the implementation of the CSR activities
undertaken by the Company in line with the CSR Policy adopted by the Board. The Report on Company’s CSR
activities of the Company during FY 2017-18 is furnished in Annexure B and attached to this report.
		

Meetings of the CSR Committee:

		

During the financial year 2017-18, the Committee met once on March 09, 2018.

		The details of Committee meetings held and attendance of each member thereat is as follows during the year
2017-18:
Name of the Member

Category

Number of CSR Committee
meetings during the year 2017-18
No. of meetings
held

No. of meetings
attended

Mr. Sujit Vaidya

Whole Time Director

1

1

Ms. Monisha Shroff*

Non-executive Director

1

1

Ms. Parul Tevatia*

Non-executive Director

1

Nil

Mr. Prem Raj Mehta

Independent Director

1

1

		
*Ms. Monisha Shroff was elected as a chairperson of   the Committee with effect from July 07, 2017 and
Ms. Parul Tevatia ceased to be a member of the Committee with effect from July 01, 2017.
IV.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (“SR Committee”):

		The Company has an adequately qualified SR Committee in line with provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013.
		As on March 31, 2018, the committee comprised of Ms. Monisha Shroff (Chairperson), Mr. Sujit Vaidya and
Mr. Mahesh Samat as members.
		SR Committee is primarily responsible for considering and resolving the grievances of security holders of the
Company.
		Mr. Sujit Vaidya, Ms. Monisha Shroff and Mr. Mahesh Samat represented the SR Committee at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on December 18, 2017 after being duly authorised by the erstwhile Chairperson of
the SR Committee in that behalf.
		

Meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

		During the financial year 2017-18, the Committee met 04 (four) times on July 10, 2017, September 14, 2017,
January 08, 2018 and January 29, 2018.
		The details of Committee meetings held and attendance of each member thereat is as follows during the year
2017-18:
Name of the Member

Category

Number of SR Committee
meetings during the year 2017-18
No. of meetings
held

No. of meetings
attended

Mr. Sujit Vaidya

Whole Time Director

4

4

Mr. Monisha Shroff*

Non-executive Director

4

4

Mr. Mahesh Samat

Managing Director

4

Nil

Ms. Parul Tevatia*

Non-executive Director

4

Nil

		
*Ms. Monisha Shroff was elected as a chairperson of   the Committee with effect from July 07, 2017 and
Ms. Parul Tevatia ceased to be a member of the Committee with effect from July 01, 2017.
V.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

		The Board of Directors of the Company have also formed a Management Committee which is responsible for
approval and supervision of routine affairs transacted in connection with the Company’s business in its ordinary
course.
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		As on March 31, 2018, the committee comprised of Mr. Sujit Vaidya (Chairman), Ms. Monisha Shroff and
Mr. Mahesh Samat as members.
		

Meetings of the Management Committee:

		During the financial year 2017-18, the Committee met 08 (eight) times on April 24, 2017, June 13, 2017, July 21,
2017, July 24, 2017, August 24, 2017, October 26, 2017, January 24, 2018 and March 12, 2018.
		The details of Committee meetings held and attendance of each member thereat is as follows during the year
2017-18:
Name of the Member

Category

Number of Management Committee
meetings during the year 2017-18
No. of meetings
held

No. of meetings
attended

Mr. Sujit Vaidya

Whole Time Director

8

8

Ms. Parul Tevatia*

Non-executive Director

8

2

Ms. Monisha Shroff*

Non-executive Director

8

6

Mr. Mahesh Samat*

Managing Director

8

Nil

 Ms. Mahesh Samat & Ms. Monisha Shroff elected as a member of  the Committee with effect from July 07, 2017 and
*
Ms. Parul Tevatia ceased to be a member of the Committee with effect from July 01, 2017.
10.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	During the year under review, the Company had 02 (two) independent directors viz. Mr. Prem Mehta & Mr. Narendra
Ambwani per provisions of Section 149 of the rules thereunder.
	The roles, responsibilities and duties of Independent Directors are consistent with the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
	The Company has issued letter of appointment to all the Independent Directors. This letter inter-alia sets out the roles,
functions, duties and responsibilities, details regarding remuneration, training and development and performance
evaluation process. The detailed terms and conditions of the appointment of Independent Directors are available on
the Company’s website i.e. www.utvgroup.com.
	The Company has received necessary declaration from the independent directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013, that each of them meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules thereunder.
	During the financial year 2017-18, the Independent Directors met once on November 17, 2017 and attendance thereat
is as follows:
Name of the Member

11.

No. of meetings held

No. of meetings attended

Prem Raj Mehta

1

1

Narendra Kumar Ambwani

1

1

TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):

	During the year under review, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
12.	DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
	Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual at workplace.
The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment.
	The Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace which aims to provide protection against
sexual harassment at workplace and for the prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) was set up from the senior
management with women employees constituting majority. The ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to
sexual harassment.

12

	During the financial year ended March 31, 2018 no complaint pertaining to sexual harassment was received by the
Company.
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13.

FIXED DEPOSIT:
Your Company has neither accepted nor renewed any fixed deposit in respect of the year under review.

14.

AUDITORS:
a)

Statutory Auditor

		The term of M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co Bangalore LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 007567S /
S-200012) ended with the conclusion of audit for the financial year 2016-17. After conducting a detailed evaluation
and based on the recommendation of Audit Committee, the Board approved the proposal for appointment of
M/s. MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 105047W) as statutory auditors of the
Company for a term of 5 years from the financial year 2017-18 onwards on such terms and conditions and
remuneration as may be decided by the Board. The said appointment was approved by the members of the
Company at the 27th AGM held on December 18, 2017.
		Vide notification dated May 7, 2018 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the requirement of seeking ratification
of appointment of statutory auditors by members at each AGM has been done away with. Accordingly, no such
item has been considered in notice of the 28th Annual General Meeting.
b)

Secretarial Auditor

		Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the appointment of M/s. SPRS & Co., a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, to conduct Secretarial
Audit of the Company.
		The Report of the Secretarial Audit in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended March 31, 2018 is enclosed as
Annexure C to this Report.
c)

Internal Auditor

		Mr. Pawan Jaggi, Internal Auditor of the Company, has conducted internal audits periodically and submitted his
reports to the Audit Committee.
		
15.

Such reports have been reviewed by the Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee periodically.

AUDITORS’ REPORT:
a)

Statutory Auditor

		There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. MSKA & Associates, Statutory Auditors,
in their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.
		Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have not reported
any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee during the year under review.
b)

Secretarial Auditor

		The Secretarial Auditor has in their audit report dated August 17, 2018 certified full compliance in respect of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and other applicable laws by the Company.
		
16.

The Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark.

COMPLIANCE WITH RBI CIRCULAR ON DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENTS:

	Pursuant to the requirement of Circular No. 01, bearing reference RBI/2013-14/117 dated July 4, 2013 (the “Circular”),
issued by Reserve Bank of India, the Statutory Auditor had submitted their report for the period ended March 31, 2018.
	Basis the report the downstream investments made by the Company are in compliance with the Circular i.e. compliance
with the instructions on downstream investment and compliance with the FEMA provisions.
17.	CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
	The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as
required under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 is furnished in Annexure D and is attached to this report.
18.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

	Particular of employees required to be furnished under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is enclosed as Annexure E and form part of this report.
13

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

19.	PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:
	The particulars of Loans, guarantees or investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part
of the notes to the financial statements provided in this Annual Report.
20.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:

	The particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, is appended as Annexure F to this report.
21.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

	The extract of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure G and is attached to this Report.
22.

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES:

	The statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of the subsidiaries, associates and joint venture
companies pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in
form AOC-1 forms part of the financial statements.
23.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

	The Board has adopted adequate procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detecting of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.
During the year, no reportable material weakness in the design or operation of financial & operational controls was
observed.
24.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby states that: —
a.	in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable accounting
standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
b.	the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the company for that period;
c.	the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d.	the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
e.	the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively; and
f.	your Company has complied with the applicable articles of the Secretarial Standards- 1 and Secretarial Standards2 issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) relating to ‘Meeting of the Board of Directors’ and
‘General Meetings’ respectively.

25.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

	Your Directors would take this opportunity to thank all the stakeholders for their support and co-operation rendered to
the Company during the year under review.
By order of the Board of Directors
For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Sd/		
Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION

Annexure ‘A’

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act) and the rules prescribed thereunder have made it mandatory for UTV Software
Communications Limited (the “Company”) to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has in
pursuance of these statutory requirements, constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”).
Objective of the Policy
The mission of the Company is to ensure compliance with legal requirements and set the standards for corporate governance
that would operate as guidelines for the working of the Committee. The objective of the policy is:
(i)	to ensure board diversity in order to help provide the maximum experience and access to knowledge that can be derived
from the board;
(ii)	
to guide the board in relation to appointment and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management;
(iii)	to retain, motivate and encourage talent and ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial person and create
competitive advantage;
(iv)

to develop a succession plan for the board and to regularly review the plan; and

(v)	that it may be aligned to the various HR policies, if any, of the Company in regard to appointment of key managerial
personnel and senior management.
Criteria for Evaluation of Performance
The performance evaluation should keep in mind factors such as attendance at meetings, contribution at such board or
board committee meetings and value addition that has been done by the directors, key managerial personnel or senior
management. The evaluation must also take in to consideration the future strategy to be adopted by the Company.
Criteria for Determination of Remuneration
The Committee shall determine the remuneration for its directors, the senior management and key managerial personnel
while keeping the following criteria in mind:
•	the remuneration shall be of such an amount that is in consonance with the services that are being provided to the
Company;
•

the remuneration is consummate with reference to remuneration paid to people in similar positions;

•

the remuneration is consummate with the experience that the director or personnel brings to the Company;

•	the remuneration must be of a level that is sufficient to retain and motivate talented personnel in the market to work for
the Company;
•	the remuneration is a fair balance of perquisites and salary and also includes in the case of independent directors, any
sitting fees;
•

the remuneration must be decided while keeping in mind the structure of the Company and of the board;

•

the remuneration must co-relate to the clearly defined benchmarks for performance evaluation;

•

the remuneration is revised on the basis of the performance of the director/personnel; and

•

the remuneration must be in accordance with the permissible law.

Dissemination
The details of this policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be published on the Company’s website and accordingly
disclosed in the Annual Report as part of the board’s report.
For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Sd/		
Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE
INCLUDED IN THE BOARD’S REPORT

Annexure ‘B’

1.	A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
	As a responsible Corporate, your Company has constantly endeavored to contribute to the development and upliftment
of the social strata.
	Your Company as a part of The Walt Disney Group conducts various social activities that contribute to the wellness of the
society and the nature such as ensuring environmental sustainability by conserving green spaces, promoting education
through joyful learning and supporting health care by creating brighter spaces of care giving thereby ensuring faster
recoveries, fulfilling wishes of kids suffering from life threatening medical conditions thereby providing hope, strength
and joy to the kids and their families. The employees of the Company are encouraged to participate in CSR activities
undertaken by the Company.
CSR Projects to be implemented at the local/national level:
Disney Hospitals Support Program
Disney Friends for Change
Disney Wishes
Design for Change
Education and Health & Nutrition
The CSR activities are carried out directly by the Company or in association with a strategic partner.
Information: The contents of this CSR Policy are also available on the website of the Company that is www.utvgroup.com
2.

The Composition of the CSR Committee:

	As on March 31, 2018, the CSR Committee is comprised of Mr. Monisha Shroff (Chairperson), Mr. Sujit Vaidya and
Mr. Prem Raj Mehta as members.
3.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
The average net profit for the last three financial years is a loss.

4.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. of the amount as in item 3 above)

	Since the Company has no average net profits during the last three financial years, the requirement as to the minimum
spend of two per cent as mandated by Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
5.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a)

Total amount to be spent for the financial year: N.A.

(b)

Amount unspent, if any: N.A.

(c)

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: N.A.

6. 	In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent, of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s report: N.A.
7.

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Sd/		
Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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Annexure ‘C’
Form No. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial year ended March 31, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
UTV Software Communications Limited
1st Floor, Building No.14,
Solitaire Corporate Park,
Guru Hargovindji Marg,
Chakala, Andheri (E),
Mumbai- 400093.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by UTV Software Communications Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts /statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended March 31, 2018 (“the Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has Board-processes and compliance - mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter.
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, according to the provisions of:
1.

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2.	The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not applicable for the audit
period)
3.

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4.	The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment;
5.	The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’); (Not applicable for the audit period)
a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

e.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f.	The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
g.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

h.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

We have also examined compliance by the Company with the Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).
During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned herein above.
We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
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documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the following laws specifically applicable to
the Company.
•

The Information Technology Act, 2000

•

The Cinematograph Act, 1952

•

Trade Mark Act, 1999

•

The Copyright (Amendment) Act, 2012

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except in cases where meeting called at shorter notice), and there is a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out either unanimously or majority as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period, there are no specific events, actions having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
We further report that during the audit period, Indiagames Limited (“Indiagames’’) and The Walt Disney Company (India)
Private Limited (“TWDCI’’) stands merged with the Company pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and
Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“the Tribunal”) vide its order dated
June 08, 2017 which has become effective from June 30, 2017. Further, in compliance with the aforesaid Scheme, the
Company has issued and allotted 11,394,818 equity shares of face value ` 10/- each (Rupees Ten Only) to the shareholders
of TWDCI and 4,882,271 equity shares of face value ` 10/- each (Rupees Ten Only) to the shareholder of Indiagames.
For SPRS & Co.,
Practising Company Secretaries
Sd/					
							
Date: August 17, 2018
Place: Mumbai
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PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO COMPANIES RULE 8(3) OF
THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014
A.

Annexure ‘D’

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

•	The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy and the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources
of energy:
	The operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However, the company has taken adequate measures to
reduce the energy consumption by using energy efficient hardware and other equipment. Air conditioners are used only
when required. Further the Company has spread awareness among the employees on the need to conserve energy
which is well adopted by the employees.
•

The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: Nil

B.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

•

The efforts made towards technology absorption and the benefits derived:

	The Company keeps innovating, takes all measures necessary to absorb and adapt latest technology which has reaped
the following benefits:
-

In-house hosting of application leading to cost efficiency

-

Data security and integrity has been substantially enhanced

-

Effective turnaround to meet business requirements

•

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

C.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO: ` 3,170.30 million (Previous year ` 2,553.40 million)

D.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING: ` 1,622.71 million (Previous year ` 1,355.00 million)

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Sd/		
Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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20

Vishwas
Gangadhar
Joshi
Anuraag Shroff

Kavita Panda

Anju Jain Kumar

Bikram Duggal

Cyril Augustine
Ferry

Pawan Jaggi

2

4

5

6

7

8

Vice President Assistant Regional
Counsel, South Asia
Executive Director
& Head - Studio
Entertainment

Executive Director –
Strategic Sourcing &
Administration
Head - Disney Media
Distribution, Studios

Regional Head - Media
Distribution & OTT,
South Asia
Chief Financial Officer

Designation

54

48

46

12 Charles Jacob

13 S. Venkata
Subramanian

Director & Head
Taxation & Company
Secretary

Executive Director Network Operations

Managing Director

46 Executive Director Distribution, Disney
Interactive
43 Principal Counsel
& International
Compliance Officer
51 Whole time Director
39 Principal Counsel

42

49

46

51

11 Mahesh Samat

9 Sujit Vaidya
10 Shruti Mehta

3

39

Amrita Pandey

1

54

Age

Sr. Employee
No. Name

CA and CS

Post Graduate
Diploma in
Management, IIM
BSC , LLB

CA
B.L.S.L.L.B

BCOM, CS, LLB

Bachelor of science,
PGD In Advertising
& Communication
Management
MBA

Post Graduate
Diploma in
Management
B.com, LLB, LLM in
Intellectual Property

CS

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll
Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

4-Dec-09

11-Aug-04

28-Nov-16

15-Jul-13
16-Jul-14

24-Sep-12

21-May-01

15-Sep-10

3-Oct-06

31-Jan-05

22-Nov-04

6-Jun-07

8,483,470

9,163,807

72,990,476

34,998,116
11,026,192

9,421,402

11,915,254

9,162,525

24,253,743

9,154,232

10,552,503

11,568,895

Nature of
Date of
Employment commencement Remuneration
whether
of employment
(in `)
contractual
or otherwise
Payroll
2-Jun-03
37,745,453

Post Graduate
Diploma in Business
Management
ICWA
Payroll

Qualification

NA

NA

NA

NA
NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Date of
leaving

Annexure ‘E’

Crest
Communication
Limited
Deloitte Haskins
And Sells

Glaxosmithkline
Pharma Executive
Ltd
Castrol
Ge Capital Services
India
Epic Television
Network Pvt.Ltd

Indiabulls

Locus Information
Pvt Ltd

Azb & Partners

Star India Pvt Ltd

Sahara Onemedia
And Entertainment
Ltd
Sony Entertainment
Television

NA

NA

NA

NA
NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

20

24

32

26
16

19

23

19

24

23

29

27

Last employment Whether any such employee
Total
held before joining is a relative of any director or Experience
the Company
manager of the company and
if so, name of such director
or manager
Benett, Coleman
NA
18
And Company Ltd.

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Particulars of Employees forming part of the Director’s Report for the financial year 2017-2018
Information pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
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44

44

41

42

43

49

42

14 Sanjeet Mehta

15 Manish Marwah

16 Vikrant Pawar

17 Preeti Puri
Sharma

18 Parul Tevatia

19 Manas Ranjan
Mati

20 Nitin Dadoo

Executive Director
& Head - Disney
Consumer Products
Director & Head Finance, DCPI
Head - Live
Entertainment &
Creative Director
Director And Head
Of Corporate
Communications And
Citizenship
Executive Director Human Resources,
South Asia
Executive Director Technology

Designation

Masters of Business
Administration,
Bachelor of
Technology in civil
Engineering
CA, CS

MA ; PMIR

B com , Diploma
in Advertising and
Public relations

SY BSc

CA

Masters in
Management Studies

Qualification

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

Payroll

1-Apr-12

26-Nov-12

27-Mar-17

17-Jan-13

16-May-12

18,517,054

10,595,316

6,190,994

12,195,548

8,568,161

Nature of
Date of
Employment commencement Remuneration
whether
of employment
(in `)
contractual
or otherwise
Payroll
28-Nov-11
10,456,886

Essar Steel Ltd

Star India Pvt Ltd

Reebok India
Company
Great Indian
Nautanki Company

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Whole Time Director
DIN: 03287161

DIN: 02321902

Date : November 16, 2018

Place : Mumbai

Sujit Vaidya

Managing Director

Sd/-

Mahesh Samat

Sd/-

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
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15

19

12

20

18

Last employment Whether any such employee
Total
held before joining is a relative of any director or Experience
the Company
manager of the company and
if so, name of such director
or manager
Villeroy & Boch
NA
21
India

9-Mar-18 Pif Form Not
Available

31-Mar18

30-Jun17

NA

NA

NA

Date of
leaving

Executive Director &
Payroll
16-Aug-06
11,208,207 2-Feb-18 Dumex India Pvt Ltd
NA
Head - Affiliate Sales
The above statement includes the names of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn.
Remuneration stated above includes salary, taxable allowances, value of perquisites as per Income Tax rules and Company’s contribution to PF and superannuation fund.

Age

Sr. Employee
No. Name
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Annexure ‘F’

FORM NO. AOC.2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

	There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2018, which
were not at arm’s length basis.
2.	Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
Name of Related Party

Buena Vista International Inc. (BVI)

Nature of Relationship

Fellow Subsidiary

Nature of Contracts / Arrangements / Licensing Agreement
Transactions
Duration
of
the
Contracts
Arrangement/ Transactions

/ Effective March 01, 2014 for a period of 12 (twelve) months. Thereafter,
the term is automatically renewed for successive periods of one year each
unless and until either party serves a notice not later than 12 (twelve)
months prior to the expiration of the then- current term.

Salient Terms of the contracts or BVI and Company had entered into an agreement whereby BVI had agreed
arrangements or transactions including to grant a license to the Company for the distribution of certain motion
the value, if any
pictures, including, but not limited to, those under various banners like Walt
Disney Studio Pictures, Pixar Animation Picture, Lucas Film Pictures, Marvel
Pictures and Touchstone Pictures in any and all modes and media except
theatrical distribution in the territory.
As consideration for the grant of rights by BVI, the Company pays Royalty
to BVI for each year comprising of April to March of the next calendar year.
Date of Board Approval, if any

Not Applicable

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/			
Mahesh Samat 		
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Director
DIN: 03287161
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Annexure ‘G’

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
Sr. No.
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.

II.

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company
Category / Sub-Category of the Company
Address of the Registered office and
contact details

U72200MH1990PLC056987
22-Jun-90
UTV Software Communications Limited
Indian Non-Government Company Limited by Shares
1st Floor, Building No. 14, Solitaire Corporate Park,Guru
Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 093,
Tel No: 022 6109 1000 Fax: 022 67421930
Whether listed company
No
Name, Address and Contact details of M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32 Gachibowli, Financial
District, Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad – 500 032
P : +91 040 67161513, 040-67161510, 040-67161512

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:Sr.
No.
1
2

III.

Name and Description of main products/services
Distribution & Licensing of Movies
Interactive Media and Mobile Services

2$
3

4
5$

6
7

% to total turnover of
the company
62.14
22.89

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. No. NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY
1

NIC Code of the
Product/service
59131
58203

The Walt Disney Company
500 South Buena Vista Street, Burbank,
California 91521 , United States of America
Disney Enterprises, Inc.(“DEI”)
500 South Buena Vista Street, Burbank,
California 91521 , United States of America
Wedco Global Ventures (Singapore) Pte. LtdSingapore
One Marina Boulevard #28-00 Singapore
018989
TWDC SEA Holding LLC
500 South Buena Vista Street, Burbank,
California 91521, U.S.A.
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia)
Pte. Ltd. (“TWDSEA”)
One Marina Boulevard # 28-00, Singapore
– 018989”
UTV Communications (USA) LLC
33, Wood Avenue South, 6th Floor, Iselin, NJ
08830
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited
3 Queen Caroline Street, Hammersmith,
London W6 9PE

CIN/GLN

HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY
/ ASSOCIATE

% of
shares
held*
99.98

N.A.

Ultimate Holding
Company

N.A.

Applicable
Section
Section 2(46)

Intermediate Holding
Company

99.98

Section 2(46)

N.A.

Intermediate Holding
Company

98.70

Section 2(46)

N.A.

Intermediate Holding
Company

98.70

Section 2(46)

N.A.

Immediate Holding
Company

98.70

Section 2(46)

N.A.

Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2(87)
Company

N.A.

Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2(87)
Company
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Sr. No. NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY
8^
9^
10^
11

12^^
13*

14

15**

16**

Ignition Entertainment Limited, UK
3 Queen Caroline Street, Hammersmith,
London W6 9PE
Ignition London Limited
3 Queen Caroline Street, Hammersmith,
London W6 9PE
Ignition Entertainment Limited, USA
4640 Admiralty Way
Suite # 301, Marina Del Rey, CA 90292
UTV Games Limited
c/o CIM Corporate Services Ltd.
Les Cascades, Edith Cavell Street, Port
Louis, Mauritius
True Games Interactive, Inc.
4640 Admiralty Way
Suite # 301, Marina Del Rey, CA 90292
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV Global Broadcasting
Limited) Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire
Corporate Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg,
Chakala, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 093.
Genx Entertainment Limited
Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire Corporate
Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala,
Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 093.
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
(formerly known as UTV Entertainment
Television Limited)
Building No. 14, 1st Floor, Solitaire Corporate
Park, Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala,
Andheri (E), Mumbai 400 093.
United Home Entertainment Private Limited
Blog No. 14, 1st Flr, Solitaire Corporate Park,
Guru Hargovindji Marg, Chakala, Andheri (E),
Mumbai - 400 093.

CIN/GLN

HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY
/ ASSOCIATE

N.A.

Step Down Subsidiary
Company

N.A.

Step Down Subsidiary
Company

100.00 Section 2(87)

N.A.

Step Down Subsidiary
Company

100.00 Section 2(87)

N.A.

% of
Applicable
shares
Section
held*
100.00 Section 2(87)

Wholly Owned Subsidiary 100.00 Section 2(87)
Company

N.A.

Step Down Subsidiary
Company

100.00 Section 2(87)

U32300MH2007PLC171337

Subsidiary Company

57.43

Section 2(87)

U92142MH2007PLC167974

Step Down Subsidiary
Company

57.43

Section 2(87)

U64200MH2007PLC170405

Step Down Subsidiary
Company

57.43

Section 2(87)

U92130MH2004PTC143978

Step Down Subsidiary

57.43

Section 2(87)

*As on March 31, 2018, Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (‘DEIL’) continues to directly hold 100% of the paid up capital of Genx
Entertainment Limited (‘GENX’) and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (‘DBIL’), the shareholding pattern of DEIL has undergone a change
with the Company now holding 57.43% and TWDSEA holding the remaining 42.57% shares of DEIL.
^IG Interactive Entertainment Limited holds 100% of the paid up capital of Ignition Entertainment Limited, UK which in turn holds entire
paid up capital of Ignition London Limited and Ignition Entertainment Limited, USA
^^UTV Games Limited, Mauritius holds 100% of the paid up capital of True Games Interactive, Inc.
$As on the date of this return, TWDSEA holds 98.70% of the equity share capital in the Company. Further, Disney Enterprises Inc. (‘DEI’)
directly holds 1.28% of equity capital in the Company pursuant to allotment of 11,394,818 shares of ` 392 per share to DEI under the
Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited (‘Transferor Company1’);
Indiagames Limited (‘Transferor Company2’) with the Company (Transferee Company) sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal dated June 08, 2017.
**Subsequent to the reporting period, United Home Entertainment Private Limited, Step Down Subsidiary stands merged with Disney
Broadcasting (India) Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“the Tribunal”) vide its order dated June 08, 2017 which has become effective from June 30, 2017 i.e. the date
on which it has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.

24

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of Shareholders
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
Demat
Physical
Total % of Total
Shares
A. Promoters
1
INDIAN
a. Individual/ HUF
b. Central Govt.
c. State Govt(s).
d. Bodies Corporate
e.
Banks/ FI
f.
Any Other
Sub-total (A) (1):2
FOREIGN
a. NRIs–Individuals
b.
Other-Individuals
c. Bodies Corporate
51506659 823924826 875431485 99.9821
d. Banks/ FI
e. Any other
Sub-total (A) (2):51506659 823924826 875431485 99.9821
Total shareholding of Promoter 51506659 823924826 875431485 99.9821
A= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. Public Shareholding
1
Institutions
a. Mutual Funds
b. Banks / FI
c. Central Govt.
d. State Govt(s).
e. Venture Capital Funds
f.
Insurance Companies
g. FIIs
h. Foreign Venture Capital Funds
i.
Others (specify)
Sub-total (B) (1):2
Non-Institutions
a. Bodies Corporate
i.
Indian
3536
8
3544
0.0004
ii. Overseas
268
268
0.0000
b. Individuals
i.
Individual Shareholders holding
140853
3089
143942
0.0164
nominal share capital up to ` 1
lakh
ii. Individual Shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess
of ` 1 lakh
c. Others
9149
97
9246
0.0011
Sub-total (B) (2):153538
3462
157000
0.0179
Total Public Shareholding (B) =
153538
3462
157000
0.0179
(B)(1)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDR’s & ADR’s
Grand Total (A+B+C)
51660197 823928288 875588485 100.0000
11394818
11394818
11394818
8
268
3091
147
3514
3514
11398332

880313756
880313756
880313756
3474
140685
9327
153486
153486
880467242

-

0.0011
0.0176
0.0176

-

0.0161

0.0004
0.0000

99.9824
99.9824
99.9824

-

891865574 100.0000

-

9474
157000
157000

-

143776

3482
268

891708574
891708574
891708574

-

-

-

0.0000
-0.0003
-0.0003

-

-0.0003

0.0000
0.0000

0.0003
0.0003
0.0003

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Demat
Physical*
Total % of Total
% Change
Shares during the year
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26

The Walt Disney Company (Southeast
Asia) Pte. Ltd.
Disney Enterprises Inc., USA

Shareholder’s Name

The Walt Disney
Company
(Southeast Asia)
Pte. Ltd.
Disney
Enterprises Inc.,
USA

Shareholding

-

-

11,394,818

1.2776

-

1.2776

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
At the
% of total At the end of % of total
Date of
Increase /
Reason
No. of Shares % of total
beginning of
shares
the year
shares
increase/ Decrease in
shares
the year
of the
of the
decrease shareholding
of the
Company
Company*
Company*
875,431,485 99.9821 880,313,756 98.7048 24-Jul-17
4,882,271 Allotment pursuant to Composite 880,313,756 98.7048
Scheme of Amalgamation and
Arrangement between TWDCI,
Indiagames and the Company
0.0000
0.0000
24-Jul-17 11,394,818 (‘Scheme’)
11,394,818
1.2776

* rounded off to 04 (four) decimal places

2

1

Sr. No. Name

-

Shareholding at the beginning of the year
Shareholding at the end of the year
No. of Shares % of total Shares
% of Shares
No. of Shares % of total
% of Shares
% change in
of the company*
Pledged/
Shares
Pledged/
shareholding
encumbered to
of the
encumbered to
during the
total shares*
company*
total shares*
year*
875,431,485
99.9821
- 880,313,756
98.7048
-1.2773

iii. Change in Promoters Shareholding: (Equity)

2

1

Sr. No.

ii. Promoter’s Shareholding (Equity)

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Chander Pribhdas Tahiliani
Anmol Vanamali
Anand Dhundiraj Jog
Sheel Kumar
Ram Chander Malhotra
Hemant P. Vissanji

7
8
9
10
11
12

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
1050
1037
1000
1000
1000
1000

1500
1400
1329
1208
1208
1104

At the
end
of the
year

Vishwas Joshi
Puneet Juneja
Monisha Shroff

Shareholding

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

% of total
shares
of the
Company*

At the
% of total
At the end
% of total
beginning of shares of the of the year shares of the
the year
Company*
Company*
1
0.00
1
0.00
1
0.00
1
0.00
1
0.00
1
0.00

* rounded off to 2 (two) decimal places

1
2
3

Sr. Name
No.

v. Shareholding Pattern Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

1050
1037
1000
1000
1000
1000

1500
1400
1329
1208
1208
1104

At the
% of total
beginning
shares
of the
of the
year
Company*

* rounded off to 2 (two) decimal places

Armeene Byram Shroff
Amita Rajeev Karia
Sunil Tulsidas Mehta
Ved Prakash Paliwal
Pratibha Paliwal
Kalpana Jayesh Shah

1
2
3
4
5
6

Name

Date of
increase/
decrease
N.A
N.A
N.A

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Date of
increase /
decrease

Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year

Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year
Nil Movement during the year

Reason

1050
1037
1000
1000
1000
1000

1500
1400
1329
1208
1208
1104

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total
Shares
shares
of the
Company*

Cumulative
Shareholding during
the year
Increase/
Reason
No. of
% of total
Decrease in
Shares shares of the
shareholding*
Company*
0.00
Nil Movement during the year
1
0.00
0.00
Nil Movement during the year
1
0.00
0.00
Nil Movement during the year
1
0.00

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Increase /
Decrease in
shareholding*

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr.
Shareholding
No.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(in ` million)
Sr. Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
No.
i.
ii.
iii.

i.
ii.
iii.

Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
·     Addition
·     Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits
-

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

308.63
0.24
308.87

-

308.63
0.24
308.87

-

308.87
308.87

-

308.87
308.87

-

-

-

-

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director
Mahesh Samat
(Managing Director)

1

Total Amount in INR

Sujit Vaidya
(Whole Time
Director)

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

63,933,339.00

22,344,670.00

86,278,009.00

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

9,030,137.00

11,836,450.00

20,866,587.00

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
2

Stock Option

3

Sweat Equity

4

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5

Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

28

27,000.00

816,996.00

843,996.00

72,990,476.00

34,998,116.00

107,988,592.00
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
B. Remuneration to Other Directors:
SI. Particulars of Remuneration
no.

Name of Directors
Prem Mehta

1
a.
b.
c.
2
a.
b.
c.

Independent Directors
Fee for attending board / committee
meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1)
Other Non – Executive Directors
Fee for attending board / committee
meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (2)

Narendra
Ambwani

Total Amount
in INR

Parul
Tevatia

Monisha
Shroff

5,20,000.00 4,80,000.00

-

-

10,00,000.00

5,20,000.00 4,80,000.00

-

-

10,00,000.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
SI. Particulars of Remuneration
no.
1

2
3
4

5

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
Others, please specify -- Employers Contribution to PF
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

Name of the Key Managerial Personnel

Total Amount
in INR

Company Secretary
Puneet Juneja
5,565,413.00

CFO
Vishwas Joshi
10,300,862.00

15,866,275.00

658,991.00

899,006.00

1,557,997.00

-

-

-

244,431.00
6,468,835.00
NA

369,027.00
11,568,895.00
NA

613,458.00
18,037,730.00
NA
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type

Section of the
Brief
Companies Description
Act

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding
fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Authority [RD /
NCLT / COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give
Details)

e

l
b
a
lic

p
p
A
ot

N

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902
Place:Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole-time Director
DIN: 03287161
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of UTV Software Communications Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as “the Group”), comprising the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated
cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and the accounting principles generally accepted in
India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in the sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
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in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the consolidated financial
position of the Group, as at March 31, 2018, and its consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matters
a.	The financial statements of 7 subsidiaries located outside India, included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
reflect total assets of ` 1,525.43 million and net liabilities of ` 502.27 million as at March 31, 2018, total revenues
of ` 128.51 million and net cash outflows amounting to ` 232.25 million for the year ended on that date, have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries and which have
been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries.
The Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in
India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as
it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors
and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.
	Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of
the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements certified by the Management.
b.	The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited by
another auditor whose report dated November

22, 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable that:
(a)	We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
(b)	In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.
(c)	The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.
(d)	In our opinion the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
(e)	On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31,
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in
India is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director of that Company in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.
(f)	With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’.
(g)	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:
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i.	The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group – Refer Note 29 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

		

ii.	The Group has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2018 for which there were no material foreseeable
losses. The Group does not have any long term derivative contracts as at March 31, 2018.

		

iii.	There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended March
31, 2018.

2.	As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information, explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Group to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act
and the rules thereunder.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105047W
Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even
date to the Members of UTV Software Communications Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March
31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UTV Software Communications Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary Company, which are companies incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary Company, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company, its subsidiary Company, its associate
Company and jointly controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
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management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company, its
subsidiary Company, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105047W
Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Note

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

3

319.67

327.99

Capital work-in-progress

4

-

50.56

Goodwill

5

4,732.53

5,250.12

Other Intangible Assets

5

14.26

23.65

0.01

0.05
131.49

Financial assets
- Investments

6 (a)

- Loans

6 (b)

142.43

- Other financial assets

6 (c)

202.14

-

Income tax assets (net)

7

3,991.37

3,441.32

Deferred tax assets (net)

8

275.92

277.99

Other non-current assets

9

51.98

36.77

9,730.31

9,539.94

10

2,010.01

2,392.95

- Trade receivables

6 (d)

3,142.63

2,810.88

- Cash and cash equivalents

6 (e)

3,222.36

2,409.39

- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

6 (f)

1.78

1.76

- Loans

6 (b)

30.88

32.49

- Other financial assets

6 (c)

2,942.47

463.13

11

1,080.68

596.59

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets

Other current assets
Total current assets

12,430.81

8,707.19

TOTAL ASSETS

22,161.12

18,247.13

8,755.88

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital

12 (a)

8,918.65

Other Equity

12 (b)

2,041.68

2,421.77

10,960.33

11,177.65

Equity attributable to owners
Non-controlling Interest

12 (b)

TOTAL EQUITY

2,552.37

464.74

13,512.70

11,642.39

32.30

29.12

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions

14

Employee benefits obligation

15

90.16

64.98

Other non-current liabilities

17

207.69

179.20

330.15

273.30

Total non-current liabilities
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Note

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings

13 (a)

995.12

308.63

- Trade Payables

13 (b)

5,740.38

4,433.74

- Other Financial Liabilities

13 (c)

7.95

14.43

Provisions

14

16.40

-

Employee benefits obligation

15

31.27

37.38

Income tax liabilities (net)

16

0.11

0.11

Other current liabilities

17

1,527.04

1,537.15

Total current liabilities

8,318.27

6,331.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES

8,648.42

6,604.74

22,161.12

18,247.13

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Summary of significant accounting policies

1

The above Consolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.		
This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Direct costs
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Finance costs
Total expenses
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Income tax expense
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
Total Income tax expense
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations
Income tax relating to this item

Note
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

21

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Movement in Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Income tax relating to this item
Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year
Profits/(Loss) is attributable to :
Owners of UTV Software Communications Limited
Non Controlling Interest
Other comprehensive income/(loss) is attributable to :
Owners of UTV Software Communications Limited
Non-Controlling Interest
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Year ended
March 31, 2018
9,962.79
168.50
10,131.29

Year ended
March 31, 2017
13,057.87
322.99
13,380.86

4,719.56
1,153.92
181.33
2,032.76
51.83
8,139.40
1,991.89
1,991.89

8,180.58
1,642.15
640.22
1,674.59
929.10
13,066.64
314.22
541.68
(227.46)

47.96
1.83
49.79
1,942.10

87.40
71.06
158.46
(385.92)

1.62

5.40

(0.12)
1.50

(0.45)
4.95

(1.25)
(1.25)
0.25
1,942.35

(6.84)
(6.84)
(1.89)
(387.81)

1,793.62
148.48

(456.31)
70.39

0.25
-

(1.71)
(0.18)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) is attributable to :
Owners of UTV Software Communications Limited
1,793.87
(458.02)
Non-Controlling Interest
148.48
70.21
Loss Per Equity Share attributable to Owners of
UTV Software Communications Limited
- Basic (`)
27
2.01
(1.04)
- Diluted (`)
27
2.01
(1.04)
Summary of significant accounting policies
1
The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even date.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates) For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants
UTV Software Communications Limited
Firm Registration No.: 105047W
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987
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Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161
Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902
Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2018
A.

B.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Impairment expenses
Loss on disposal
Interest income
Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Finance costs
Amortisation of movie costs
Allowance for doubtful debts/(written back)
Loss on sale of Investments
Provision for diminution in the value of investments written back
Advances written off
Allowance for doubtful Financial and Non-Financial Assets
Bad debts written off
Provision for employee benefit obligations
Liabilities no longer required written back
Impact of Foreign Exchange Translation (Net)
Provision for Contingencies
Unrealised foreign exchange loss
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade payables
Increase in other liabilities and provisions
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables
Increase in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans
(Increase) / Decrease in other financials assets - non-current
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets
Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(including capital work-in-progress)
Sale of tangible/intangible assets
Sale of Investment
Investment of fixed deposit with Banks (net)
Interest received
Net cash generated from Investing Activities

Year ended
March 31, 2017

1,991.89

(227.46)

645.65
0.65
(127.27)
(13.22)
51.83
2,034.12
103.65
0.38
(0.46)
1,111.75
(1,109.60)
119.78
13.10
(6.72)
(36.35)
19.58
53.63
4,852.39

640.22
541.68
(271.17)
(11.68)
929.10
4,244.11
18.02
9.39
127.52
68.98
(11.28)
38.29
4.12
29.59
6,129.43

1,194.53
26.40
(555.57)
(1,651.18)
3.89
(202.14)
(2,964.32)
704.00
(597.77)
106.23

379.62
414.89
215.28
(2,186.50)
(22.43)
1.40
316.51
5,248.20
(266.42)
4,981.78

(67.68)

(91.33)

0.28
0.12
(0.02)
110.75
43.45

(1.45)
101.75
8.97
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2018
C.

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Repayment of long term loan
Borrowing / (repayment) of short term loan (Net)
Interest paid
Share Issue expenses
Net cash generated from / (used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Exchange Difference on Translation of foreign currencies Cash
and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

686.49
(51.92)
(6.38)
628.19
777.87
2,409.39
35.10

10,629.99
(9,600.00)
(4,486.59)
(806.78)
(15.04)
(4,278.42)
712.33
1,742.19
(45.13)

3,222.36
As at
March 31, 2018

2,409.39
As at
March 31, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on hand
0.10
0.17
Balances with Banks
397.26
548.85
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months
2,825.00
1,860.37
Total
3,222.36
2,409.39
Note:
1. 	The above Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method set out in Ind
AS - 7- Statement of Cash Flows.
2.
Disclosure as required by Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows, change in liabilities arising from Financing activities:
Particulars
Borrowings (Current) [Refer Note 13 (a)]
3.

As at
March 31, 2017
308.63
308.63

Cash Flows
686.49
686.49

As at
March 31, 2018
995.12
995.12

Non cash transaction

	During the current year, the Company has allotted 16,277,089 equity Shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 382 per
share amounting to ` 6,380.62 million to the Shareholders of Indiagames Limited and the Walt Disney Company (India)
Private Limited pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation.
This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

12 (a)

6,380.62

(532.43)
-

(15.04)
4,901.49
17,467.74

-

12,581.29
-

4,253.27

-

4,253.27
-

Securities
General Reserve
premium reserve

Other Equity-Capital
Equity
Shares to be
Securities
General Reserve
component
issued
premium reserve
of compound
financial
instrument
6,380.62
17,467.74
4,253.27
-

6,380.62
-

Shares to be
issued

Equity
component
of compound
financial
instrument
532.43
-

Other Equity-Capital

8,755.88
162.77

12 (a)

8,918.65

Amount
528.37
8,227.51

Notes

(63.72)
152.73

-

216.45
-

Reserves and Surplus
Retained
Shares Options
earnings
Outstanding
Reserve

532.43
(41.91)
(22,650.16)

5.13
(451.18)

(22,689.50)
(456.31)

Shares Options
Outstanding
Reserve

Reserves and Surplus
Retained
earnings

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

(3,547.51)

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

(65.66)
(6.38)
6,217.85
(1,939.15)
5,616.34

(390.98)
-

-

-

(3,547.51)
-

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

1,795.12

-

(25.90)

(6.84)
(6.84)

(19.06)
-

(27.15)

(1.25)
(1.25)

-

(25.90)
-

Other Reserves
Capital Reserve Foreign Currency
on Business
Translation
Combination
Reserve

(3,547.51)

-

(3,547.51)
-

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

1.50

-

Other Reserves
Capital Reserve Foreign Currency
on Business
Translation
Combination
Reserve

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

(385.44)
1,793.62

Total Reserves
and Surplus

(63.72)
(15.04)
5,433.92
(41.91)
(385.44)

5.13
(451.18)

(5,247.51)
(456.31)

Total Reserves
and Surplus

390.98
-

Capital Reserves

390.98

-

390.98
-

Capital Reserves

For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
		
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

Balance as at April 1, 2017
(22,650.16)
152.73
Profit / (Loss) for the year
1,793.62
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of post-employment benefit
1.50
obligations (Net of tax)
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year
1,795.12
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners
Share based payments
(65.66)
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
(6.38)
Issue of equity shares [Refer Note 12 (a)]
(6,380.62)
6,217.85
Transferred to Retained earnings [Refer Note 13(a)]
Transactions with non-controlling interest (Refer Note 36)
(1,939.15)
Reclass of Reserve [Refer Note 12(b)]
(8,855.75)
(4,253.27)
13,500.00
Balance as at March 31, 2018
14,823.46
(9,294.19)
87.07
The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.		
This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of the even date.		

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2016
Profit / (Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of post- employment benefit
obligations (Net of tax)
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners
Share based payments
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
Issue of equity shares [Refer Note 12 (a)]
Transactions with non-controlling interest (Refer Note 36)
Balance as at March 31, 2017

Particulars

B) Other Equity [Refer Note 12(b)]

Balance as at April 1, 2016
Changes in equity share capital during
the year
Balance as at March 31, 2017
Changes in equity share capital during
the year
Balance as at March 31, 2018

(A) Equity share capital

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(3,574.66)

(1.25)
(1.25)

-

(3,573.41)
-

Total other
reserves

(3,573.41)

(6.84)
(6.84)

(3,566.57)
-

Total Other
reserves

(65.66)
(6.38)
(162.77)
(1,939.15)
2,041.68

(1.25)
1,793.87

1.50

2,421.77
1,793.62

Other equity
attributable to
owners

(63.72)
(15.04)
4,901.49
(41.91)
2,421.77

5.13
(6.84)
(458.02)

(1,901.03)
(456.31)

Other equity
attributable to
owners

1,939.15
2,552.37

148.48

-

464.74
148.48

Non Controlling
Interests

41.91
464.74

(0.18)
70.21

352.62
70.39

Non Controlling
Interests

(65.66)
(6.38)
(162.77)
4,594.05

(1.25)
1,942.35

1.50

2,886.51
1,942.10

Total

(63.72)
(15.04)
4,901.49
2,886.51

4.95
(6.84)
(387.81)

(1,548.41)
(385.92)

Total
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Background						
UTV Software Communications Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated under the laws of India on June 22, 1990 in Mumbai
under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was listed with National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange upto
March 16, 2012 and has been delisted pursuant to take over by The Walt Disney Group (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited. The
Company has the following subsidiaries as described in Note 36 (collectively referred as “the Group”). The Group is primarily
engaged in the business of Film Distribution, Film (including Animation) Production, Gaming and Interactive media, Television
and media business, Disney consumer products, Stage play and Support services.
1

Significant accounting policies

	
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Consolidated financial
statements (“financial statements”). These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
a

Basis of Preparation

		i	The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.
		

ii

Historical cost convention				

			

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

			

-       certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value, 				

			

-       defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at faire value, and				

			

-       share-based payments

		

iii	All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating
cycle (i.e 12 months) and other criteria set out in Schedule III (Division II) to the Act.

		

iv

Principles of consolidation

			Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group
controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 				
			

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group.

			The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like
items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Inter group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Balance
Sheet respectively.
		

v

Changes in ownership interests

			The group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.
b

Foreign currency translation

		i	Functional and presentation currency
			Items included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.
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ii

Transactions and balances

			Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. All foreign exchange gain and losses
are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the net basis within other income/(expenses).
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
		

iii

Group companies

			The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows: 				
			

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that Balance Sheet,

			-	income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and
			

-	All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

			Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate. 				
c

Revenue Recognition

		
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
revenue are net of allowances, incentives, service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities as
described below:
		

i	Revenues from licensing and distribution of movies are recognised in accordance with the licensing and
distribution agreement or on delivery of the movies, whichever is later.

		

ii	Revenues on sale/licensing of television programmes and dubbing are recognised on delivery. The amount
recognised is at the predetermined price, the collection of which is reasonably assured.

		

iii	Revenues from sale of airtime (net of trade discount, as applicable) are recognised when the related
advertisements or commercials appears before the public, i.e. on telecast.			

		

iv	Revenues from sales/licensing of Interactive Media Content are recognised in accordance with the licensing
agreement.				

		

v	Merchandise licensing advances and guarantee royalty payments are recognised based on the contractual
royalty rate when the product is sold by the licensee. Minimum guarantee royalty payments in excess of
royalties earned are generally recognised as revenue at the end of the contract term. Revenue from fixed
fee licensing deals are recognised as per the terms of the agreement over the license period on straight line
basis.				

		

vi

		

vii	Subscription revenue is recognised on a prudent basis when the Company has the right to receive the
subscription income as per the terms of the agreements and is stated net of distribution commission.

		

viii	License fees is recognised when the Company has the right to receive the licence fees as per the terms of
the agreement.

		

ix	Revenue from sale of Digital Video Discs (DVDs)/ Video Compact Discs (VCDs)/ Blu-ray Discs (BDs), Toys,
Apparels and Books is recognised on dispatch to customers. Sales are stated net of sales tax, returns,
discounts and allowances.

		

x	Revenue from distribution of mobile content and subscription is recognised in accordance with the terms
of revenue sharing agreements entered by the Company with telecom operators / ISPs and on the basis of

Revenue in respect of sale of pre-recorded programmes is recognised as per the terms of agreement.
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receipt of download / subscription reports by the Company. Until the receipt of download or subscription
report from the telecom operators / ISPs revenue is recognised on a fair estimates by the Company.
Revenues are stated at net of applicable taxes.				
		

d

xi	Support services to group companies relating to management support service, accounting/finance services,
information technology services, administrative services and human resource services are recognised as
per the terms of the agreement, on accrual basis.
Inventories					

		

i

		

ii	Raw Stock is stated at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value. Cost of raw stock is determind on First in First
Out (FIFO) basis.				

		

iii	Acquired rights pertaining to movies, animation and other content, are amortised on the exploitation of
such rights based on the management estimates of revenue potential. 				

		

iv	Cost of completed/acquired movies is amortised over the movie life cycle based upon the ratio of the
current period’s revenues to the estimated remaining total revenues (Ultimate Revenues) for each movie.
If estimate of Ultimate Revenues decreases, amortization of movie cost is accelerated. Conversely, if
estimates of Ultimate Revenues increases, movie cost amortization is decelerated. Ultimate Revenues
include revenues from all sources that will be earned over a period not to exceed ten years from the date of
the first theatrical release.				

		

v	Movies under Production are stated at cost. Cost comprises of material cost, cost of services and other
expenses. Costs get accumulated till the first theatrical release of the movie.				

		

vi	Cost of Digital Video Discs (DVDs)/Video Compact Discs (VCDs)/ Blu-ray Discs (BDs), Toys and Books
include product’s purchase price and other incidental expenses incurred to bring the inventory to their
present condition and location. Costs are determined on the basis of weighted average cost method.

		

vii	The Group evaluates the realisable value and/or revenue potential of inventories on an annual basis and
appropriate write down is made in cases where accelerated write down is warranted.

e

Inventories is valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value.				

Income taxes and deferred tax					

		The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
		The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period where the Group generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
		Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not accounted for if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.					
		The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
		Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in subsidiaries, where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

44
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investments in subsidiaries, where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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		Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.					
		Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
f

Leases					

		
As a lessee
		Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless
the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases.					
g

Business Combinations					

		The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition comprises:
		

•

the fair values of the assets transferred;

		

•	liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

		

•

equity interests issued by the Group; and

		

•

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

		Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
		

The excess of the

		

•

		

•	acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for
classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is
recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.				

consideration transferred, and

			Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions.					
			Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
			Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interest method.
			Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities or businesses are
reflected at their carrying amounts after making adjustments necessary to harmonise the accounting
policies. The financial information in the consolidated financial statements in respect of prior periods is
restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the
consolidated financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. The identity of the
reserves is preserved in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the transferor
and the difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is
transferred to capital reserve.
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h

Impairment of Assets					

		Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than Goowill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
i

Cash and cash equivalents

		
Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shortterm, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include
bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.
j

Trade receivables

		
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
k
		

Investments and other financial assets					
i

Classification

			

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

			

• 	those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss), and

			

•	those measured at amortised cost.

				The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
				For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
		

ii

Measurement

			At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.
			

Debt instruments

			Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which
the Group classifies its debt instruments.
			

•

Amortised cost

			Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
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			•	Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).
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Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/ expenses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
			• 	Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within Other Income/ Expenses in
the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income.
			

Equity investments

			The Group subsequently measures all equity investments (other than equity investments in
subsidiaries) at fair value through profit and loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in Other
Income/(Expenses) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
		

iii

Impairment of financial assets

			The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.
			For trade receivables only, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
		

iv

De-recognition of financial assets

			

A financial asset is de-recognised only when

			

•

			

•	retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
Where the Group has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Group has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

				Where the Group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Group has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
		

v

			

Income recognition
Interest income

			Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.
			

Dividends

			Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group, and the amount of
the dividend can be reliably measured. 				
l
		

Financial liabilities					
i	Classification as debt or equity

			Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance
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of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
		

ii	Initial recognition and measurement

			Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition,
they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.
		

iii

Subsequent measurement

			Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.				
		

iv

Derecognition

			A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
m

Offsetting financial instruments					

		Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
n

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)					

		Freehold land is carried at historical cost of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. 					
		Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.					
		

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value 					

		Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives which are as follows:
Assets
Computers & Servers
Leasehold Improvements
Electrical Installations & Equipments
Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipments
Plant and Machinery
		

Useful Life (in years)
3-6
3-9
10
10
5
15

The above useful lives are as specified in Schedule II to the Act.

		An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.					
		Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in
profit or loss under income/(expenses).					
		Depreciation on assets purchased/disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the
date of additions/deductions.					
o
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Group, is accounted as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.
		Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.The useful
life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.
p
		

Intangible assets					
i

Goodwill:

			The Company has recognised goodwill on amalgamation pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation between
the Company and its group company, The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited (TWDC), sanctioned
by the order of the National Company Law Tribunal dated June 8, 2017 (the ‘Scheme’). (Refer Note 31)
			Pursuant to the Scheme, goodwill on amalgamation is amortised over a period of 5 years on straight line
basis. Goodwill on consolidation of subsidiaries is not amortised.				
			Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Gains and losses on the disposals of a cash generating unit include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the cash generating unit sold.				
			Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or group of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which in our case are the operating
segments.
		

ii

Other intangible assets:

			Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives as mentiond below. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
Assets
Computer Software
EPG License
Customer Contracts
q

Useful Life (in years)
3
10
3

Trade and other payables					

		These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.					
r

Borrowings					

		Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.					
		Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income/(expenses).					
		Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
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measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.					
		Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment
as a consequence of the breach.					
		

Compound instruments:					

		The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the Group are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date. The
equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured.					
s

Borrowing costs					

		General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
		
t

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Provisions					

		Provisions for legal claims and discounts/incentives are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.					
		At the end of each reporting period, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at a future date. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
u

Contingent Liabilities 					

		Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.
v
		

Employee benefits					
i

Short-term obligations				

			Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, are
recognised in respect of employees services upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.				
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ii

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

			The liabilities for earned and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
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present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.
			The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet since the Group does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to occur.”				
		

iii

Post-employment obligations				

			

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:				

			

-   defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and				

			

- defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insurance corporation

			

Gratuity obligations				

			The Group provide for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary
and the tenure of employment. The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined
benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to yields on Government Securities at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
			The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.				
			Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.
			Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
			

Defined contribution plans				

			

Provident fund and employees’ state insurance corporation

			The Group pays provident fund and employees’ state insurance commission contributions to publicly
administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and
the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
		

iv

Share-based payments

			Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and
Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) of The Walt Disney Group, USA, the ultimate holding Group.
			The fair value of options granted under the Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and Restricted Stock Units
(RSUs) is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:
			

-	including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)				

			- 	excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and
			- 	including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holdings
shares for a specific period of time).
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			The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
w

Contributed equity

		Equity shares are classified as equity.
		Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.
x

Dividends					

		Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.
y

Earnings per share

		i

Basic earnings per share

			

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

			

•

the profit attributable to owners of the Group

			

•

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

		

Diluted earnings per share				

ii

			Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:
			

•	the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

			

• 	the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

		

Standards issued but not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company

z

			
On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract
with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. 					
			

The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 					

			

The five steps in the model are as follows:					

			

i

			

ii	Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of
initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach). The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is
financial periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.				

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. 				

			The Company is in the process of assessing Ind AS 115’s full impact and intends to adopt Ind AS 115 no
earlier than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018.
		
aa

Rounding off amounts					

			All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest rupees
millions as per the requirement of schedule III (Division II), unless otherwise stated.
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2

Critical estimates and judgements						

	The preparation of financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies.
	This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different that those
originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
a

Estimation of defined benefit obligation

		
The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for
post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of such obligations.
		The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should
be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the
defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates
of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability. (Refer Note 21).
b

Estimation of current tax expense and deferred tax					

		The calculation of the Group’s tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of
certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant
tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may give
rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. (Refer Note 26)
		The recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient
and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can
be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts.
c

Estimation of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities					

		The Group exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent
liabilities which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgement is necessary in assessing
the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of
the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual liability may be
different from the originally estimated as provision. (Refer Notes 14 and 28)
d

Estimated useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

		
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation and amortisation is derived after determining an estimate of an
asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of Group’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets
as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. For the
relative size of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. (Refer Notes 3 and 5)
e

Estimation of Provision for Inventory					

		The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based on an estimate of the realisability of inventories.
Write downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of estimates of ultimate revenue from the
movies. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.
f

Exceptional items					

		Exceptional items are expense items recorded in the year in which they have been determined by management as being
material by their size or incidence and are presented separately within the results of the Group. The determination of
which items are disclosed as exceptional items will affect the presentation of profit for the year and requires a degree
of judgement. Details relating to exceptional items reported during the year are set out in Note 25.			
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-

Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2017

-

Depreciation charge during the year

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018
1.12

-

Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2017

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018

-

Accumulated depreciation

103.13

80.79

-

26.92

53.87

-

183.92

1.12

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2017

-

-

Disposals

-

183.92

-

1.12

130.05

53.87

26.92

26.95

183.92

-

183.92

Additions

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2017

Gross carrying amount

1.12

-

Depreciation charge during the year

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2017

-

1.12

-

1.12

Freehold
Leasehold
land Improvements

Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2016

Accumulated depreciation

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2017

Additions

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2016

Gross carrying amount

Particulars

Note 3 : Property, plant and equipment [Refer Notes 1 (n) and 2(d)]

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
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8.67

5.30

-

2.97

2.33

-

13.97

-

0.49

13.48

11.15

2.33

1.51

0.82

13.48

2.28

11.20

Plant and
Machinery

22.99

16.86

(0.37)

5.19

12.04

-

39.85

(1.30)

0.69

40.46

28.42

12.04

6.30

5.74

40.46

0.97

39.49

Office
Equipments

10.91

9.96

-

3.26

6.70

-

20.87

-

-

20.87

14.17

6.70

3.39

3.31

20.87

-

20.87

Electrical
Installations &
Equipment

6.83

5.15

-

1.91

3.24

-

11.98

-

1.18

10.80

7.56

3.24

1.75

1.49

10.80

0.39

10.41

Furniture &
Fixtures

166.02

179.35

-

69.27

110.08

-

345.37

-

99.77

245.60

135.52

110.08

60.11

49.97

245.60

43.48

202.12

Computers &
Servers

319.67

297.41

(0.37)

109.52

188.26

-

617.08

(1.30)

102.13

516.25

327.99

188.26

99.98

88.28

516.25

47.12

469.13

Total
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Note 4 : Capital work-in-progress [Refer Notes 1 (n)]
Particulars
Balance as at April 1, 2016
Additions during the year
Transfers during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2017
Additions during the year
Transfers during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2018

Capital work-in-progress
0.75
50.56
(0.75)
50.56
18.00
(68.56)

Note 5: Goodwill and other intangible assets [Refer Notes 1(p), 1(h) and 2(d)]
Particulars

Goodwill on
Goodwill on
Amalgamation Consolidation

Total
Goodwill

Computer
Software

EPG
License

Customer
Contracts

Total Other
Intangibles

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying
2,587.94
4,311.11
6,899.05
33.60
7.38
28.00
68.98
amount as at April 1, 2016
Additions
6.72
6.72
Disposals
(7.38)
(7.38)
Closing gross carrying
2,587.94
4,311.11
6,899.05
40.32
28.00
68.32
amount as at March 31, 2017
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
Opening accumulated
517.59
72.07
589.66
13.32
1.03
9.33
23.68
amortisation and impairment
as at April 1, 2016
Amortisation charge during
517.59
517.59
12.69
0.63
9.33
22.65
the year
Impairment charge during the
541.68
541.68
year *
Disposals
(1.66)
(1.66)
Closing accumulated
1,035.18
613.75
1,648.93
26.01
18.66
44.67
amortisation and impairment
as at March 31, 2017
Net carrying amount as at
1,552.76
3,697.36
5,250.12
14.31
9.34
23.65
March 31, 2017
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying
2,587.94
4,311.11
6,899.05
40.32
28.00
68.32
amount as at April 1, 2017
Additions
9.15
9.15
Closing gross carrying
2,587.94
4,311.11
6,899.05
49.47
28.00
77.47
amount as at March 31,
2018
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
Opening accumulated
1,035.18
613.75
1,648.93
26.01
18.66
44.67
amortisation and impairment
as at April 1, 2017
Amortisation charge during
517.59
517.59
9.20
9.34
18.54
the year
Impairment charge during the
year
Closing accumulated
1,552.77
613.75
2,166.52
35.21
28.00
63.21
amortisation and impairment
as at March 31, 2018
Net carrying amount as at
1,035.17
3,697.36
4,732.53
14.26
14.26
March 31, 2018
* The carrying amount of the Media and Television segment has been reduced to its recoverable amount by recognition of an impairment
loss against goodwill arising on consolidation. This loss has been disclosed as a separate line item in Statement of Profit and Loss.
(Refer Note 25)
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Segment level summary of goodwill allocation is presented below:
Media and
Television

Disney
Gaming and
Total
Consumer
Interactive
Product
Media
As at year ended March 31, 2018
3,653.38
828.14
251.01
4,732.53
As at year ended March 31, 2017
3,757.11
1,242.00
251.01
5,250.12
The recoverable value of the above CGU's has been determined using Value in use method.
The following table sets out the key assumption for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them.
Media and
Television
As at year ended March 31, 2018
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term Growth Rate
As at year ended March 31, 2017
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term Growth Rate

Disney
Consumer
Product

Gaming and
Interactive
Media

15.40%
6.00%

19.60%
6.00%

23.10%
6.00%

17.34%
6.00%

18.93%
6.00%

18.02%
6.00%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:
Assumption
Long-term growth rate

Pre-tax discount rates

Approach used to determining values
This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash
flows beyond the budget period. The rates have been considered
keeping in mind the growth during the projected period, the expected
growth rates of the industry and the overall economy in general.
Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the
countries in which they operate.

The recoverable amount of this CGU would equal its carrying amount if the key assumptions were to change as follows:
Media and Television
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term growth rate

March 31, 2018
From
To
15.40%
19.95%
6.00%
**

March 31, 2017
From
To
17.34%
17.34%
6.00%
**

Disney Consumer Product
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term growth rate

March 31, 2018
From
To
19.60%
69.08%
6.00%
**

March 31, 2017
From
To
18.93%
46.93%
6.00%
**

March 31, 2018
Gaming and Interactive Media
From
To
Pre-tax discount rates
23.10%
170.98%
Long-term growth rate
6.00%
**
**The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would
amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the cash generating units.
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March 31, 2017
From
To
18.02%
53.07%
6.00%
**
not cause the carrying
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Note 6 (a): Non-current Investments (Refer Note 1(k))

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2018

Particulars

Number of Units

`

Number of Units

`

-

-

62,500

0.04

-

-

600,000

*

0.01

352,000

Investments in Equity Shares (fully paid-up)
Quoted equity investments at Fair value through Profit
and Loss (FVPL)
Radaan Mediaworks India Limited [Net of Impairment
aggregating to ` NIL (March 31, 2017: ` 0.46 million)]
Unquoted equity investments at FVPL
United Teleshopping and Marketing Company Limited
(Refer Note below)
Homland Network Corporation of USD 0.001 each

352,000

Total equity investments

0.01

0.01
0.05

Investments in preference shares (fully paid-up)
Unquoted preference shares at FVPL
Homland Network Corporation

125,000

Total preference shares
Total non-current investments
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market
value thereof (gross)
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of
Investments
Net carrying value of investments

*

125,000

*

-

-

0.01

0.05

-

0.50

0.01

0.01

-

0.46

0.01

0.05

* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group.

Notes:
As per Board resolution dated March 09, 2018, the approval of the board is taken to write off the investment held by the
Company in United Teleshoping and Marketing Limited.
6 (b) Loans
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Non-current
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits
Current
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful security deposits

142.43
142.43

131.49
131.49

30.88
0.80
(0.80)
30.88

32.49
0.80
(0.80)
32.49
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6 (c) Other Financial assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Non-current
Unbilled revenue

202.14
202.14

-

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on bank deposits
Unbilled revenue

1.29
2,941.18
2,942.47

1.34
461.79
463.13

6(d) Trade receivables (Refer Notes 1(j) and 34)

Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful
Total
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
3,142.63
2,810.88
159.76
61.39
3,302.39
2,872.27
(159.76)
(61.39)
3,142.63
2,810.88

6(e) Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Notes 1(i) and Note below)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts
- In Exchange Earner’s Foreign currency Accounts
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand

397.26
2,825.00
0.10
3,222.36

547.47
1.38
1,860.37
0.17
2,409.39

Note:
There are no repatriation restrictions with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period
and prior periods.
6(f)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents							
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Fixed Deposits (Refer Note below)
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months
0.38
0.36
- with original maturity of more than 12 months
1.40
1.40
1.78
1.76
Note:
Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 1.55 million (March 31, 2017: ` 1.55 million) are provided as security against various
bank guarantees given and Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 0.10 million (March 31, 2017: ` 0.10 Millions) is provided as
security to the Sales Tax Authorities, Delhi.				
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7

Income tax assets (net) [Refer Note 1(e)]							

Income tax assets (net)
Movement in Income Tax Assets (net):
Particulars
Opening income tax asset/ (liability) at the beginning of the year
Withholding taxes / advance taxes paid during the year
Refund received during the year
Current income tax adjusted for the year/prior years
Net income tax asset/ (liability) at the end of year
8

Deferred tax assets (net) [Refer Note 1(e)]
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
Particulars
Deferred income tax assets
Miminum alternative tax credit
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Allowance for doubtful Financial and Non-Financial Assets
Provision on Unabsorbed Depreciation and Business Losses
Provision for Employee benefits obligations
Expenses disallowed under Section 35DD of the Income Tax Act, 1961
allowable in later years
Financial Assets at Fair Value through OCI
Disallowed under Section 40(a) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 allowable in later
years
Disallowed under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
Inventory Amortisation
Merger expenses
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets

9

Other non-current assets
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses
Balance with Government Authorities

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
3,991.37
3,441.32
3,991.37
3,441.32
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
3,441.32
3,102.00
629.15
1,053.96
(31.14)
(627.24)
(47.96)
(87.40)
3,991.37
3,441.32

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
181.13
15.43
5.78
83.00
42.03
0.07

133.22
20.67
86.78
224.99
31.36
0.38

1.86
-

12.28

6.86
336.16

9.34
519.02

58.23
2.01
60.24
275.92

146.59
2.03
92.41
241.03
277.99

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1.20
50.78
51.98

1.67
35.10
36.77
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10

Inventories [Refer Note 1(d)]

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
2,009.01
2,328.86
64.09
1.00
2,010.01
2,392.95

Unamortized cost of Completed/ Acquired Movie Copyrights
Movies Under Production
Program/Film Acquisitions
11

Other current assets

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Balance with Government Authorities
Advance to Suppliers:
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less : Allowance for doubtful advances to supplier
Prepaid expenses
Others
		
Movement in Allowance for doubtful advance to supplier:
Particulars

806.32

444.48

236.08
284.70
(284.70)
26.29
11.99
1,080.68

116.39
1,394.31
(1,394.31)
35.59
0.13
596.59

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,394.31
1,382.86
(1,109.61)
11.45
284.70
1,394.31

Allowance as at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Allowance as at the end of the year
12(a) Equity Share capital
Authorised
1,660,241,500 (March 31, 2017: 1,398,991,500) equity shares of ` 10 each
1,666,000 (March 31, 2017: 1,666,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares of ` 1,500 each

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
891,865,574 (March 31, 2017: 875,588,485) equity shares of ` 10 each, fully
paid-up
Total

16,602.42
2,499.00

13,989.92
2,499.00

19,101.42

16,488.92

8,918.65

8,755.88

8,918.65

8,755.88

Notes:
(i)
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
(Refer Note 34):
Equity Shares:
Year ended March 31, 2018
Year ended March 31, 2017
Numbers
Amount
Numbers
Amount
Balance as at the Beginning of the year
875,588,485
8,755.88
52,837,473
528.37
Add: Shares issued during the year
(Refer Notes 1 and 2 below)
Add: Shares issued during the year on
account of conversion of preference shares
(Refer Note 3 below)
Balance as at the end of the year
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16,277,089

162.77

817,692,308

8,176.92

-

-

5,058,704

50.59

891,865,574

8,918.65

875,588,485

8,755.88
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Notes:
1.

2.
3.

During the current year, the Company has allotted 16,277,089 equity shares of ` 10 each at a premium
of ` 382 per share to the Shareholders of Indiagames Limited and The Walt Disney Company (India)
Private Limited pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation and arrangement sacntioned by the honourable
National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated June 08, 2017.
During the previous year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has allotted 817,692,308 equity shares of
` 10 each at a premium of ` 3 per share to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the
holding company. 					
During the previous year ended March 31, 2017, On January 9, 2017, the Company has issued 5,058,704
equity shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 484 each to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) on
conversion of 1,666,000 Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares.

(ii)

Terms and rights attached to
Equity Shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.
									
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company (No. of shares)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the Holding
Company

880,313,756

875,431,485

(iv)

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company (% shareholding )
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the Holding
98.70%
99.98%
Company

(v)

Authorised Share Capital
During the current year, the authorised equity share capital of ` 13,989.92 millions comprising of 1,398,991,500
equity shares of ` 10 each has been increased to ` 16,602.42 millions comprising of 1,66,02,41,500 equity
shares of ` 10 each, pursuant to the composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement sacntioned by the
honourable National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated June 08, 2017.

(vi)

Details of shares held by the Holding Company (No. of shares)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited

880,313,756

875,431,485

(vii) Details of shares held by the Holding Company (% shareholding)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited

98.70%

99.98%
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6,380.62

(532.43)
-

-

-

-

-

-

17,467.74

(15.04)
4,901.49
-

-

-

-

12,581.29

Securities
premium
reserve

4,253.27

-

-

-

-

4,253.27

General
Reserve

(22,650.16)

532.43
(41.91)

-

(456.31)
5.13

(22,689.50)

152.73

(63.72)
-

-

-

-

216.45

Reserves and Surplus
Retained
Shares
earnings
Options
Outstanding
Reserve

390.98

-

-

-

-

390.98

(385.44)

(63.72)
(15.04)
5,433.92
(41.91)

-

(456.31)
5.13

(5,247.51)

Capital
Total
Reserves Reserves and
Surplus

(3,547.51)

-

-

-

(3,547.51)

-

(6.84)

-

(25.90) (3,573.41)

-

(6.84)

-

(19.06) (3,566.57)

2,421.77

(63.72)
(15.04)
4,901.49
(41.91)

(6.84)

(456.31)
5.13

(1,901.03)

Other reserves
Other equity
Capital
Foreign Total other attributable
to owners
Reserve on
Currency
reserves
Business Translation
Combination
Reserve

464.74

41.91

-

70.39
(0.18)

352.62

Non
Controlling
Interests

2,886.51

(63.72)
(15.04)
4,901.49
-

(6.84)

(1,548.41)
(385.92)
4.95

Total

Balance at the April 1, 2017
6,380.62
17,467.74
4,253.27 (22,650.16)
152.73
390.98
(385.44)
(3,547.51)
(25.90) (3,573.41)
2,421.77
464.74 2,886.51
Loss for the year
1,793.62
1,793.62
1,793.62
148.48
1,942.10
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
post-employment benefit obligations
Foreign currency translation
(1.25)
(1.25)
(1.25)
(1.25)
adjustments
Share based payments
(65.66)
(65.66)
(65.66)
(65.66)
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
(6.38)
(6.38)
(6.38)
(6.38)
Reclass of Reserve*
(8,855.75) (4,253.27)
13,500.00
(390.98)
(0.00)
(0.00)
(0.00)
Issue of equity shares
(6,380.62)
6,217.85
6,217.85
(162.77)
(162.77)
Transactions with non-controlling
(1,939.15)
(1,939.15)
(1,939.15)
1,939.15
interest (Refer Note 36)
Balance as at March 31, 2018
- 14,823.46
(9,294.19)
87.07
5,616.34
(3,547.51)
(27.15) (3,574.66)
2,041.68
2,552.37 4,594.05
* Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgmation approved by NCLT (Refer Note - 31), the Board has approved (via Board resolution dated October 13, 2017) to write off balance in Retained earnings for ` 15,000 millions in such an order whereby
the balance available as on April 01, 2015 in Business Restructuring Reserve is utilised first followed by Capital Reserve, General Reserve and Securities Premium Account.
Nature and Purpose:
Equity component of compound financial instrument
Under Ind AS, the preference share instrument has both a liability component and an equity component (therefore, a compound instrument). The liability component is recognized at fair value - calculated by discounting the cash flows at
conversion at a market rate for a similar debt host instrument. The equity component is measured as the residual amount. [Refer Notes 1(l)(i) and 13 (a)]. This equity component after issuance of shares has been transferred to retained
earnings as at March 31, 2017.
Shares to be issued
Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer Note 31), the additional equity shares to be issued by the Company have been disclosed as “”Shares to be issued””. These have been subsequently issued on July 24, 2017.
Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
General Reserve
General Reserve is a free reserve and is available for distribution of dividend, issue of bonus shares, buyback of Company’s securities. It was created by transfer of amounts out of distributable profits.
Shares Options Outstanding Reserve
The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan under which the employees are entitled for shares of the ultimate holding company
(Refer Note 39).
The amount includes share based payment expense recognised ` -26.45 million (March 31, 2017 ` 45.29 million) netted off with ` 35.39 million (March 31, 2017 ` 190.42 million) towards options exercised during the year.
Capital Reserve
The Company had allotted warrants with an option to convert it into equity shares within a period of 18 months from the date of issue on May 6, 2008. The aforesaid warrants have lapsed and the amount received was forfeited and
transferred to capital reserve.
Capital Reserve on Business Combination
Capital Reserve on Business Combination is used to record excess consideration to net assets in United Home Entertainment Private Limited (‘UHEPL’), paid to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte, Ltd. (‘TWDC’), Singapore, by
Disney Entertainment (India) Limited, India (‘DEIL’) in lieu of entire shareholding by TWDC in UHEPL, pursuant to a Share Swap Arrangement (‘SSA’) between TWDC and DEIL dated July 24, 2017 (Refer note 32(a)).
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve:
Exchange difference arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed-off.

Loss for the year
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of
post-employment benefit obligations
Foreign currency translation
adjustments
Share based payments
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
Issue of equity shares
Transactions with non-controlling
interest (Refer Note 36)
Balance as at March 31, 2017

Balance at the April 1, 2016

Other Equity-Capital
Equity Shares to be
component
issued
of compound
financial
instrument
532.43
6,380.62

Note 12 (b) - Other equity

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
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13(a) Borrowings (non-current) (Refer Note 1(r))

Unsecured:
Loan from related party (Refer Note 34)

Maturity
Date

Interest Rate

Terms of
repayment

November
26, 2017

8.25% p.a.

Repayable
after 3 years

As at
March 31,
2017

As at
March 31,
2018

Total non-current borrowings
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt
(included in Note 13 (c))
Less: Interest accrued but not due
(included in Note 13 (c))
Non-current borrowings (as per balance
sheet)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Borrowings (Current) (Refer Note 1(r))

Unsecured:
From Banks (Refer note below)
- Working Capital Loans
- Cash Credits

As at
March 31,
2017

Terms of
repayment

As at
March 31,
2018

Payable on
demand
Payable on
demand

900.48

-

94.88

308.87

995.36
0.24
995.12

308.87
0.24
308.63

Total current borrowings
Less : Interest accrued but not due [included in Note 13 (c)]
Current Borrowings
Note:
Loan from Banks are supported by the letter of guarantee from Disney Enterprises, Inc.
13(b) Trade payables (Refer Note 1(q))

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Trade payables (Refer Note 34)
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(Refer Note 29)
Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises

0.30

0.34

5,740.08

4,433.40

5,740.38

4,433.74

13(c) Other financial liabilities (current)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposits from distributors
Common Marketing Fund
Payable to Capital Creditors

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.24
0.33
6.86
6.31
0.85
0.85
6.94
7.95
14.43
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14

Provisions (non-current) (Refer Notes 1(t) and 2(c))
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for Contingencies (Refer Note below)

32.30

29.12

32.30

29.12

Provision with respect to disputed tax matters (Customs duty, Sales tax, Service tax and Withholding taxes) is made in
accordance with the Company’s policy:
Particulars
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening Balance
Add: Additional provision made during the year
Less: Provision Reversed

29.12

25.00

3.18

5.74

-

(1.62)

Closing Balance
32.30
29.12
The timing and the amount of cash outflows, if any, that may arise from the above matters will be determined only in
future.
Provisions (Current) (Refer Notes 1(t) and 2(c))
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for Contingencies (Refer Note (a) below)
Provision for Onerous Contract of Rent (Refer Note (b) below)

-

-

16.40

-

16.40

-

(a)

The Company had made and utilised the provision towards custom duty payable on import of goods due to denial
of benefit of Serve from India scheme (‘SFIS’) as per the Foreign Trade policy.
Particulars
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening Balance

-

20.47

Less: Amounts used

-

(20.47)

Closing Balance

-

-

(b)

The Company has made provision towards payment in respect of non-cancellable content acquisition agreement
as per Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contigent Liabilities and Contigent Assets.
Particulars
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening Balance
Add: Additional provision made during the year
Less: Amounts used
Closing Balance
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36.52

16.40

-

-

(36.52)

16.40

-
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Employee benefits obligation (Non-current) [Refer Notes 1(v), 2(a) and 21]

Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
65.44
46.31
24.72
18.67
90.16
64.98
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Employee benefits obligation (Current) [Refer Notes 1(v), 2(a) and 21]
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

16

28.09
3.18
31.27

29.20
8.18
37.38

Income tax liabilities (net)

Wealth tax (net of advances) (Refer Note below)

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.11
0.11
0.11
0.11

Note: There is no movement in the above years.
17

Other liabilities (non-current)

Deferred operating lease obligiation [Refer Note 1(f)]
Deferred Interst Income
Total

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
177.53
179.20
30.16
207.69
179.20

Other liabilities (Current)

Statutory dues (including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source)
Advance Billing to Customers
Advance from Customers
Deferred operating lease obligation [Refer Note 1(f)]
Deferred Interest Income
Other Liabilities
Total
18

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,146.71
439.38
255.78
968.68
85.26
124.44
1.67
1.67
37.40
0.22
2.98
1,527.04
1,537.15

Revenue from operations [Refer Notes 1(c) and 34]
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Sales and services revenue (Net) :
Distribution and Licensing of Movies
Television Content, Airtime Sales and Dubbing Services
Royalty on Merchandise Licensing
Support Services to Group Companies (Refer Note 34)
Interactive Media and Mobile Services
Others

3,358.33
4,995.99
100.58
170.37
1,315.81
21.71
9,962.79

5,257.90
5,241.17
735.55
103.35
1,696.12
23.78
13,057.87
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Other income
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost:
On Fixed Deposits
On Unwinding of discount on security deposits
On Others
Interest income on income tax refund
Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income
Net foreign exchange gains
Provision for diminution in the value of investments written back

20

90.72
11.68
168.77
11.28
40.54
322.99

Direct Costs

Amortisation of movie costs
Telecast Fees
Participation Costs
Print Costs
Royalty Expenses
Advertisement and publicity
Footage and Programming Cost
Distribution Cost
Stage Play Production Costs
Miscellaneous expenses

21

98.70
13.22
12.00
16.57
6.72
12.89
7.94
0.46
168.50

Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
2,034.12
4,244.11
108.24
175.97
1,543.79
1,656.28
36.54
194.38
601.13
1,035.34
96.03
386.77
190.24
294.45
17.07
18.90
0.04
88.92
92.36
85.46
4,719.56
8,180.58

Employee benefits expenses [Refer Note 1(v)]
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, Wages, Allowances and Other Benefits
1,421.23
1,689.15
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
57.89
72.08
Gratuity (Refer Note (i) below)
39.55
23.69
Share based Payments (Refer Note 39) *
(26.45)
45.29
Staff welfare expenses
34.87
39.40
Less: Recoveries from Group company (Refer Note 34)
(373.17)
(227.46)
1,153.92
1,642.15
*In the previous year, accrual for Share based payment was estimated at ` 137.66 million, against which during the
year the Company received actual charge of ` 60.82 million (including charge for six months of current year) from the
Ultimate Holding Company. Due to this, the current year actual expense is a credit balance of ` 26.45 million instead
of debit balance of ` 71.20 million.						

66

Notes:
(I)
Gratuity
The Group provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees
who are in continuous service for period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15
days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan as well as unfunded
plan and the group makes contribution to recognised funds in India in case of funded plan. The Group makes
contributions to recognised funds in India. The Group does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level
of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.
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(II)

Leave encashment
The leave obligation cover the Company’s liability for sick and earned leave. Provision for leave encashment as
at March 31, 2018 is ` 27.90 million (March 31, 2017: ` 26.85 million).

(III)

Defined contribution plans
The Group contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employees’ Provident Fund, Employees’ Pension
Scheme, Employees’ State Insurance Corporation and Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund towards post
employment benefits. Contributions are made to registered funds, administered by the government, in India for
employees at the rate as per regulations. The obligation of the Group is limited to the amount contributed and it
has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Provident and Pension Fund
Employees State Insurance Corporation
Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund
Total
* Amount is below rounding off norms adopted by the Group.

Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
57.89
72.05
0.03
*
*
57.89
72.08

(IV)

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
(a) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation
over the year are as follows:
Particulars
Funded plan
Unfunded
plan
Total
Present
Fair value
Net
Amount
Amount
value of
of plan
amount
obligation
assets
Balance at the beginning of the year as at
87.44
(35.58)
51.86
23.15
75.01
April 1, 2016
Current service cost
11.83
11.83
6.06
17.89
Interest expense / (Income)
6.77
(2.75)
4.02
1.78
5.80
Total amount recognised in profit and loss
18.60
(2.75)
15.85
7.84
23.69
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount
0.15
0.15
0.15
included in interest expense/(income)
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic
(0.19)
(0.19)
0.27
0.08
assumptions
(Gain )/loss from change in financial
0.83
0.83
0.96
1.79
assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses
(5.79)
(5.79)
(1.63)
(7.42)
Total amount recognised in other
(5.15)
0.15
(5.00)
(0.40)
(5.40)
comprehensive income/(loss)
Employer contributions
(12.34)
(12.34)
(12.34)
Benefit payments
(17.08)
17.12
0.04
(5.49)
(5.45)
Balance at the end of the year as at
83.81
(33.40)
50.41
25.10
75.51
March 31, 2017
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Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year as at
April 1, 2017
Current service cost
Interest expense / (Income)
Past Service Cost
Total amount recognised in profit and loss
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount
included in interest expense/(income)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic
assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial
assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses
Total amount recognised in other
comprehensive income/(loss)
Employer contributions
Benefit payments
Balance at the end of the year as at
March 31, 2018

Present
value of
obligation
83.81

Fair value
of plan
assets
(33.40)

3.01
1.82
23.36
28.19

Net
amount

Amount

Total
Amount

50.41

25.10

75.51

(0.89)
(0.89)

3.01
0.93
23.36
27.30

5.60
1.70
4.95
12.25

8.61
2.63
28.31
39.55

-

(1.90)

(1.90)

-

(1.90)

0.82

-

0.82

3.10

3.92

(2.69)

-

(2.69)

(3.78)

(6.47)

0.97
(0.90)

(1.90)

0.97
(2.80)

1.86
1.18

2.83
(1.62)

(9.02)
102.08

(17.14)
9.07
(44.26)

(17.14)
0.05
57.82

(2.82)
35.71

(17.14)
(2.77)
93.53

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Particulars
As at
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Present value of funded obligations
102.08
83.81
87.44
Fair value of plan assets
(44.26)
(33.40)
(35.58)
Deficit of funded plan
57.82
50.41
51.86
Unfunded plans
35.71
25.10
23.15
(b) Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows,
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a. Discount rate (Per annum)
7.71 to 7.80%
6.81 to 7.90%
b. Rate of escalation in salary (Per Annum)
10.00 to 11.00% 8.00 to 12.00%
c. Rate of Employee Turnover (Per Annum)
9.00% 14.00 to 19.00%
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

Particulars

(c) Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of the desired benefit obligation to change in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Particulars
Discount rate (+1% / -1%)
Salary growth rate (+1% / -1%)
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) (+1% / -1%)
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As at March 31, 2018
Increase
Decrease
(6.74)
7.71
3.81
(3.81)
0.29
(0.40)

As at March 31, 2017
Increase
Decrease
(3.72)
4.14
1.93
(1.96)
0.12
(0.16)
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The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptons constant.
In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be corrected.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(Present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the project unit credit method) at the end of the reporting
period has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.
The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior
period.						
(d) The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars

As at
March 31,
2018

Insurance Managed Funds (LIC)

As at
March 31,
2017

As at
April 1,
2016

44.26

33.40

35.58

(100%)

(100%)

(100%)

(e) Risk Exposure
The Group is exposed to below risks, pertaining to its defined benefit plans.
Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond
yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The plan
asset are invested in insurance managed fund, which in turn make investments
in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be
partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.
The Group ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that
has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit
plans. Within this framework, the Group’s ALM objective is to match assets to the pension obligations by investing
in insurance managed fund, which in turn make investment in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that
match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.
(f)

Defined benefit liability and employer contribution

Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis.The Group considers that the contribution rates set at the last
valuation date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the agreed period and that regular contributions, which are
based on service costs, will not increase significantly.
Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2019 are INR ` 28.09 millions.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 10 years (2017 – 10 years). The expected maturity
analysis of undiscounted gratuity obligation is as follows:
Particulars

1st
Following
Year

2nd
Following
Year

3rd
Following
Year

4th
Following
Year

5th
Following
Year

Sum of
Years 6 To
10

As at March 31, 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity)

43,199.44

11.06

11.91

12.96

13.17

52.67

Total

43,199.44

11.06

11.91

12.96

13.17

52.67

As at March 31, 2017
Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity)

42,840.04

12.36

12.19

12.03

11.89

39.68

Total

42,840.04

12.36

12.19

12.03

11.89

39.68
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Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3)
Amortisation of Goodwill (Refer Note 5)
Amortisation of Other Intangible assets (Refer Note 5)
Less: Recovery from Group companies

23

Other expenses

Rent (Refer Note 30)
Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Legal and Professional fees
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees
- Certification fees/Other services
- Reimbursement of Expenses
Rates and taxes
Electricity
Insurance
Travel, Conveyance and Accommodation
Advertising, publicity and business promotion
Communication and Postage Expenses
Allowance for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Advertising, publicity and business promotion
Distribution Costs
Net Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
Advances written off
Add/(Less) : Allowance for doubtful Financial and Non-Financial Assets
Sales commission
Central Support Expenses (Refer Note 34)
Allowance for Onerous Contract of Content acquisition (Refer Note 14)
Miscellaneous expenses
Less : Recovery from Group companies (Refer Note 34)
Net Loss on Sale of Investments
Total
24

Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
300.70
304.07
129.24
99.54
130.80
143.80
9.45
0.33
0.03
367.19
34.00
25.70
111.55
231.84
29.28
103.65
119.78
534.11
0.65
1,111.75
(1,109.60)
2.15
5.88
151.70
16.40
84.71
(356.76)
0.38
2,032.76

19.74
0.46
0.10
208.85
28.83
37.76
91.10
165.82
32.90
18.02
127.52
257.34
2.53
37.76
9.39
9.39
19.29
137.42
86.04
(153.69)
1,674.59

Finance Costs
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit
or loss:
- Preference shares at amortised cost
- Borrowing from banks
Interest on borrowings from Related parties (Refer Note 34)
Other borrowing costs
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Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
109.52
99.98
517.59
517.59
18.54
22.65
(464.32)
181.33
640.22

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
46.40
3.07
2.36
51.83

192.43
734.13
2.54
929.10
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Exceptional Items [Refer Note 2(t)]

Impairment of Goodwill (Refer Notes 5, (a) and (b) below)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
541.68
541.68

Notes:
(a) The Company performed annual impairment test as at year ended March 31, 2018, for cash generating units
(CGUs), which were generally taken as legal entities or businesses within the group. The recoverable amount, as
at year end, has been determined based on a “”Value-in-use”” method using cash flow projections / forecasts
from the financial budget for 8 years, as approved by the senior management of the Company. The Company
prepares future cash flows for periods longer than 5 years, as a practice, on an annual basis and is confident
that such projections over 5 years are reliable given the robust internal process followed and also on account
of its ability, basis past experience, of estimating future cash flows accurately over such a longer period. It was
concluded that carrying amount of the CGUs did not exceed its recoverable amount.
The discounting rate used for the value-in-use calculations were based on the pre-tax weighted average cost of
capital at 15.40 % (March 31, 2017: 17.34%).
(b)

26

In the previous year, Disney Entertainment (India) Limited was having significant business losses and its net
worth was eroded. The recoverable amount of goodwill pertaining to ‘Media and Television’ segment as at
year end has been determined by an independent valuer, based on a ‘value-in-use’ method using cashflow
projections / forecasts from the financial budget approved by the senior management of the Company. The
Company has recognised an impairment loss on goodwill on consolidation for ` 541.68 million.
Income tax expense [Refer Notes 1(e) and 2(b)]
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) Income tax expense
Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year
47.96
83.67
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
3.73
Total current tax expense
47.96
87.40
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax for the year
1.83
71.06
Total deferred tax expense/ (benefit)
1.83
71.06
Total Income tax expenses
49.79
158.46
b) Effective tax reconciliation:
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit / (Loss) before tax
1,991.89
(227.46)
Statutory Tax rate (%)
34.950%
34.608%
Tax at the Indian Statutory Tax Rate
696.17
(78.72)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable
(38.75)
1.06
income
Adjustments for current tax and deferred tax of prior periods
3.73
Tax losses on which no deferred income tax was recognised
(607.63)
232.39
Income Tax Expense
49.79
158.46

71

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
c)

The details of carried forward business losses and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax asset is
recognised is as follows:
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Carried forward Business Losses (Refer Note (i) below)
14,706.22
18,043.75
Long Term Capital Losses (Refer Note (i) below)
1,319.01
1,319.01
Short Term Capital Losses (Refer Note (i) below)
104.17
104.17
Unabsorbed Depreciation (Refer Note (i) below)
3,424.97
3,424.97
19,554.37
22,891.90
Financial year
Carried forward Business Losses:
2009-10
2010-11
2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
Total
Long Term Capital Losses:
2011-12
2012-13
2014-15
Total
Short Term Capital Losses:
2010-11
2011-12
2013-14
2014-15
Total
Unabsorbed depreciation:
2006-07 to 2016-17
Total
Notes:

As at March 31, 2018
Unused tax Potential tax
losses
benefits

As at March 31, 2017
Unused tax
Potential tax
losses
benefits

1,054.10
3,941.86
2,687.04
2,490.24
2,004.26
2,434.47
94.25
14,706.22

364.80
1,364.20
929.93
861.82
693.63
842.52
32.62
5,089.52

3,337.53
1,054.10
3,941.86
2,687.04
2,490.24
2,004.26
2,434.47
94.25
18,043.75

71.72
1,233.50
13.79
1,319.01

24.82
426.89
4.77
456.48

71.72
1,233.50
13.79
1,319.01

28.63
20.03
53.30
2.21
104.17

9.91
6.93
18.45
0.76
36.05

28.63
20.03
53.30
2.21
104.17

3,424.97
3,424.97

1,185.31
1,185.31

3,424.97
3,424.97

1,155.05
364.80
1,364.20
929.93
861.82
693.63
842.52
32.62
6,244.57

Year of Expiry for
business losses
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025

24.82 March 31, 2020
426.89 March 31, 2021
4.77 March 31, 2023
456.48
9.91
6.93
18.45
0.76
36.05

March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023

1,185.31 No expiry
1,185.31

(a)	The tax loss numbers carried forward for year ending March 2018 is based on Management estimates of the
Income as per Income Tax Act, 1961.
(b)	The above excludes the unused tax losses of foreign subsidiaries (Refer Note 36) aggregating ` 1,064.29
million (March 31, 2017: ` 942.68 million).
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Earning per share (Refer Note 1(y))
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Basic and Diluted
Earning / (Loss) for the year (A)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) (Nos.)
Number of shares for Diluted Loss per share (C) (Nos.)
Basic Earning / (Loss) per Equity share (A)/(B) (`)
Diluted Earning / (Loss) per Equity share (A)/(C) (`)

28

Contingent liability [Refer Notes 1(u) and 2(c)]
a)
b)

1,793.62
891,865,574
891,865,574
2.01
2.01

(456.31)
437,652,513
437,652,513
(1.04)
(1.04)

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
672.11
756.26

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts
On account of disputed demand of:
Income tax matters
706.31
516.02
Services tax matters
836.40
853.14
Sales Tax / VAT/ Lease Tax
869.42
708.01
Custom Duty
16.79
16.79
Notes:
(a) It is not practicable for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective proceedings.
(b) The Group does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.

29

Details under the MSMED Act, 2006 for dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
i)
the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal
0.01
0.01
- Interest due thereon
0.28
0.27
ii)
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year;
- Principal
- Interest
iii)
the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
iv)
the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year;
- Total interest Accrued during the year
0.01
- Interest remaining unpaid
0.01
v)
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
0.28
0.27
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
The above information and that given in Note 13(b) - ‘Trade Payables’ regarding micro and small enterprises has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group.
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Leases
Operating Lease [Refer Note 1(f)] :
The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are mainly in respect of office premises. These lease arrangements
range for a period between 11 months and 9 years, which include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most
of the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The
aggregate lease rentals payable on these leasing arrangements are charged as rent under “Other Expenses” in Note 23.
Lease obligations
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Total Lease expenses:
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
300.70
304.07
Total minimum lease commitments
300.70
304.07
With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Not later than 1 year
86.40
266.25
Later than one year and not later than five years
86.40
Later than 5 years
-

31

Scheme of Amalgamation
Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation between the Company and its group company/subsidiary company
namely, The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited (TWDC) and Indiagames Limited (Indiagames) sanctioned by
the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal dated June 8, 2017 (the ‘Scheme’); all assets and liabilities
of these entities were transferred and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date of April 1, 2015. The
Scheme has accordingly been given effect to in these financial statements with effective from April 1, 2015.
TWDC was into four main business segments namely, Media Networks Services, Disney Consumer Products right
licensing, Home Entertainment and Interactive. Indiagames were in the business of developing, aggregating and
distributing content on interactive media and digital platforms and also creating digital applications.
The amalgamation had been accounted based on the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement given
under the Scheme and accordingly, the Company has not applied pooling of interest method prescribed under Ind
AS 103 - Business Combination with respect to accounting for common control business combinations. Accordingly,
the assets and liabilities of TWDC and Indiagames as at April 1, 2015 have been taken over at their fair values in the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company as determined by an independent valuer.
1.	Pursuant to scheme, USCL has issued 11,394,818 equity shares subsequently on July 24, 2017 to Disney
Enterprises Inc., on amalgamation of TWDC in to the Company.
2.	The Company has also issued 4,882,271 equity shares subsequently on July 24, 2017 to The Walt Disney
Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited for the remaining 44% stake on amalgamation of Indiagames in
to the Company. There were no differences in Accounting Policies of the Company and its above mentioned
amalgamated companies.
As approved under the Scheme, the difference between the amount of fair value of consideration over the fair value
of the overall net assets taken over (including Other Intangible Assets), has been debited to Goodwill Account, such
Goodwill would be amortised over a period of five consecutive financials years beginning the financial year ended
March 31, 2016 in line with above Scheme.
Since Indiagames Limited was an existing subsidiary being consolidated on line by line basis, the legal merger of a
subsidiary with the parent have been eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, considering
it as an intra-group transaction, as per Ind AS Transition Facilitation Group (ITFG) Clarification Bulletin 9.
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TWDC
Indiagames
Total
Consideration
Fair Value of shares to be issued
4,466.77
1,913.85
6,380.62
Investment as on April 1, 2015 held by the Company
Total
4,466.77
1,913.85
6,380.62
Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities taken over
Property, plant and equipment
312.73
312.73
Goodwill
2,587.95
2,587.95
Other Intangible Assets
31.50
31.50
Current assets
2,654.15
2,654.15
Current liabilities
(1,119.56)
(1,119.56)
Non-controlling interest (NCI)
155.30
155.30
Excess of fair value of shares issued to NCI over NCI balance adjusted
1,758.55
1,758.55
from Retained Earnings
Total
4,466.77
1,913.85
6,380.62
Had the Company followed accounting for the above business combination in line with guidance given by business
combination amongst entities under commmon control, as specified under Ind AS 103 on Business Combinaiton, the
impact would have been as under:
i) 	

Impact on loss, in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account:

Particulars

Amortisation of Goodwill
Amortisation on other intangibles
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Loss Before Tax
Loss After Tax
ii)

For the year
For the year
ended March ended March 31,
31, 2018
2017
Increase /
Increase /
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
(517.59)
(517.59)
(9.33)
(9.33)
(2.22)
(3.06)
(529.14)
(529.98)
(529.14)
(529.98)

In the Balance Sheet:

Particulars

Assets
Goodwill
Other Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Other Financial Assets (Non-current)
Other Equity

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2016
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
(1,035.18)
(6.62)
87.00
(954.80)

(1,552.77)
(9.34)
(8.84)
87.00
(1,483.95)
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Other events after the reporting period
a)

The Board of Directors of Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (‘DBIL’) at its meeting held on December 22,
2015, had approved the draft Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between DBIL and United Home
Entertainment Private Limited (‘UHEPL’) (the ‘Scheme’), whereby UHEPL will stand merged and amalgamated with
DBIL with effect from the appointed date of April 1, 2015, and filing of the same with Hon’ble High Court/ National
Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai. Accordingly, the petition was filed before the National Company Law Tribunal
(‘NCLT’), Mumbai bench for sanctioning the Scheme, which was heard by the Hon’ble Tribunal on June 8, 2017
and based on the submissions made, the Hon’ble Tribunal on June 8, 2017 was pleased to sanction the Scheme.
The Scheme was effected on September 16, 2018 upon the filing of E-Form INC-28 by DBIL with the Registrar of
Companies (‘ROC’) pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal dated June 8, 2017 and
of the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting dated August 29, 2018.

b)

The Board of Directors of Genx Entertainment Limited (‘Transferor’ / ‘Genx’) at its meeting held on March 9, 2018,
had approved the draft Scheme of Merger by absorption between Genx and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
(‘Transferee’ / ‘DBIL’) and their respective shareholders and creditors (the ‘Scheme’) and filing of the same with
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (the ‘Tribunal’). The Scheme is envisaged under the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and is to come
into effect from April 1, 2017 (the ‘Appointed Date’). The Scheme was approved by the Members at their meeting
convened on May 22, 2018, on the direction of the Hon’ble Tribunal where the application seeking permission for
the Scheme was filed. Accordingly, Joint Petition was filed before the Hon’ble Tribunal for sanctioning the Scheme
on June 8, 2018, which was heard by the Hon’ble Tribunal on August 30, 2018 and based on the submission
made, the Hon’ble Tribunal on August 30, 2018, sanctioned the Scheme. The Scheme will be effective only after
obtaining approval from Ministry of Information and Broadcasting (‘MIB’) and then filling of E-Form INC-28 with
ROC. Accordingly, the accounting treatment will be given once the Scheme is effective.
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Games and Interactive segment comprise the online, console, mobile gaming business and the web and mobile business.

Stage Play segment comprises ticketing revenue and sponsorship fees.

(d)

(e)

23.98

133.96

706.20

390.21 1,761.70

3.45

904.72

3,377.23 5,006.07

156.71

8.76

-

100.58

100.58

-

100.58
-

-

-

99.16

-

13.88

-

-

187.01 (10.76)

1,308.53

-

1,308.53

-

-

15.48

170.38

215.58

385.96

0.34

30.04

(51.83)

(51.83)

2,260.17

-

181.33

1,991.89

-

1,991.89

140.49

1,903.23

9,962.79

396.27

10,359.06

Total

140.49

-

-

-

-

Stage Support Unallocable
Play Services

March 31, 2018
Television Disney
Gaming &
& Media Consumer Interactive
Products
Media

3,533.94 5,030.05

Movies

There is one customer accounting for more than 10% of revenue, amounting to ` 1,355.49 million (March 31, 2017: ` Nil).

Information about major customer:

Non-cash expenditure other than Depreciation and
Amortization expenses and Impairment on Goodwill
Segment Non-cash expenditure

Impairment on Goodwill on Consolidation

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Profit / (Loss) before tax

Less: Exceptional Items

Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax

Add: Net Unallocated Corporate Income /
(Expenses)
Less: Finance Cost

Segment Results - Profit/ (Loss)

Total

Less: Inter Segment revenue

Revenue from Operations (External)

REVENUE

Business Segment

541.68

21.42

2,505.08 1,862.94

3.10

(541.68)

20.49

529.98

10.53

-

11.29

268.77

(50.93)

(287.04) 1,118.22

-

737.37 1,681.37
737.37 1,681.37

32.33
5,277.37 5,195.68

82.43

March 31, 2017

-

-

(74.56)

63.47

-

63.47

-

-

9.37

102.62

264.11

366.73

-

74.43

(929.10)

(929.10)

4,399.04

541.68

640.22

(227.46)

(541.68)

314.21

259.48

983.83

13,057.87

378.87

13,436.74

Total

259.48

-

-

-

-

Television
Disney Gaming & Stage Play Support Unallocable
& Media Consumer Interactive
Services
Products
Media
5,359.80 5,228.01

Movies

Support Services includes services provided to Group Companies towards management support service, accounting/finance services, information technology
services, administrative services and human resource services;
Thus, the segment revenue, segment results and total amount of charge for depreciation and amortisation during the year is as reflected in the Financial Statement as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Disney Consumer Products business includes activities for licensing of merchandise characters and Sale of Books and Toys and Apparels.

(c)

(f)

Movies segment comprises the film production, distribution and syndication business.

(b)

Description of segments and principal activities
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the company. The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Company’s strategic steering committee
comprising of Group CFO, Business Head of India operations, and Group Head of Corporate Strategy & Business Development.
The Group has identified below mentioned business segment based on the information reviewed by CODM:
(a) Television and Media Segment comprises television content, airtime sales, dubbing services and the television channel broadcast business.

Segment Reporting

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
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Related party transactions
The names of related parties with relationship and transactions with them:
(a)

		

Relationship:
(1)

Ultimate Holding Company
Name
The Walt Disney Company, USA

		

		

(2)

(3)

Intermediate/Immediate Holding Company
Name

Relationship

The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited

Immediate Holding Company

Disney Enterprises, Inc., USA

Intermediate Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries of the Company:

			Name
			The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
			
The Walt Disney Co, UK
			American Broadcasting Companies, Inc.
			Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
			Buena Vista International Inc.
			DCP International Inc, USA
			Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
			Disney Consumer Product Latin America Inc. USA
			Disney Destinations LLC
			Disney Shopping Inc. (Formerly known as Disney Direct Marketing Services, Inc.)
			Disney Financial Services LLC
			
Disney Online, USA
			
Disney Store USA, LLC
			
Disney Worldwisde Services, Inc.
			
ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
			
Intregration Services LLC
			
Marvel Characters B.V.
			
The Walt Disney Company (China) Limited
			
The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
			
Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US, Inc.
			
Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
			
Walt Disney Theatrical Worldwide, Inc.
			
Lucas Film Limited LLC
			
WEDCO International Hold.
			
PT. Walt Disney Indonesia
			
The Walt Disney Company (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
			
The Walt Disney Company (Philippines), Inc.
			
The Walt Disney (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
			
Marvel Brands LLC
			
Walt Disney Co. Japan Ltd.
			
78

Disney FTC Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
(4)

Other related party:
Name
UTV Software Communication Limited Employee’s Group
Gratuity
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited Employee’s
Group Gratuity
Indiagames Limited Employee’s Group Gratuity

(5)

Principal Activity
Gratuity benefit plan

Place of Incorporation
India

Gratuity benefit plan

India

Gratuity benefit plan

India

Key Management Personnel:
Particulars

Designation

Mr. Nimish Shah

Whole Time Director (till January 9, 2017)

Mrs. Parul Tevatia

Non-Executive Director (till July 1, 2017)

Mr. Sujit Vaidya

Non-Executive Director (Whole Time Director w.e.f July 1, 2017)

Ms. Monisha Shroff

Non-Executive Director (w.e.f July 01, 2017)

Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani

Independent Director

Mr. Prem Raj Mehta

Independent Director

		
Note: All the global and other entities under common control of The Walt Disney Company, USA, which do not have
any transactions with the company during these years, are not disclosed.
(b)

Transactions during the year with related parties referred to in item (a) (1) to (5) above:

(1)

Transactions with Key management personnel referred in (a)(5) above:

Particulars
Short Term Employee Benefits
Long Term Employee Benefits
Employee Share-based Payment
Sitting Fees
Total Compensation

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
40.99
48.11
8.98
6.58
11.82
11.03
1.00
2.16
62.79
67.88

Note: During the financial year ended March 31, 2017, directors of the Company, namely, Ms. Parul Tevatia,
Mr. Sujit Vaidya and Mr. Nimish Shah were paid salaries in their capacity as employees in the The Walt Disney
Company (India) Private Limited, which got subsequently merged into the Company with effect from the
appointed date of April 1, 2015 vide National Company Law Tribunal’s order dated June 8, 2017 (Refer Note 31).
However, the Company has not paid any remuneration to the above directors during the financial year ended March
31, 2017 and pursuant thereto, compliance of the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act was not
applicable to the Company.
(2)
		

Transactions with related party referred in (a)(4) above:
For information on transactions with other related parties, refer Note 21.
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(3)

Transactions with related parties referred in (a)(1) to (a)(3) above:

Particulars

Sales and services revenue
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
- Buena Vista International Inc.
Support Services to Group Companies
- Disney Online, USA
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
- Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US, Inc.
- Disney Destinations LLC
- Disney Worldwide Services Inc.
- Disney Financial Services LLC
- Buena Vista International Inc.
- WEDCO International Hold.
- The Walt Disney Co. UK
- Walt Disney Co. Japan Ltd.
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
- PT. Walt Disney Indonesia
- The Walt Disney Company (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
- The Walt Disney Company (Philippines), Inc.
- The Walt Disney (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
Purchases
- Buena Vista International Inc.
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
- Walt Disney Co. Japan Ltd.
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
Royalty Expenses
- Disney Enterprises, Inc. *
- Marvel Characters B.V. *
- Walt Disney Theatrical Worldwide, Inc.
- Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
- Disney Online, USA
- Buena Vista International Inc. *
- Marvel Brands LLC *
- American Broadcasting Companies, Inc.
Expenses Paid on behalf of
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
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Holding Company/
Immediate Holding
Company/Intermediate
Holding Company
Year ended
Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2018
2017

Subsidiary Companies/
Fellow Subsidiary
Companies
Year ended
March 31,
2017

Year ended
March 31,
2018

-

-

74.64
24.33

3.30
-

1.78
-

2.25
-

8.73
12.09
32.03
16.14
17.61
1.81
8.21
8.48
2.29
22.76
9.60
6.57
14.62
7.64

20.47
9.89
29.03
28.64
13.06
-

-

-

211.72
1.21
3.76
0.95
2.89
8.41

222.43
-

17.19
-

72.01
-

3.80
1.50
1.50
2,809.13
3.19
0.24

20.35
3.77
1.50
17.11
1,854.04
0.02

4.02

-

-

-
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Particulars

Expenses Reimbursed to
- Buena Vista International Inc.
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
- The Walt Disney Co. UK
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
Reimbursement of Expenses from
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
Central Support Fees paid to
- Disney Financial Services LLC
- Disney Online, USA
- Disney Worldwide Services Inc.
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
- Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
- The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
-The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
-Disney FTC Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
Expenses recovered from
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
Other Expenses
- Disney Financial Services LLC
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
. - Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
Programming Cost
- Buena Vista International Inc.
Interest Expense
- Buena Vista International Inc.
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
Issue of Equity/Preference Shares (including
Secrurities Premium)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
Issue of Equity Shares on Conversion of Preference
Shares (including Securities Premium)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
Accrual for Equity share based compensation
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
Deferred Income
- The Walt Disney Co. UK

Holding Company/
Immediate Holding
Company/Intermediate
Holding Company
Year ended
Year ended
March 31,
March 31,
2018
2017

Subsidiary Companies/
Fellow Subsidiary
Companies
Year ended
March 31,
2017

Year ended
March 31,
2018

-

0.67

0.01
0.01
-

51.11
1.87
10.76
-

0.70

2.76

-

-

27.49
-

25.12
-

(0.43)
17.24
53.91
21.28

0.45
20.16
78.32
1.26
12.11

11.64
-

-

0.04
19.93
0.59

-

-

-

3.30

3.30

-

0.10
-

-

0.11
5.43

-

-

75.02

81.46

1.14

-

1.93
-

-

4,675.87

10,630.00

-

-

-

2,499.00

-

-

(22.77)

80.34

-

-

-

-

-

5.04
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(c)

Outstanding balances of related parties referred to in item (a)(1) to (a)(4) above:
Holding Company/ Immediate
Subsidiary Companies/
Holding Company/Intermediate Fellow Subsidiary Companies
Holding Company
As at
As at
As at
As at
March 31, March 31, 2017 March 31, March 31, 2017
2018
2018

Outstanding Corporate Guarantee taken from
- Disney Enterprises, Inc.
7,450.00
Outstanding Balance
Net Payable to
- The Walt Disney Company (Hongkong)
- Buena Vista International Inc.
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
54.03
- Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
- Disney Shopping, Inc. (Formerly known as Disney Direct
Marketing Services, Inc)
- Disney Online, USA
- The Walt Disney Co. UK
- Marvel Characters B.V.
- Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services
(Shanghai) Co. Ltd.
- Disney Enterprises, Inc.
23.51
- Disney Consumer Product Latin America Inc. USA
- DCP International Inc. USA
- Disney Store USA, LLC
- Disney Worldwisde Services, Inc.
- The Walt Disney Company (China) Limited
- Lucas Film Limited LLC
- Marvel Brands LLC
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
- The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
- Disney FTC Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
Accrual for Equity share based compensation
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
34.64
Net Receivable from
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
- Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US, Inc.
- Intregration Services, LLC
- Disney Financial Services LLC
- Disney Destinations, LLC
- WEDCO International Hold.
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
11.12
- PT. Walt Disney Indonesia
- The Walt Disney Company (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
- The Walt Disney Company (Philippines), Inc.
- The Walt Disney (Thailand) Co. Ltd.
- Walt Disney Co Japan Ltd.
* Represents amount billed during the respective years.
(d) Terms and conditions:
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions.
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are payable in cash.
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7,850.00

-

-

67.04
-

2,605.87
5.81
0.73

4.40
1,938.33
8.16
0.55

-

4.08
2.77
20.72
25.49

14.18
5.52
39.32
19.18

81.20
-

4.20
0.27
0.03
26.82
0.43
0.53
2.84
0.98
8.80
0.48
0.47

3.59
0.26
0.03
10.87
0.61
-

55.35

-

-

-

3.36
0.68
4.32
10.33
8.21
68.90
9.60
6.57
14.62
7.64
2.29

0.87
2.74
0.68
0.95
8.18
-
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35 Fair Value Measurements
Financial Instruments by Category
March 31, 2018
FVPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of long-term debt and
Interest accrued but not due)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

March 31, 2017
FVPL
Amortised Cost

0.01
0.01

173.31
3,142.63
3,222.36
1.78
3,144.61
9,684.69

0.05
0.05

163.98
2,810.88
2,409.39
1.76
463.13
5,849.14

-

995.36

-

308.96

-

5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

-

4,433.74
14.10
4,756.80

(i)
Fair Value hierarchy and valuation technique used to determine fair value :
	This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three level prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows below the table.
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value - recurring fair Value
measurements at March 31, 2018
Financial Assets
Financial Investments at FVPL
Unquoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Preference Shares Investment
Total Financial Assets

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-

-

0.01
0.01

0.01
*
0.01

Financial Assets and Liabilites measured at amortised cost for
which fair value disclosed at March 31, 2018
Financial Assets
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of long-term debt and
Interest accrued but not due)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-

-

173.31
3,142.63
3,222.36
1.78
3,144.61
9,684.69

173.31
3,142.63
3,222.36
1.78
3,144.61
9,684.69

-

-

995.36

995.36

-

-

5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45
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Financial Assets measured at Fair Value - recurring fair Value
measurements at March 31, 2017
Financial Assets
Financial Investments at FVPL
Quoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Preference Shares Investment
Total Financial Assets

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

0.04
0.04

-

0.01
*
0.01

0.04
0.01
*
0.05

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at amortised cost for
which fair value disclosed at March 31, 2017
Financial Assets
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of long-term debt and
Interest accrued but not due)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
* Amount is below rounding off norms adopted by Group.

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-

-

163.98
2,810.88
2,409.39
1.76
463.13
5,849.14

163.98
2,810.88
2,409.39
1.76
463.13
5,849.14

-

-

308.96

308.96

-

-

4,433.74
14.10
4,756.80

4,433.74
14.10
4,756.80

The fair value of financial instruments referred above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used
in the valuation technique. The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The categories used are
as follows :
- Level 1:
This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments
which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.
- Level 2:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. The Group
does not have any investment under this category.
- Level 3:
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The
Group has classified unlisted equity shares investments and unlisted preference shares investments, which are valued
using discounted cash flow analysis.
Valuation processes :
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO).
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(ii)

Fair Value of financials assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:
March 31, 2018
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount

Financial Assets
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of long-term debt
and Interest accrued but not due)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
a)
b)

March 31, 2017
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount

173.31
3,142.63
3,222.36
1.78
3,144.61
9,684.69

173.31
3,142.63
3,222.36
1.78
3,144.61
9,684.69

163.98
2,810.88
2,409.39
1.76
463.13
5,849.14

163.98
2,810.88
2,409.39
1.76
463.13
5,849.14

995.36
5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

995.36
5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

308.96
4,433.74
14.10
4,756.80

308.96
4,433.74
14.10
4,756.80

The carrying amount of short-term loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than
cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, short-term borrowings, trade payables and other current
financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their value, due to their short-term nature.
The fair values and carrying value of long-term loans, other non-current financial assets and long-term borrowings are
materially the same.
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36

Interests in other entities
(a) Subsidiaries
The group’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2018 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting of equity shares that are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals
the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.
Name of entity

UTV Communications (USA) LLC
IG Interactive Entertainment
Limited, UK
Ignition Entertainment Limited, UK
(100% subsidiary of IG Interactive
Entertainment Limited)
Ignition Entertainment Limited,
USA (100 % subsidiary of Ignition
Entertainment Limited, UK)
Ignition London Limited, UK
(100 % subsidiary of Ignition
Entertainment Limited, UK)
Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited
Genx Entertainment Limited
(100 % subsidiary of Disney
Entertainment (India) Limited)
"Disney Broadcasting (India)
Limited
(100 % subsidiary of Disney
Entertainment (India) Limited)
UTV Games Limited
True Games Interactive, Inc
(100% subsidiary of UTV Games
Limited)
(b)
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Place of
business/
country of
incorporation

United States of
America
United Kingdom

Ownership interest
held by the group
March 31, March 31,
2018
2017
%
%
100%
100%

Ownership interest Principal activities
held by non
controlling interests
March 31, March 31,
2018
2017
%
%
- Engaged in Film
Distribution business
- Engaged in Film
Distribution business
- No activity

100%

100%

United Kingdom

100%

100%

United States of
America

100%

100%

-

- No activity

United Kingdom

100%

100%

-

- No activity

India

57.43%

91.24%

42.57%

India

57.43%

91.24%

42.57%

India

57.43%

91.24%

42.57%

100%
100%

100%
100%

-

Mauritius
United States of
America

8.76% Engaged in television
channel broadcast
business and Stage play
8.76% Engaged in television
channel broadcast
business.
8.76% Engaged in television
channel broadcast
business.
- No activity
- No activity

Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations:
Summarised balance sheet
Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited (consolidated)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current Assets
6,626.71
5,067.52
Current Liabilities
2,495.55
1,455.25
Net current Assets
4,131.16
3,612.27
Non-current Assets
1,916.82
1,730.28
Non-current Liabilities
53.55
34.63
Net non-current Assets
1,863.27
1,695.65
Net Assets
5,994.43
5,307.92
Accumulated NCI (Refer Note 12(b))
2,552.37
464.74
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Summarised statement of profit and loss

Income
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
Profits/(Loss) allocated to NCI
Other comprehensive income/(loss) allocated to NCI
Total comprehensive income/(loss) allocated to NCI
Summarised cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(c)

Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited (Consolidated)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
5,027.25
5,288.98
680.06
795.02
(1.56)
(0.42)
678.50
794.60
148.48
70.39
(0.18)
148.48
70.21
Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited (Consolidated)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
55.29
770.61
57.96
(7.09)
982.06
(136.94)
1,095.31
626.58

Transactions with non-controlling interests

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the group’s share in Disney Entertainment (India) Limited decreased from
91.24% to 57.43% (Previous Year: increased from 89.89% to 91.24%), which resulted in increase in the carrying amount
of Non-Controlling Interest by ` 1,890.87 million (Previous Year: ` 41.91 million).
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Financial Risk Management
The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the Group is exposed to and how the Group manages the risk.
Risk
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk – foreign
currency risk
Market risk – interest
rate risk

Exposure arising from
Measurement
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank balances Ageing
analysis
other than cash and cash equivalents, Trade
receivables and Other financial assets
Borrowings and Other Liabilities
Borrowings maturity
and
cash
flow
forecasts
Recognised financial assets and liabilities not Sensitivity analysis
denominated in Rupees
Borrowings - Short term
Sensitivity analysis

Management
Diversification of bank deposits
and credit limits
Availability of committed credit
lines and borrowing facilities
There is no major time gap between
booking and payment/receipts
Periodical monitoring of variable
interest rates, using benefit of
guarantee given by the ultimate
parent company.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. There is no change in objectives,
policies and process for managing the risk and methods used to measure the risk as compared to previous year.
(I)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables),
including deposits with bank, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group
grants credit terms in the normal course of business.
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a)

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Concentrations
of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Group’s customer base being large. All trade
receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a regular basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivables,
supported by the level of default, is that the credit risk is low.
Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Group to determine
incurred and expected credit losses. The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy.
Under the Group’s credit policy, each new customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instrument, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.
Trade receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
Particulars
Trade receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
3,142.63
2,810.88

Following is the movement in allowance for doubtful debts:
Particulars
Loss allowance at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Loss allowance as at the end of the year
b)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
61.39
43.38
98.37
18.01
159.76
61.39

Other financial assets

The Group is also exposed to credit risks arising on cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks. The Group
believes that its credit risk in respect to cash and cash equivalents and term deposits is insignificant as funds are
invested in term deposits at pre determined interest rates for specified period of time. For cash and cash equivalents
only high rated banks are accepted.
The Group periodically monitors the recoverability and credit risks of its other financials assets including security
deposits and other receivables. The Group evaluates 12 month expected credit losses for all the financial assets for
which credit risk has not increased. In case credit risk has increased significantly, the Group considers life time expected
credit losses for the purpose of impairment provisioning.
Following is the movement in allowance for doubtful other financial assets:
Particulars
Loss allowance at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Loss allowance as at the end of the year
(II)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.80
1.80
1.00
0.80
0.80

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities (comprising
the undrawn borrowing facilities below), by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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a)

Financing arrangements

The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities for working capital at the end of the reporting period:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Floating rate
Expiring within one year
Total
b)

9,830.00
9,830.00

10,314.89
10,314.89

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual
maturities which are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not material.
As at March 31, 2018
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Borrowings (Current maturities of long-term
debt and Interest accrued but not due)
Trade payables
Other financial Liabilities
Total financial liabilities
As at March 31, 2017
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities
Borrowings (Current maturities of long-term
debt and Interest accrued but not due)
Trade payables
Other financial Liablities
Total financial liabilities
(III)

< 1 Year 1 - 3 years
995.36
5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

> 3 years
-

Total Carrying value
995.36
995.36

-

-

< 1 Year 1 - 3 years
(2,329.84) 2,638.80

> 3 years
1,318.20

Total Carrying value
1,627.16
308.96

1,318.20

4,433.74
14.10
6,075.00

4,433.74
14.10
2,118.00

2,638.80

5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

5,740.38
7.71
6,743.45

4,433.74
14.10
4,756.80

Market risk - foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed by settling payment/receipts within shorter period.
a)

Foreign currency risk exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in equivalent in Indian
Rupees is as follows:
As at March 31, 2018
USD
GBP
Others
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Other Financials Assets
Exposure to foreign currency risk (assets)
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)
Total Exposure to foreign currency risk (Net)

As at March 31, 2017
USD
GBP
Others

184.35
1,892.61
2,076.96

14.47
14.47

78.93
20.20
99.13

110.47
11.53
122.00

130.74
130.74

19.18
2.03
21.21

2,807.05
2,807.05
(730.09)

2.06
2.06
12.41

28.12 2,373.47
28.12 2,373.47
71.01 (2,251.47)

2.94
2.94
127.80

6.03
6.03
15.18
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b)
Foreign currency sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instruments.
Net impact on loss before tax
Decrease/ (Increase)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
USD sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1% (March 31, 2016 - 1%)*
(7.30)
(22.51)
INR/USD - Decrease by 1% (March 31, 2016 - 1%)*
7.30
22.51
GBP sensitivity
INR/GBP - Increase by 1% (March 31, 2016 - 1%)*
INR/GBP - Decrease by 1% (March 31, 2016 - 1%)*
* Holding all other variables constant
(IV) Market risk - interest rate risk

0.12
(0.12)

1.28
(1.28)

The Group had borrowed funds at floating interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from both long-term and
short term borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
a)

Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Floating rate borrowings (Excluding Liability component of compound financial
995.12
308.63
instrument and interest accrued but not due)
Total borrowings
995.12
308.63
Particulars

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
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Net impact on loss before tax
Net impact on other equity
Decrease/ (Increase)
Decrease/ (Increase)
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest rate increase by 50 basis points
(4.98)
(1.54)
(4.98)
(1.54)
(March 31, 2016 - 50 basis points)*
Interest rate decrease by 50 basis points
4.98
1.54
4.98
1.54
(March 31, 2016 - 50 basis points)*
* Holding all other variables constant
Capital Management
Risk management
The Company determines the capital requirements based on its financial performance, operating and long term
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through operating cash flows generated. For the purpose of
Company’s Capital Risk Management, “Capital” includes issued equity share capital, securities premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to its shareholders.
The Company’s objective in managing its capital is to:
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise shareholder’s values and
- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s assessment of the appropriate balance of key elements
in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to
risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
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The Company maintains a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain shareholders
and creditors confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company takes appropriate
steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.
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Employee share based payments
Employee option plan
Certain employees of the Group, have been granted long-term incentive plans namely stock options and restricted stock
units (RSUs) by the ultimate holding company (Grantor), The Walt Disney Company, USA.
Stock options are generally granted at exercise prices equal to or exceeding the market price at the date of grant and
become exercisable ratably over a four-year period from the grant date. The contractual terms for our outstanding stock
option grants are 10 years. RSUs generally vest ratably over four years.
The fair value of options is estimated based on the binomial valuation model. The binomial valuation model takes into
account variables such as volatility, dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate. The binomial valuation model also
considers the expected exercise multiple (the multiple of exercise price to grant price at which exercises are expected
to occur on average) and the termination rate (the probability of a vested option being cancelled due to the termination
of the option holder) in computing the value of the option.
The details pertaining to number of stock options/RSUs considered for fair value are disclosed below:
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Stock Option
RSUs
Stock Option
RSUs
Options outstanding at the beginning of
24,933
19,753
67,893
40,960
the year
Options granted during the year
17,134
11,398
15,507
11,712
Exercised during the year
13,302
7,582
58,467
32,919
Lapsed during the year
Options outstanding at the end of the year
28,765
23,569
24,933
19,753
Options vested and exercisable at the
9,426
end of the year
Expenses Arising from share based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss as part of
employee benefit expense were as follows:
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Employee share based payment expense
(26.45)
45.29
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Additional information regarding the Subsidiary Companies considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements are as under:
Name of Entity

Parent
UTV Software Communications
Limited
Subsidiaries
- Indian
Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited *
- Foreign
UTV Communications (USA) LLC
IG Interactive Entertainment
Limited, UK *
UTV Games Limited *
Sub total
Consolidation Adjustments
Total

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2018
Net Assets / (Net
Share in profit / (loss)
Other comprehensive
Share in profit / (loss)
liabilities) i.e. total assets
after tax
income/(Loss)
minus total liabilities
As a % of
Amount
As a % of
Amount
As a % of
Amount As a % of
Amount
consolidated
consolidated
consolidated
consolidated
net assets /
Profit /
Profit / (loss)
Profit / (loss)
(liabilities)
(loss)
89.05%

12,033.68

94.89%

1,842.82

1224.00%

3.06

95.03%

1,845.88

-624.00%

(1.56)

34.93%

678.50

-2.85%
0.05%

(55.42)
0.92

-0.04%
127.12%
-27.12%
100.00%

(0.70)
2,469.18
(526.83)
1,942.35

44.36%

5,994.27

35.02%

680.06

-0.19%
4.78%

(25.17)
646.20

-2.85%
0.05%

(55.42)
0.92

-8.31%
129.69%
-29.69%
100.00%

(1,123.30)
17,525.68
(4,012.98)
13,512.70

-0.04%
127.07%
-27.07%
100.00%

(0.70)
2,467.68
(525.58)
1,942.10

600.00%
-500.00%
100.00%

1.50
(1.25)
0.25
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Name of Entity

Parent
UTV Software Communications
Limited
Subsidiaries
- Indian
Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited *
- Foreign
UTV Communications (USA)
LLC
IG Interactive Entertainment
Limited, UK *
UTV Games Limited *
Sub total
Consolidation Adjustments
Total

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2017
Net Assets / (Net
Share in profit / (loss)
Other comprehensive
Share in profit / (loss)
liabilities) i.e. total assets
after tax
income/(Loss)
minus total liabilities
As a % of
Amount
As a % of
Amount
As a % of
Amount
As a % of
Amount
consolidated
consolidated
consolidated
consolidated
net assets /
Profit / (loss)
Profit / (loss)
Profit / (loss)
(liabilities)
-88.19% 10,267.71

-423.06% (1,632.69)

284.13%

5.37

-419.62% (1,627.32)

-45.59%

5,307.92

206.01%

795.02

-22.22%

(0.42)

204.89%

794.60

-0.26%

30.65

26.49%

102.23

-

-

26.36%

102.23

-4.92%

572.33

-15.41%

(59.47)

-

-

-15.33%

(59.47)

9.60%
-129.36%
29.36%
-100.00%

(1,118.11)
15,060.50
(3,418.11)
11,642.39

-0.05%
-206.02%
106.02%
-100.00%

(0.21)
(795.12)
409.20
(385.92)

261.91%
-361.91%
-100.00%

4.95
(6.84)
(1.89)

-0.05%
-203.75%
103.75%
-100.00%

(0.21)
(790.17)
402.36
(387.81)

* Amounts after consolidation with their subsidiaries
41	
The previous year’s figures have been reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to conform to current year’s
classification.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements.
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For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161
Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902
Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of UTV Software Communications Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial
position) of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matter
The Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited by another
auditor whose report dated November 22, 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)	We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
(b)	In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.
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(c)	The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
(d)	In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
(e)	On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
(f)	With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’.
(g)	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:
		

i.	The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018 on its financial position
in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 29 to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

		

ii.	The Company has long term contracts as at March 31, 2018 for which there were no material foreseeable
losses. The Company did not have any derivative contract as at March 31, 2018.

		

iii.	There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018.

2.	As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms
of sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure B’, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
3.	As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information, explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the
Act and the rules thereunder.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105047W
Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’
Report]
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UTV Software Communications Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105047W
Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report]
i.

(a)	The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of fixed assets.
(b)	All the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a regular
program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.			
(c)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties as disclosed in Note 3 on property, plant and equipment
are held in the name of the Company.

ii.	The inventory of completed / acquired movie copyrights has been verified by the Management during the year, with
reference to title documents / agreements. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.
iii.	The Company has granted unsecured loans to one Company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act. The Company has not granted any unsecured loans to firms or other parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act.
(a)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans have been granted to the
companies listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.
(b)	In respect of aforesaid loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
by the Company except for an amount aggregating to ` 20.33 million, the party is repaying the principal amount,
as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.
(c)

In respect of aforesaid loan, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

iv.	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not either directly or
indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance
with the provisions of section 185 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made.
v.	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there
under.							
vi.	The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central Government
of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
vii.

(a)	According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our
opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it.
(b)	According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company, there are
no outstanding dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods and service tax, value added tax and cess on
account of any dispute, except as follows:
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Name of the
statute

Nature of
dues

The Income Tax Income Tax
Act, 1961

Bombay Sales
Tax Act, 1959

Finance Act,
1994

Maharashtra
Value Added
Tax Act 2002

Uttar Pradesh
Value Added
Tax Act, 2008

Amount
` (in
millions)

Amount paid Period to which the amount
in protest
relates
(` in
millions)

Forum where dispute is
pending

441.07

Nil

AY 2010-11 to AY 2014-15

Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals)

Income Tax

4.73

Nil

Tax
deducted at
source
Sales Tax

1.99

Nil

AY 2009-10 and AY 2013-14 The Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal
AY 2008-09
Income Tax Officer

0.74

Nil

FY 2008-09

Value Added
Tax

27.49

0.45

The Deputy Commissioner of
Sales Tax
FY 2003-04 and FY 2004-05 Maharashtra Sales Tax Tribunal

Service Tax

812.54

16.73

FY 2006-07 to FY 2011-12

Service Tax

0.31

Nil

Service Tax

2.17

Nil

Value Added
Tax

345.94

Nil

FY 2012-13

The Deputy Commissioner of
Sales Tax

Value Added
Tax
Value Added
Tax

9.25

Nil

FY 2013-14

Commissioner (Appeals)

466.57

Nil

FY 2007-08, FY 2010-11, FY First Appellate Authority
2012-13, FY 2013-14

Value added
tax

0.2

Nil

FY 2009-10

Value added
tax

3.62

Nil

FY 2013-14 and FY 2014-15 Additional Commissioner
(Appeal)

CESTAT, Mumbai

FY 2011-12

Deputy Commissioner of Service
Tax
FY 2008-09, FY 2009-10, FY Additional Commissioner of
2010-11
Service Tax

Commissioner (Appeals)

viii.	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to the financial institution, bank or debenture holders.
ix.	The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.
x.	During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.
xi.	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
xii.	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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xiii.	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.
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xiv.	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.
xv.	According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
xvi.	In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 105047W
Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247
Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

Note

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets
274.59

Property, Plant and Equipment

3

Capital work-in-progress

3

-

3.51

Goodwill

4

1,575.21

2,362.81

Other Intangible assets

4

326.15

401.49

5

225.23

Financial assets
7,354.22

6,515.00

- Investments

6 (a)

0.01

0.05

- Loans

6 (b)

134.63

121.41

- Other financial assets

6 (c)

- Equity Investments in Subsidiaries

202.14

-

Income tax assets (net)

7

2,607.00

2,256.77

Deferred tax assets (net)

8

-

-

Other non-current assets

9

Total non-current assets

36.51

20.83

12,461.10

11,956.46

112.38

322.89

Current assets
Inventories

10

Financial assets
- Trade receivables

6 (d)

1,656.94

1,736.07

- Cash and cash equivalents

6 (e)

693.34

778.47

- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

6 (f)

1.78

1.76

- Loans

6 (b)

1.67

2.92

- Other financial assets

6 (c)

2,933.66

440.93

Other current assets

11

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

491.35

396.81

5,891.12

3,679.85

18,352.22

15,636.31

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital

12 (a)

8,918.65

8,755.88

Other Equity

12 (b)

3,115.05

1,512.00

12,033.70

10,267.88

19.99

18.56

TOTAL EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions

14

Employee benefits obligation

15

48.92

40.91

Other non-current liabilities

17

207.69

179.20

276.60

238.67

Total non-current liabilities
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Particulars

Note

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings

13 (a)

-

308.63

- Trade Payables

13 (b)

4,812.50

3,519.41

- Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

13 (c)

2.30

8.91

Employee benefits obligation

15

27.64

31.22

Income tax liabilities (net)

16

0.11

0.11

Other current liabilities

17

1,199.37

1,261.48

Total current liabilities

6,041.92

5,129.76

TOTAL LIABILITIES

6,318.52

5,368.43

18,352.22

15,636.31

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Summary of significant accounting policies

1

The above Standalone Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Direct costs
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Finance costs
Total expenses
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit /(Loss) before tax
Income tax expense
- Current tax
- Deferred tax
Total Income tax expense
Profit /(Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income/(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations (Net of tax)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive Profit / (Loss) for the year
Profit /(Loss) Per Equity Share (`)
- Basic
- Diluted
Summary of significant accounting policies

Note
18
19

20
21
22
23
24

25

Year ended
March 31, 2018
5,692.62
77.44
5,770.06

Year ended
March 31, 2017
8,387.22
257.07
8,644.29

2,670.91
612.58
475.78
969.67
37.51
4,766.45
1,003.61
(839.22)
1,842.83

5,860.97
1,137.06
933.77
857.56
870.45
9,659.81
(1,015.52)
613.43
(1,628.95)

1,842.83

3.73
3.73
(1,632.68)

3.06

5.37

3.06
1,845.89

5.37
(1,627.31)

2.07
2.07

(3.73)
(3.73)

26

21

27
27
1

The above Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even date.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars
A.

B.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Loss on sale of Investments
Interest income
Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Finance costs
Amortisation of movie costs
Allowance for doubtful debts
Impairment in the value of investments
Provision for diminution in the value of Investments Written-back
Allowance for doubtful Financial and Non-Financial Assets
Advances written off
Bad debts written off
Employee benefit expenses
Provision for Contingencies
Unrealised foreign exchange loss
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
Increase in trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions
Increase in trade receivables
Increase in inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets
Cash generated from operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(including capital work in progress)
Sale of tangible assets
Sale of Investment
Purchase of equity shares in subsidiaries
Repayment of loan by related party (net)
Investment of fixed deposit (net)
Interest received
Net cash generated used in Investing Activities

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

1,842.83

(1,628.95)

952.31
0.65
0.38
(41.12)
(13.22)
37.51
320.61
98.62
228.28
(1,067.96)
(1,109.61)
1,111.75
71.27
(19.86)
1.43
2.52
2,416.39

956.10
(221.35)
(11.68)
870.45
2,481.38
18.75
613.43
9.39
26.57
143.97
(14.50)
31.02
3,274.58

1,264.27
(40.52)
(91.36)
(110.10)
1.25
(2,795.29)
644.64
(350.23)
294.41

1,350.02
605.08
(462.00)
(883.76)
(18.59)
75.24
3,940.57
164.48
4,105.05

(44.35)

(25.32)

0.28
0.12
(0.02)
17.18
(26.78)

(1,030.00)
133.70
(0.05)
53.01
(868.66)
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars
C.

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2018

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares
Borrowing / (repayment) of long term loan (Net)
Repayment of short term loan (Net)
Interest paid
Share Issue expenses
Net cash generated used in Financing Activities
Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

10,630.00
(9,600.00)
(3,510.10)
(748.16)
(13.13)
(3,241.39)
(5.00)
783.47
778.47
As at
March 31, 2017

(308.63)
(37.75)
(6.38)
(352.76)
(85.13)
778.47
693.34
As at
March 31, 2018

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on hand
0.05
0.09
Balances with Banks
123.29
43.38
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months
570.00
735.00
Total
693.34
778.47
Notes:
1.The above standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method set out in Ind AS - 7Statement of Cash Flows.
2.Disclosure as required by Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, change in liabilities arising from Financing activities:
Particulars

Borrowings (Current) [Refer Note 13 (a)]

As at
March 31, 2017

Cash Flows

308.63
308.63

As at
March 31, 2018

(308.63)
(308.63)

-

3.
Non cash transaction
	During the current year, the Company has allotted 16,277,089 equity Shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 382 per
share amounting to ` 6,380.62 million to the Shareholders of Indiagames Limited and The Walt Disney Company
(India) Private Limited pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation.
This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018
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Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

8,755.88
162.77

12 (a)

17,470.59

6,380.62

(6,380.62)
-

-

-

-

Other Equity-Capital
Equity
Shares to be
component
issued
of compound
financial
instrument
6,380.62
-

(13.13)
4,901.49

-

(532.43)
-

-

-

(6.38)
6,217.85
(8,855.75)
14,826.31

(4,253.27)
-

-

-

4,253.27
-

17,470.59
-

General
Reserve

4,253.27

-

-

Securities
premium
reserve

-

-

4,253.27
-

12,582.23
-

-

General
Reserve

Securities
premium
reserve

-

Other Equity-Capital
Equity
Shares to be
component
issued
of compound
financial
instrument
532.43
6,380.62
-

8,918.65

Amount
528.37
8,227.51

Notes
12 (a)

148.91

(62.11)
-

-

-

211.02
-

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Mem. No.: A17151

Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902

(73.69)
(6.38)
6,217.85
1,500.00
3,115.05

1,845.89

3.06

(6,368.62)
1,842.83

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole time Director
DIN: 03287161

(390.98)
-

-

-

390.98
-

1,500.00

-

-

-

1,500.00
-

Other Reserves
Business
Restructuring
Reserve

1,500.00

-

-

1,500.00
-

Total other
reserves

(1,500.00)
-

-

-

1,500.00
-

(1,500.00)
-

-

-

1,500.00
-

Other Reserves
Total Reserves
Business
Total other
and Surplus
Restructuring
reserves
Reserve

(62.11)
(13.13)
4,901.49
532.43
(6,368.62)

(1,627.31)

5.37

(10,099.99)
(1,632.68)

Total Reserves
and Surplus

Sd/Vishal Vilas Divadkar
Partner
Membership Number: 118247

(73.69)
75.22

-

-

148.91
-

Capital
Reserves

390.98

-

-

-

390.98
-

Capital
Reserves

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of UTV Software Communications Limited
CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987

15,000.00
(11,786.48)

1,845.89

3.06

(28,632.37)
1,842.83

Reserves and Surplus
Retained
Shares
earnings
Options
Outstanding
Reserve

532.43
(28,632.37)

(1,627.31)

5.37

(27,537.49)
(1,632.68)

Reserves and Surplus
Retained
Shares Options
earnings
Outstanding
Reserve

For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of the even date.

The above Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance as at April 1, 2017
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of postemployment benefit obligations (Net of tax)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year
Transaction with owners in their capacity
as owners
Share based payments
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
Issue of equity shares [Refer Note 12 (a)]
Reclass of Reserve [Refer Note 12(b)]
Balance as at March 31, 2018

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2016
Loss for the year
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurements of postemployment benefit obligations (Net of tax)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year
Transaction with owners in their capacity
as owners
Share based payments
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
Issue of equity shares [Refer Note 12 (a)]
Transferred to Retained earnings
Balance as at March 31, 2017

(B) Other Equity [Refer Note 12(b)]
Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2016
Changes in equity share capital during
the year
Balance as at March 31, 2017
Changes in equity share capital during
the year
Balance as at March 31, 2018

(A) Equity share capital

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(73.69)
(6.38)
(162.77)
3,115.05

1,845.89

3.06

1,512.00
1,842.83

Total

(62.11)
(13.13)
4,901.49
1,512.00

(1,627.31)

5.37

(1,686.94)
(1,632.68)

Total
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UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Background
UTV Software Communications Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated under the laws of India on June 22, 1990 in Mumbai
under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was listed with National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange upto
March 16, 2012 and has been delisted pursuant to take over by The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited.
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of Film Distribution, Film (including Animation) Production, Mobile Value
Added Services, Gaming and Interactive media, Content Development & Distribution, Media networks and Disney Consumer
Products.
1
Significant accounting policies
	This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial
statements (“financial statements”). These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
a
Basis of Preparation
		
i	The Financials statements of the companies have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards ('IND AS') including the rules notified under the relavant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('The Act').
		
ii
Historical cost convention
			
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
			
-       certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value,
			
-       defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value, and
			
-       share-based payments
		
iii	All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle (i.e. 12 months) and other criteria set out in Schedule III (Division II) to the Act.
b
Foreign currency translation
		
i
Functional and presentation currency
			Items included in the standalone financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements
are presented in Indian currency (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
		
ii
Transactions and balances
			Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at the year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. All foreign exchange gain and losses are
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on the net basis within other income/(expenses).
			Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
c
Revenue Recognition
		Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of allowances, incentives, service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
		The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the activities as
described below:
		
i	Revenues from licensing and distribution of movies are recognised in accordance with the licensing and
distribution agreement or on delivery of the movies, whichever is later.
		
ii	Merchandise licensing minimum guarantee royalty payments are recognised as per the terms of the
agreement over the license period on straight line basis. Royalty earned at contractual rate in excess of
minimum guarantee is recognized as and when royalty earned exceeds minimum guarantee, based on the
products sold by the licensee.
		
iii	Revenue from sale of Digital Video Discs (DVDs)/ Video Compact Discs (VCDs)/ Blu-ray Discs (BDs), Toys,
Apparels and Books is recognised on dispatch to customers. Sales are stated net of sales tax, returns,
discounts and allowances.
		
iv	Media Service fees relating to consultancy for media distribution and marketing services, advertising
services and content production related services are recognised as per the terms of the agreement, on
accrual basis.
		
v	Revenue from distribution of mobile content and subscription is recognised in accordance with the terms of
revenue sharing agreements entered by the Company with telecom operators / Internet Service Providers
(ISPs) and on the basis of receipt of download / subscription reports by the Company. Until the receipt of
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

download or subscription report from the telecom operators / ISPs revenue is recognised on a fair estimates
by the Company. Revenues are stated at net of applicable taxes.
		
vi	Support services to group companies relating to management support service, accounting/finance services,
information technology services, administrative services and human resource services are recognised as
per the terms of the agreement, on accrual basis.
d
Inventories
		
i
Inventories is valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value.
		
ii	Raw Stock is stated at lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value. Cost of raw stock is determined on First in
First Out (FIFO) basis.
		
iii	Acquired rights pertaining to movies, animation and other content, are amortised on the exploitation of
such rights based on the management estimates of revenue potential.
		
iv	Cost of completed/ acquired movies is amortised over the movie life cycle based upon the ratio of the
current period’s revenues to the estimated remaining total revenues (Ultimate Revenues) for each movie.
If estimate of Ultimate Revenues decreases, amortization of movie cost is accelerated. Conversely, if
estimates of Ultimate Revenues increases, movie cost amortization is decelerated. Ultimate Revenues
include revenues from all sources that will be earned over a period not to exceed ten years from the date of
the first theatrical release.
		
v	Movies under Production are stated at cost. Cost comprises of material cost, cost of services and other
expenses. Costs get accumulated till the first theatrical release of the movie.
		
vi	Cost of Digital Video Discs (DVDs)/ Video Compact Discs (VCDs)/ Blu-ray Discs (BDs), Toys and Books
include product’s purchase price and other incidental expenses incurred to bring the inventory to their
present condition and location. Costs are determined on the basis of weighted average cost method.
		
vii	The Company evaluates the realisable value and/or revenue potential of inventories on an annual basis and
appropriate write down is made in cases where accelerated write down is warranted.
e
Income taxes and deferred tax
		The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
		The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period where the Company generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
		Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not accounted for if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assets is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
		The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
		Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
		Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
		Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
		Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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f
Leases
		As a lessee, leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
g
Business Combinations
		The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition comprises:
		
•
the fair values of the assets transferred;
		
•
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;
		
•
equity interests issued by the Company; and
		
•
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
		Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
		
The excess of the
		
•
consideration transferred, and
		
•
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity
		over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the
underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain
purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.
		Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate,
being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions.
		Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
		Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interest method.
		Under pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities or businesses are reflected
at their carrying amounts after making adjustments necessary to harmonise the accounting policies. The financial
information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date
of the combination. The identity of the reserves is preserved in the same form in which they appeared in the
financial statements of the transferor and the difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital
issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of
the transferor is transferred to capital reserve.
h
Impairment of Assets
		Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or Company's of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
i
Cash and cash equivalents
		Cash and Cash equivalents comprise cash at banks, cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These do
not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific purposes.
		For the purpose of cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cash at banks and
short term deposits.
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j
Equity Investment in subsidiaries
		Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary, the difference between net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
		
Investment in Equity Component of Preference Shares of subsidiaries:
		Company considers issuance of non-market rate redeemable preference shares by subsidiary as equity. It is
presented separately as 'Investment in equity component of preference shares of subsidiaries' under 'Equity
investments in subsidiaries'. Equity Component is not subsequently remeasured.
k
Investments and other financial assets
		
i
Classification
			The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
			
•
those to be measured subsequently at fair value (through profit or loss), and
			
•
those measured at amortised cost.
			The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
			For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.
		ii
Measurement
			At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.
			
Debt instruments
			Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:
			
•
Amortised cost:
				Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
			
• 	Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
income/ expenses. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the
effective interest rate method.
			
•	Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other income/ expenses in
the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.
			
Equity investments
			The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries)
at fair value. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other income/(expenses) in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.
		
iii
Impairment of financial assets
			The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
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there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
			For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
iv
De-recognition of financial assets
			A financial asset is de-recognised only when
			
•
The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
			
• 	retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
				Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.
				Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial
asset.
		v
Income recognition
			
Interest income
			Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.
			Dividends
			Dividends are recognised in profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount
of the dividend can be reliably measured.
l
Financial liabilities
		
i
Classification as debt or equity
			Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
		
ii
Initial recognition and measurement
			Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition,
they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.
		
iii
Subsequent measurement
			Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
		
iv
Derecognition
			A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
m
Offsetting financial instruments
		Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
n
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital Work-in-Progress)
		Freehold land is carried at historical cost of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
		Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
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asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
		
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
		Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives which are as follows:
Assets
Computers & Servers
Leasehold Improvements
Electrical Installations & Equipments
Furniture & Fixtures
Office Equipments
Plant and Machinery

Useful Life (in years)
3-6
3-9
10
10
5
15

		An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
		Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in
profit or loss under income/(expenses).
		Depreciation on assets purchased / disposed off during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to
the date of additions / deductions.
o
Investment properties
		Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Company, is accounted as investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.
		Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The useful
life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.
p
Intangible assets
		
i
Goodwill:
			The Company has recognised goodwill on amalgamation pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation
between the Company and its group company/subsidiary namely The Walt Disney Company (India) Private
Limited (TWDC) and Indiagames Limited (Indiagames), sanctioned by the order of the National Company
Law Tribunal dated June 8, 2017 (the 'Scheme'). (Refer Note 32)
			Pursuant to the Scheme, goodwill on amalgamation is amortised over a period of 5 years on straight line
basis.
			Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss. Gains and losses on the disposals of a cash generating unit include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the cash generating unit sold.
			Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or group of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, which in our case are the operating segments.
		
ii
Other intangible assets:
			Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each
annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
			
Amortisation methods and periods are:
Assets

Useful Life (in years)

Computer Software

3

Customer Contracts

3

Intellectual Property Rights

4

Brand

10
111

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

q
Trade receivables and Trade & other payables
		
Trade Receivables:
		Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
		
Trade & other payables:
		These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
r
Borrowings
		Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.
		Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income/(expenses).
		Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.
		Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes
payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment
as a consequence of the breach.
		
Compound instruments:
		The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the Company are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for a similar non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date. The
equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured.
s
Borrowing costs
		General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
		
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
t
Provisions
		Provisions for legal claims and discounts/incentives are recognised when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
		At the end of each reporting period, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at a future date. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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u
Contingent Liabilities
		Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.
v
Employee benefits
		
i
Short-term obligations
			Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, are
recognised in respect of employees services upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the Balance Sheet.
		
ii
Other long-term employee benefit obligations
			The liabilities for earned and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up
to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted
using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of
the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.
			The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet since the Company does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
		
iii
Post-employment obligations
			
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
			
-   defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and
			
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insurance corporation
			
Gratuity obligations
			The Company provide for gratuity covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity
(Amendment) Act, 2018. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of
defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to yields on Government Securities at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
			The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
			
This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
			Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.
			Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
			
Defined contribution plans
			
Provident fund and employees’ state insurance corporation
			The Company pays provident fund and employees’ state insurance commission contributions to publicly
administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans
and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
		
iv
Share-based payments
			Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and
Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) of The Walt Disney Company, USA, the ultimate holding company.
			The fair value of options granted under the Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) and Restricted Stock Units
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(RSUs) is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:
			
- including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price)
			
- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and
			
- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holdings
shares for a specific period of time).
			The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
w
Contributed equity
		
Equity shares are classified as equity share capital.
		Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.
x
Dividends
		Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.
y
Earnings per share
		
i
Basic earnings per share
			
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
			
•
the profit attributable to owners of the Company
			
• 	by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.
		
ii
Diluted earnings per share
			Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account:
			
• 	the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and
			
• 	the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
z
Standards issued but not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company
		On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract
with Customers. The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced
disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s
contracts with customers.
		
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
		
i	Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
		
ii	Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial
application (Cumulative catch - up approach). The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.
		The Company is in the process of assessing Ind AS 115’s full impact and intends to adopt Ind AS 115 no earlier
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2018.
aa Rounding off amounts
		All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest rupees millions as
per the requirement of Schedule III (Division II), unless otherwise stated.
2
Critical estimates and judgements
	The preparation of financial statements require the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the company's accounting policies.
	This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different that those
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originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes
together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
a)
Estimation of defined benefit obligation
		The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for
post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of such obligations.
		The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that
should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle
the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Company considers the interest
rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability (Refer Note 15 and 21).
b)
Estimation of current tax expense and deferred tax
		The calculation of the Company’s tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of
certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant
tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may give
rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for
income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. (Refer Note 26)
		The recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient
and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can
be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts.
c)
Estimation of Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
		The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent
liabilities which is related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgement is necessary in assessing
the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of
the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual liability may be
different from the originally estimated as provision (Refer Notes 14 and 29).
d)
Estimated useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment, Goodwill and Other Intangible assets
		The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's
assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at
each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. For the relative size of the Company’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Refer Notes 3 and 4).
e)
Estimation of Provision for Inventory
		The Company writes down inventories to net realisable value based on an estimate of the realisability of
inventories. Write downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not realised. The identification of write-downs requires the use of estimates of ultimate revenue
from the movies. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs of inventories in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed (Refer Note 10).
f)
Estimation of Impairment for Investments in Subsidiaries
		To test the impairment of investment in subsidiaries, market related information and estimates are used to
determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management has based its determination of
recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated
operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent management’s best
estimate about future developments. Changes in the assumptions selected by management, in particular the
discount rate and growth rate assumptions used in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the
Company’s impairment evaluation and hence results (Refer Note 5).
g)
Exceptional items
		Exceptional items are expense items recorded in the year in which they have been determined by management
as being material by their size or incidence and are presented separately within the results of the Company. The
determination of which items are disclosed as exceptional items will affect the presentation of profit for the year
and requires a degree of judgement. Details relating to exceptional items reported during the year are set out in
Note 25.
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-

Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2017

-

Disposals

Closing accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018

0.70

-

Depreciation charge during the year

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018

-

0.70

Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2017

Accumulated depreciation

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2018

103.13

80.79

-

26.92

53.87

183.92

-

9.15

2.51

-

0.87

1.64

11.66

-

0.69

26.30

11.28

14.41

(0.37)

5.03

9.75

25.69

-

-

0.48

11.18

16.55

9.75

5.12

4.63

26.30

0.97

25.33

Transfers

-

183.92

9.54

1.64

0.82

0.82

11.18

-

11.18

(1.30)

-

0.70

130.05

53.87

26.92

26.95

183.92

-

183.92

Plant and
Office
Machinery Equipments

Disposals

Additions

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2017

Gross carrying amount

0.70

-

Depreciation charge during the year

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2017

-

0.70

-

0.70

Freehold
Leasehold
land Improvements

Opening accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2016

Accumulated depreciation

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2017

Additions

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2016

Gross carrying amount

Particulars

Note 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital work-in-progress [Refer Notes 1 (n) and 2(d)]

(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
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10.91

9.96

-

3.26

6.70

20.87

-

-

20.87

14.17

6.70

3.39

3.31

20.87

-

20.87

6.82

5.15

-

1.91

3.24

11.97

-

1.18

10.79

7.55

3.24

1.75

1.49

10.79

0.39

10.40

Electrical Furniture
Installations & Fixtures
& Equipment

83.24

128.76

-

45.66

83.10

212.00

-

32.87

179.13

96.03

83.10

44.41

38.69

179.13

27.04

152.09

Computers
& Servers

225.23

241.58

(0.37)

83.65

158.30

466.81

-

(1.30)

35.21

432.89

274.59

158.30

82.41

75.89

432.89

28.40

404.49

Total

-

-

-

-

-

0.00

(8.86)

5.35

3.51

3.51

-

-

-

3.51

3.51

-

Capital
work- inprogress
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Note 4 : Goodwill and other intangible assets [Refer Notes 1(p), 1(h) and 2(d)]
Particulars

Goodwill

Computer
Software

Customer
Contracts

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2016
Additions
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2017
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening Accumulated Amortisation as at April 1, 2016
Amortisation charge during the year
Closing Accumulated Amortisation as at March 31, 2017
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2017
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2017
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2018
Accumulated Amortisation
Opening accumulated Amortisation as at April 1, 2017
Amortisation charge during the year
Closing Accumulated Amortisation as at March 31, 2018
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018

3,938.01
3,938.01

28.30
28.30

Intellectual
Property
Rights
28.00
100.00
28.00
100.00

787.60
787.60
1,575.20
2,362.81

12.39
9.76
22.15
6.15

9.33
9.33
18.66
9.34

3,938.01
3,938.01

28.30
5.73
34.03

1,575.20
787.60
2,362.80
1,575.21

22.15
4.73
26.88
7.15

Brand

Total Other
Intangibles

420.00
420.00

576.30
576.30

25.00
25.00
50.00
50.00

42.00
42.00
84.00
336.00

88.72
86.09
174.81
401.49

28.00
28.00

100.00
100.00

420.00
420.00

576.30
5.73
582.03

18.66
9.34
28.00
-

50.00
25.00
75.00
25.00

84.00
42.00
126.00
294.00

174.81
81.07
255.88
326.15

Segment level summary of goodwill allocation is presented below:
Media
Networks
As at year ended March 31, 2018
As at year ended March 31, 2017

207.05
310.78

Disney
Consumer
Product
828.14
1,242.00

Gaming &
Interactive
Media
540.02
810.03

Total

1,575.21
2,362.81

The following table sets out the key assumption for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them.

As at year ended March 31, 2018
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term Growth Rate
As at year ended March 31, 2017
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term Growth Rate

Media
Networks

Disney
Consumer
Product

Gaming &
Interactive
Media

25.10%
6.00%

19.60%
6.00%

23.10%
6.00%

23.29%
6.00%

18.93%
6.00%

18.02%
6.00%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:
Assumption
Long-term growth rate

Pre-tax discount rates

Approach used to determining values
This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period. The rates have been considered keeping in mind the growth
during the projected period, the expected growth rates of the industry and the
overall economy in general.
Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments and the countries in which
they operate.
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The recoverable amount of this CGU would equal its carrying amount if the key assumptions were to change as follows:
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Media Networks
From
To
From
To
Pre-tax discount rates
25.10%
85.15%
23.29%
32.03%
Long-term growth rate
6.00%
**
6.00%
**

Disney Consumer Product
Pre-tax discount rates
Long-term growth rate

March 31, 2018
From
To
19.60%
69.08%
6.00%
**

March 31, 2017
From
To
18.93%
46.93%
6.00%
**

March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Gaming & Interactive Media
From
To
From
To
Pre-tax discount rates
23.10%
57.78%
18.02%
34.28%
Long-term growth rate
6.00%
**
6.00%
**
** The management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to exceed
the recoverable amount of the cash generating units.

Note 5: Equity Investments in Subsidiaries (Refer Notes 1(j), 2(f), 25 and 34)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2018

Number of
Units

`

Number of
Units

`

33,910,000

-

33,910,000

-

UTV Communications (USA) LLC [Net of Impairment aggregating
to ` 391.22 million (March 31, 2017: ` 361.52)] of USD 10 each

585,000

-

585,000

29.70

UTV Games Limited [Net of Impairment aggregating to ` 570.27
million (March 31, 2017: ` 570.27 million)] of USD 1 each

12,000,000

-

12,000,000

-

Disney Entertainment (India) Limited [Net of Impairment
aggregating to ` 4,735.18 million (March 31, 2017: ` 5,802.68
million)] of ` 10 each

3,126,280

7,354.22

3,126,280

6,286.72

Investment at Cost (fully paid up)
Unquoted Equity Shares
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited [Net of Impairment
aggregating to ` 2,969.62 million (March 31, 2017: ` 2,969.62
million)] of GBP 1 each

6,316.42

7,354.22
Investment in Equity Component of Preference Shares of
subsidiaries
IG Interactive Entertainment Limited [Net of Impairment
aggregating to ` 3,546.70 million (March 31, 2017: ` 3,348.12)]
of GBP 1 each
UTV Games Limited [Net of Impairment aggregating to ` 584.88
million (March 31, 2017: ` 584.88 million)] of USD 1 each
Total
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (gross)
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments
Net carrying value of investments
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45,423,665

-

45,423,665

198.58

12,718,000

-

12,718,000

-

7,354.22
20,152.09
12,797.87
7,354.22

198.58
6,515.00
20,152.09
13,637.09
6,515.00
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6 (a): Non-current Investments (Refer Note 1(k))
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

Number of
Units

`

As at
March 31, 2017

Number of
Units

`

Investments in Equity Shares (fully paid-up)
Quoted equity investments at Fair value through Profit and
Loss (FVTPL)
Radaan Mediaworks India Limited [Net of Impairment aggregating
62,500
0.04
to ` NIL (March 31, 2017: ` 0.46 million) (Refer Note (a) below)
Unquoted equity investments at FVTPL
United Teleshopping and Marketing Company Limited (Refer
600,000
*
Note (b) below)
Homland Network Corporation of USD 0.001 each
352,000
0.01
352,000
0.01
Total equity investments
0.01
0.05
Investments in preference shares (fully paid-up)
Unquoted preference shares at FVPL
Homland Network Corporation
125,000
*
125,000
*
Total preference shares
Total non-current investments
0.01
0.05
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
0.50
thereof (gross)
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
0.01
0.01
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of Investments
0.46
Net carrying value of investments
0.01
0.05
* Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
Note:
(a) During the current year, investment held in Radaan Mediaworks India Limited was sold through open market i.e. Stock
Exchange.
(b) As per Board resolution dated March 09, 2018, the approval of the board is taken to write off the investment held by the
Company in United Teleshoping and Marketing Limited.
6 (b) Loans

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 34)
Considered doubtful [Refer Note below]
Less: Provision for doubtful loans
Security deposits

20.33

20.33

(20.33)
134.63
134.63

(20.33)
121.41
121.41

Note:
This amount pertains to interest free loans of ` 20.33 million (March 31, 2017: ` 20.33 million) given to subsidiary
Companies of the Company, for its working capital requirement. Considering significant accumulated losses of the
subsidiary, provision was created towards doubtful recovery of this loan.
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Current
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Considered good

1.67

2.92

Considered doubtful

0.80

0.80

(0.80)
1.67

(0.80)
2.92

Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits
6 (c) Other Financial assets  

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Non-current
Unbilled revenue

202.14
202.14

-

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on bank deposits
Interest accrued on Loans to Related Parties
Considered doubtful
Less : Provision for doubtful interest
Unbilled revenue

1.29

1.34

89.98
(89.98)
2,932.37
2,933.66

89.98
(89.98)
439.59
440.93

6 (d) Trade receivables (Refer Notes 1(q) and 34)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Unsecured, considered good
1,656.94
1,736.07
Doubtful
139.74
41.12
Total
1,796.68
1,777.19
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(139.74)
(41.12)
1,656.94
1,736.07
No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a
partner, director or a member.
6 (e) Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Notes 1(i) and Note below)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with banks:
- In current accounts
- In Exchange Earner’s Foreign currency Accounts
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand
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123.29
570.00
0.05
693.34

42.00
1.38
735.00
0.09
778.47

Note:
There are no repatriation restrictions with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period
and prior periods.
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6 (f)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Fixed Deposits (Refer Note below)
- with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months
- with original maturity of more than 12 months

0.38
1.40
1.78

0.36
1.40
1.76

Note:
Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 1.55 million (March 31, 2017: ` 1.55 million) are provided as security against various
bank guarantees given and Fixed Deposits amounting to ` 0.10 million (March 31, 2017: 0.10 Millions) is provided as
security to the Sales Tax Authorities, Delhi.
7

Income tax assets (net) [Refer Note 1(e)]

Income tax assets (net)

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
2,607.00
2,256.77
2,607.00
2,256.77

Movement in Income Tax Assets (net):

Opening income tax asset/ (liability) at the beginning of the year
Withholding taxes / advance taxes paid during the year
Refund received during the year
Income tax adjusted with respect to prior years
Net income tax asset/ (liability) at the end of year
8

Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
2,256.77
2,256.64
350.23
626.43
(622.57)
(3.73)
2,607.00
2,256.77

Deferred tax assets (net) [Refer Note 1(e)]
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Deferred income tax assets
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Allowance for doubtful Financial and Non-Financial Assets
Provision for Employee benefits obligations
Expenses disallowed under Section 35DD of Income Tax Act, 1961 allowable
in later years
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities
Inventory Amortisation
Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets

12.00
26.50
0.07

14.23
86.79
24.96
0.38

38.57

126.36

38.57
38.57
-

89.57
36.79
126.36
-

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences where it is not probable that the differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profits will not be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilized. The Company has not recognized deferred tax assets and restricted it to the extent of deferred tax
liabilities as it is not probable that such difference will reverse in the foreseeable future.
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9

Other non-current assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Balance with Government Authorities

10

20.83
20.83

Inventories [Refer Note 1(d) and 2(e)]

Unamortised cost of Completed/ Acquired Movie Copyrights
Movies Under Production
Program/Film Acquisitions

11

36.51
36.51

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
111.38
258.80
64.09
1.00
112.38
322.89

Other current assets
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Balance with Government Authorities
Advance to Suppliers
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less : Allowance for doubtful advances to supplier
Prepaid expenses
Others

435.08

296.46

21.80
284.70
(284.70)
22.48
11.99
491.35

75.36
1,394.31
(1,394.31)
24.95
0.04
396.81

Movement in Allowance for doubtful advance to supplier:

Allowance as at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Allowance as at the end of the year

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,394.31
1,382.86
(1,109.61)
11.45
284.70
1,394.31

12 (a) Share capital
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Authorised
1,66,02,41,500 (March 31, 2017: 1,398,991,500) equity shares of ` 10 each
1,666,000 (March 31, 2017: 1,666,000) Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares of ` 1,500 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
891,865,574 (March 31, 2017: 875,588,485) equity shares of ` 10 each, fully
paid-up
Total
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16,602.42
2,499.00

13,989.92
2,499.00

19,101.42

16,488.92

8,918.65
8,918.65

8,755.88
8,755.88
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Notes:
(i)

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting
period (Refer Note 34):
Equity Shares:
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Numbers
Amount
Numbers
Amount
Balance as at the Beginning of the year

875,588,485

Add: Shares issued during the year (Refer 16,277,089
Notes 1 and 2 below)
Add: Shares issued during the year on account
of conversion of preference shares (Refer Note
3 below)
Balance as at the end of the year
891,865,574

52,837,473

528.37

162.77 817,692,308

8,176.92

5,058,704

50.59

8,918.65 875,588,485

8,755.88

8,755.88

-

		Notes:
		

1. 	During the current year, the Company has allotted 16,277,089 equity Shares of ` 10 each at a premium of
` 382 per share to the Shareholders of Indiagames Limited and The Walt Disney Company (India) Private
Limited pursuant to the composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement sacntioned by the honourable
National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated June 08, 2017.

		

2. 	During the previous year ended March 31, 2017, the Company has allotted 817,692,308 equity Shares of
` 10 each at a premium of ` 3 per share to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the
holding Company.

		

3. 	During the previous year ended Mar 31, 2017, On January 9, 2017, the Company has allotted 5,058,704
equity shares of ` 10 each at a premium of ` 484 each to The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) on
conversion of 1,666,000 Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares.
(ii)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate share in the Company (No. of shares)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the Holding
Company
880,313,756
875,431,485
(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate share in the Company (% shareholding )
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited, the Holding
Company
98.70%
99.98%
(v)

Authorised Share Capital
During the current year, the authorised equity share capital of ` 13,989.92 millions comprising of 1,398,991,500
equity shares of ` 10 each has been increased to ` 16,602.42 millions comprising of 1,66,02,41,500 equity
shares of ` 10 each, pursuant to the composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement sacntioned by the
honourable National Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated June 08, 2017.
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(vi) Details of shares held by the Holding Company (No. of shares)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited

880,313,756

875,431,485

(vii) Details of shares held by the Holding Company (% shareholding)
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Equity Shares:
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited

98.70%

99.98%

12 (b) - Other equity
Other Equity-Capital
Equity
Shares to Securities
component be issued
premium
of
reserve
compound
financial
instrument
532.43
6,380.62 12,582.23
-
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General
Reserve

Reserves and Surplus
Retained
Shares
earnings
Options
Outstanding
Reserve

Capital
Reserves

Total
Reserves
and Surplus

Other Reserves
Business
Total other
Restructuring reserves
Reserve

Total

Balance at the April 1, 2016
4,253.27 (27,537.49)
211.02
390.98 (10,099.99)
1,500.00
1,500.00 (1,686.94)
Profits / (Loss)
- (1,632.68)
- (1,632.68)
- (1,632.68)
Gain/(Loss) on
5.37
5.37
5.37
remeasurements of postemployment benefit obligations
(Net of tax)
Share based payments
(62.11)
(62.11)
(62.11)
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
(13.13)
(13.13)
(13.13)
Transferred to Retained
(532.43)
532.43
532.43
earnings
Issue of equity shares [Refer
4,901.49
4,901.49
4,901.49
Note 12 (a)]
Balance as at March 31, 2017
6,380.62 17,470.59
4,253.27 (28,632.37)
148.91
390.98 (6,368.62)
1,500.00
1,500.00
1,512.00
Balance at the April 1, 2017
6,380.62 17,470.59
4,253.27 (28,632.37)
148.91
390.98 (6,368.62)
1,500.00
1,500.00
1,512.00
Profits / (Loss)
1,842.83
1,842.83
1,842.83
Gain/(Loss) on
3.06
3.06
3.06
remeasurements of postemployment benefit obligations
(Net of tax)
Share based payments
(73.69)
(73.69)
(73.69)
Reclass of Reserve *
- (8,855.75) (4,253.27) 15,000.00
(390.98)
1,500.00
(1,500.00) (1,500.00)
Stamp Duty on issue of shares
(6.38)
(6.38)
(6.38)
Issue of equity shares [Refer
- (6,380.62)
6,217.85
6,217.85
(162.77)
Note 12 (a)]
Balance as at March 31, 2018
- 14,826.31
- (11,786.48)
75.22
3,115.05
3,115.05
* P ursuant to Scheme of Amalgmation approved by NCLT (Refer Note - 32), the Board has approved (via Board resolution dated October 13, 2017) to write off balance in Retained earnings for
` 15,000 millions in such an order whereby the balance available as on April 01, 2015 in Business Restructuring Reserve is utilised first followed by Capital Reserve, General Reserve and
Securities Premium Account.
Nature and Purpose:
Equity component of compound financial instrument
Under Ind AS, the preference share instrument has both a liability component and an equity component (therefore, a compound instrument). The liability component is recognized at fair value calculated by discounting the cash flows at conversion at a market rate for a similar debt host instrument. The equity component is measured as the residual amount. [Refer Note 1(l)(i)]. This equity
component after issuance of shares has been transferred to Retained earnings as at March 31, 2017.
Shares to be issued
Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer Note 32), the additional equity shares to be issued by the Company have been disclosed as “Shares to be issued”. These shares have
been subsequently issued on July 24, 2017.
Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
General Reserve
General Reserve is a free reserve and is available for distribution of dividend, issue of bonus shares, buyback of Company’s securities. It was created by transfer of amounts out of distributable profits.
Shares Options Outstanding Reserve
The share options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan under which the employees are entitled for
shares of the ultimate holding company (Refer Note 38). The amount includes share based payment expense recognised ` -46.80 million (March 31, 2017 ` 44.95 million) netted off with ` 26.89
million (March 31, 2017 Rs. 190.42 million) towards options exercised during the year.
Capital Reserve
The Company had allotted warrants with an option to convert it into equity shares within a period of 18 months from the date of issue on May 6, 2008. The aforesaid warrants had lapsed and the
amount received was forfeited and transferred to capital reserve.
Business Restructuring Reserve:
Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 391 to 394 (read with Section 78 and Sections 100 to 103) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, sanctioned by the
Honorable Bombay High Court during the Financial Year 2009-10, Business Restructuring Reserve has been created by transferring balance standing to the credit of Securities Premium Account
for adjustment of certain expenses and inventory as prescribed therein.
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13 (a) Borrowings (Current) (Refer Note 1(r))
Terms of
repayment
Unsecured:
From Banks (Refer note below)
- Cash Credits

Payable on
demand

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Total current borrowings
Less : Interest accrued but not due [included in Note 13 (c)]
Current Borrowings
Note:
Loan from Banks are supported by the letter of guarantee from Disney Enterprises, Inc.

-

308.87

-

308.87
0.24
308.63

13 (b) Trade payables (Refer Note 1(q))
Trade payables (Refer Note 34)
	Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer
Note 30)
	Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.30

0.34

4,812.20

3,519.07

4,812.50

3,519.41

13 (c) Other financial liabilities (current)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposits from distributors
Common Marketing Fund
Payable to Capital Creditors

14

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.24
1.45
0.90
0.85
0.85
6.92
2.30
8.91

Provisions (non-current) (Refer Note 1(t) and 2(c))
Provision for Contingencies (Refer Note below)

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
19.99
18.56
19.99
18.56

Note:
Provision with respect to disputed tax matters (Custom duty, Sales tax, Service tax and Withholding taxes) is made in
accordance with the Company’s policy stated in Note 1 (t):
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening Balance
18.56
14.44
Add: Additional provision made during the year
1.43
5.74
Less: Provision Reversed
(1.62)
Closing Balance
19.99
18.56
The timing and the amount of cash outflows, if any, that may arise from the above matters will be determined only
in future.
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15

Employee benefits obligation (Non-current) [Refer Notes 1(v), 2(a) and 21]

Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
30.79
22.24
18.13
18.67
48.92
40.91
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Employee benefits obligation (Current) [Refer Note 1(v), 2(a) and 21]
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

16

25.33
2.31
27.64

27.12
4.10
31.22

Income tax liabilities (net)

Wealth tax (net of advances) (Refer Note below)

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.11
0.11
0.11
0.11

Note: There is no movement in the above years.
17

Other liabilities (non-current)

Deferred operating lease obligation [Refer Note 1(f)]
Deferred Interest Income

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
177.53
179.20
30.16
207.69
179.20

Other liabilities (Current)

Statutory dues (including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source)
Advance Billing to Customers
Advance from customers
Deferred operating lease obligation [Refer Note 1(f)]
Deferred Interest Income
18

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
835.17
259.81
267.96
894.78
57.17
105.22
1.67
1.67
37.40
1,199.37
1,261.48

Revenue from operations [Refer Notes 1(c) and 34]
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Sales and services revenue (Net) :
Distribution and Licensing of Movies
Royalty on Merchandise Licensing
Support Services to Group Companies (Refer Note 34)
Media Service Fees
Interactive Media and Mobile Services
Others
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3,537.54
100.58
385.96
343.72
1,303.11
21.71
5,692.62

5,196.25
735.55
366.72
389.48
1,675.43
23.79
8,387.22
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19

Other income
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost:
On Fixed Deposits
On Loans given to related parties (Refer Note 34)
On Unwinding of discount on security deposits
On Others
Interest income on income tax refund
Provision for diminution in the value of investments written back
Miscellaneous income
Net foreign exchange gains
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43.02
9.99
11.68
168.34
24.04
257.07

Direct Costs

Amortisation of movie costs
Participation Costs
Print Costs
Royalty Expenses
Advertisement and publicity
Footage and Programming Cost
Miscellaneous expenses
21

17.13
13.22
12.00
11.99
0.46
11.33
11.31
77.44

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
320.61
2,481.38
1,543.79
1,644.58
42.74
214.38
637.36
1,014.12
105.39
402.23
19.27
75.27
1.75
29.01
2,670.91
5,860.97

Employee benefits expense [Refer Notes 1(v) and 2(a)]
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries, Wages, Allowances and Other Benefits
945.08
1,224.90
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
39.24
52.26
Gratuity (Refer Note (I) below)
26.94
15.65
Share based Payments (Refer Note 38) *
(46.80)
44.95
Staff welfare expenses
21.29
26.76
Less: Recovery from Group company
(373.17)
(227.46)
612.58
1,137.06
* In the previous year, accrual for Share based payment was estimated at ` 137.66 million, against which during the
year the Company received actual charge of ` 52.32 million including current year charge from the Ultimate Holding
Company. Due to this, the current year actual expense is a credit balance of ` 46.80 million instead of debit balance
of ` 50.85 million.
Notes:
(I)
Gratuity

		The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees
who are in continuous service for period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days
salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes
contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target
level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.
(II)

Leave encashment

		The leave obligation cover the company’s liability for sick and earned leave. Provision for leave encashment as at
March 31, 2018 is ` 20.44 million (March 31, 2017: ` 22.77 million)
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(III)

Defined contribution plans

		The Company contributes on a defined contribution basis to Employees’ Provident Fund, Employees’ Pension
Scheme, Employees’ State Insurance Corporation and Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund towards post
employment benefits. Contributions are made to registered funds, administered by the government, in India for
employees at the rate as per regulations. The obligation of the company is limited to the amount contributed and
it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
39.24
52.24
0.02
*
*
39.24
52.26

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Provident and Pension Fund
Employees State Insurance Corporation
Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund
Total
* Amount is below rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
(IV)
		

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
(a) 	The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
the year are as follows:

Particulars

Present value of
obligation
85.20
11.67
6.59
18.26

Fair value of
plan assets
(33.79)
(2.61)
(2.61)

-

0.15

0.15

(0.21)
0.68
(5.99)
(5.52)

0.15

(0.21)
0.68
(5.99)
(5.37)

(16.87)
81.07

(12.33)
16.87
(31.71)

(12.33)
49.36

Present value of
obligation
Balance at the beginning of the year as at April 1, 2017
81.07
Current service cost
2.72
Interest expense/(income)
1.63
Past Service Cost
23.36
Total amount recognised in profit and loss
27.71
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
expense/(income)
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions
0.59
(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions
(2.61)
Experience (gains)/losses
0.86
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive Loss/
(1.16)
(Income)
Exchange difference
Employer contributions
Benefit payments
(9.06)
Balance at the end of the year as at March 31, 2018
98.56

Fair value of
plan assets
(31.71)

Balance at the beginning of the year as at April 1, 2016
Current service cost
Interest expense/(income)
Total amount recognised in profit and loss
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in interest
expense
(Gain )/loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain )/loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive Loss/
(Income)
Exchange difference
Employer contributions
Benefit payments
Balance at the end of the year as at March 31, 2017
Particulars
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Net amount
51.41
11.67
3.98
15.65

Net amount

(0.77)
(0.77)
(1.90)

49.36
2.72
0.86
23.36
26.94
(1.90)

(1.90)

0.59
(2.61)
0.86
(3.06)

(17.13)
9.07
(42.44)

(17.13)
0.01
56.12
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The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Particulars
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Present value of funded obligations
98.56
81.07
Fair value of plan assets
(42.44)
(31.71)
Deficit of funded plan
56.12
49.36
Unfunded plans
(b)

Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows,
Particulars

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a. Discount rate (Per annum)
7.71%
6.81%
b. Estimated rate of Planned Asset (Per annum)
7.71%
6.81%
c. Rate of escalation in salary (Per Annum)
11.00%
10.00% to
12.00%
d. Rate of Employee Turnover (Per Annum)
9.00%
14.00%
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information
is certified by the actuary.
(c)

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity of the desired benefit obligation to change in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Particulars
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2017
Increase
Decrease
Increase
Decrease
Discount rate (+1% / -1%)
(6.69)
7.64
(3.72)
4.14
Salary growth rate (+1% / -1%)
3.79
(3.82)
1.93
(1.96)
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) (+1% / -1%)
0.25
(0.35)
0.12
(0.16)
The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be corrected.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(Present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the project unit credit method) at the end of the reporting
period has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.
The method and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior
period.
(d)

The major categories of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars
Insurance Managed Funds (LIC)
Total

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
42.44
31.71
(100%)
(100%)
42.44
31.71
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(e)

Risk Exposure
The Company is exposed to below risks, pertaining to its defined benefit plans.
Asset volatility
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond
yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The plan asset
are invested in insurance managed fund, which in turn make investments in fixed
income securities with high grades and in government securities.
Changes in bond yields
A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially
offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.
The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM)
framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under
the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company’s ALM objective is to match assets to the pension
obligations by investing in insurance managed fund, which in turn make investment in long-term fixed interest
securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.
All portion of assets consists of investment made in Life Insurance Corporation (LIC).

(f)

Defined benefit liability and employer contribution

		Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The Company considers that the contribution rates set at the
last valuation date are sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the agreed period and that regular contributions,
which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.
		Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2018 are INR ` 25.33
millions.
		The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 9 years (2017 – 10 years). The expected
maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity obligation is as follows:
Particulars

1st
Following
Year

As at March 31, 2018
Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity)
Total
As at March 31, 2017
Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity)
Total
22

2nd
Following
Year

4th
Following
Year

5th
Following
Year

Sum of
Years 6 To
10

8.24
8.24

8.63
8.63

9.21
9.21

9.81
9.81

9.89
9.89

43.84
43.84

13.86
13.86

9.79
9.79

9.63
9.63

9.29
9.29

8.88
8.88

32.39
32.39

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3)
Amortisation of Goodwill (Refer Note 4)
Amortisation of Other Intangible assets (Refer Note 4)
Less: Recovery from Group companies
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3rd
Following
Year

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
83.65
82.41
787.60
787.60
81.06
86.09
(476.53)
(22.33)
475.78
933.77
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Other expenses

Rent (Refer Note 31)
Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Legal and Professional fees
Payment to Auditors
- Audit fees
- Certification fees/ Other services
- Reimbursement of Expenses
Rates and taxes
Electricity
Insurance
Travel, Conveyance and Accommodation
Advertising, publicity and business promotion
Communication and Postage Expenses
Allowance for doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Distribution Costs
Net Loss on Disposal of Prpperty, Plant & Equipment
Net Loss on Sale of Investments
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translations
Advances written off
Add/(Less) : Allowance for doubtful Financial and Non-Financial Assets
Central Support Expenses (Refer Note 34)
Miscellaneous expenses
Less : Recovery from Group companies
24

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
284.05
283.52
84.76
74.62
86.51
95.01
2.77
0.33
304.06
34.00
16.12
86.35
231.84
15.66
98.62
71.27
0.65
0.38
1,111.75
(1,109.61)
157.86
47.53
(555.23)
969.67

10.72
0.46
0.08
151.89
28.83
26.02
55.47
165.82
19.76
18.75
26.57
2.53
33.21
9.39
137.42
50.43
(332.94)
857.56

Finance Costs
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at fair value through profit
or loss:
- Preference shares at amortised cost
- Borrowing from banks
Interest on borrowings from Related Parties (Refer Note 34)
Other borrowing costs
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35.11
1.14
1.26
37.51

192.43
676.81
1.21
870.45

Exceptional Items [Refer Note 2(g)]
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for dimunition in the value of Investments Written-back [Refer Note
(1,067.50)
(a) & (b) below]
Impairment in the value of investments [Refer Notes (b),(c) and (d) below]
228.28
613.43
(839.22)
613.43
a)	The Company performed the annual impairment test for its investment in subsidiaries as at year ended March
31, 2018. The recoverable amount of investment in Disney Entertainment (India) Limited (DEIL) as at year end
has been determined based on a “Value-in-use” method using cash flow projections / forecasts from the financial
budget for 8 years, as approved by the senior management of the Company. The Company prepares future cash
flows for periods longer than 5 years, as a practice, on an annual basis and is confident that such projections
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over 5 years are reliable given the robust internal process followed and also on account of its ability, basis past
experience, of estimating future cash flows accurately over such a longer period. It was concluded that the fair
value less costs of disposal did not exceed the value-in-use. As a result of this analysis, the management has
recognized a write back of Investment provision of ` 1,067.50 million (March 31, 2017: ` NIL) in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. In determining the value-in-use, the cash flows were discounted at a rate of 15.40% on a pre-tax
basis considering current market assessment of the risk specific to the subsidiary company.
b)	DEIL was having significant business losses and its net worth had eroded in the previous year. As a result, the
Company had recognized impairment provision of ` 505.93 million in the previous year. However, during the
current year, there is a significant increase in the value-in-use of DEIL due to shift in the content strategy of its
subsidiaries and acquisition of 99.99% stake in United Home Entertainment Private Limited (UHEPL) from The
Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte. Limited (TWDC-SEA) under a Share Swap Arrangement on Jul 24,
2017. Further, UHEPL merged with Disney Broadcasting India Limited (DBIL), a 100% subsidiary of DEIL pursuant
to the Composite Scheme of amalgamation between the 2 companies with effect from the appointed date of April
1, 2015. This Scheme of amalgamation was effected on September 16, 2018 upon the filing of E-Form INC-28 by
DBIL with the Registrar of Companies pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal dated
June 8, 2017 and of the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting dated August 29, 2018.
c)	UTV USA Communications LLC is having significant business losses and its net worth is eroded. The Company
performed its annual impairment test for the years ended March 31, 2018. The recoverable amount of investment
in UTV USA Communications LLC as at year end has been determined based on a “fair value less cost of disposal”
method. The fair value is the market participant price that would be received to sell an assets or paid to transfer a
liability. Accordingly, the management has recognised an impairment expense of ` 29.70 million (March 31, 2017:
` 40 million) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
d)	IG Interactive Entertainment Limited is having significant business losses and its net worth is eroded. The
Company performed its annual impairment test for the years ended March 31, 2018. The recoverable amount
of investment in IG Interactive Entertainment Limited as at year end has been determined based on a “fair value
less cost of disposal” method. The fair value is the market participant price that would be received to sell an
assets or paid to transfer a liability. Accordingly, the management has recognised an impairment expense of
` 198.58 million (March 31, 2017: ` 67.50 million) in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Income tax expense [Refer Note 1(e) and 2(b)]
Particulars
a) Income tax expense
Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total current tax expense
Deferred Tax
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax expense/benefit
Total Income tax expenses
b)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

-

3.73
3.73

87.79
(87.79)
-

(5.88)
5.88
3.73

Effective Tax reconciliation
During the current year, the Company has taxable Losses. Hence, no taxes are payable.

c) 	The details of carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax asset is recognised
is as follows:
Particulars
Carried forward Business Losses (Refer Note (i) below)
Long Term Capital Losses (Refer Note (i) below)
Short Term Capital Losses (Refer Note (i) below)
Unabsorbed Depreciation (Refer Note (i) below)
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Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
9,562.08
11,711.45
71.72
71.72
38.54
38.54
2,480.80
2,480.80
12,153.14
14,302.51
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(i)

Year wise break up of Carried forward Losses:

Financial year

As at March 31, 2018
Unused tax Potential tax
losses
benefits

Business Losses:
2009-10
2010-11
2011-12
2012-13
2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18

As at March 31, 2017
Unused tax
Potential tax
losses
benefits

Year of Expiry for
business losses

141.50
2,504.19
1,334.18
1,832.41
1,476.75
2,263.56
9.49
-

49.45
875.21
466.30
640.43
516.12
791.11
3.32
-

2,149.37
141.50
2,504.19
1,334.18
1,832.41
1,476.75
2,263.56
9.49
-

743.85
48.97
866.65
461.73
634.16
511.07
783.37
3.28
-

March 31, 2018
March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025
March 31, 2026

Long Term Capital Losses:
2011-12

71.72

16.71

71.72

16.71

March 31, 2020

Short Term Capital Losses:
2013-14
2014-15

36.34
2.21

12.70
0.77

36.34
2.21

12.58
0.76

March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023

2,480.80
12,153.14

858.56
4,230.68

2,480.80
14,302.51

858.56
4,941.69

No expiry

Unabsorbed depreciation:
2006-07 to 2017-18
Total
Total

Note: The tax loss numbers carried forward for year ending March 2018 is based on Management estimates of the
Income as per Income Tax Act, 1961.
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Earning per share (Refer Note 1(y))
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Basic and Diluted
Earning / (Loss) for the year (A)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) (Nos.)
Number of shares for Diluted Loss per share (C) (Nos.)
Basic Earning / (Loss) per Equity share (A)/(B) (`)
Diluted Earning / (Loss) per Equity share (A)/(C) (`)

28

1,842.83
891,865,574
891,865,574
2.07
2.07

(1,632.68)
437,652,513
437,652,513
(3.73)
(3.73)

Segment Information

	Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Strategic Steering Committee of the Company.
	As per Ind AS 108-Operating Segments - ‘If a financial report contains both the consolidated financial statements of a
parent that is within the scope of this Ind AS as well as the parent’s separate financial statements, segment information
is required to be disclosed only in the consolidated financial statements.’ Accordingly, the Segment information is
disclosed in the consolidated financial Statements of the Company.
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Contingent liability [Refer Notes 1(u) and 2(c)]

a)
b)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
On account of disputed demand of:
Income tax matters
Services tax matters
Sales Tax / VAT/ Lease Tax

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
648.28
732.52
443.36
798.29
853.81

442.21
815.02
692.40

Notes:
(a) 	It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
pending resolution of the respective proceedings.
(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
30

Details under the MSMED Act, 2006 for dues to micro, small and medium enterprises

i)

ii)

the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately)
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal
- Interest due thereon
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year;
- Principal
- Interest

iii)

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

iv)

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year;
- Total interest Accrued during the year
- Interest remaining unpaid

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
0.01
0.28

0.07
0.27

-

-

-

-

0.01
0.01

-

v)

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
0.28
0.27
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
The above information and that given in Note 13(b) - ‘Trade Payables’ regarding micro and small enterprises has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
31

Leases
Operating Lease [Refer Note 1(f)] :
	The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are mainly in respect of office premises. These lease arrangements
range for a period between 11 months and 9 years, which include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most
of the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The
aggregate lease rentals payable on these leasing arrangements are charged as rent under “Other Expenses” in Note 23.
Lease obligations
Total Lease expenses:
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year
Total minimum lease commitments
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Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
284.05
284.05

283.52
283.52
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With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
86.40
259.20
86.40
-

Not later than 1 year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than 5 years
32

Scheme of Amalgamation

	Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation between the Company and its group company/subsidiary company
namely, The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited (TWDC) and Indiagames Limited (Indiagames) sanctioned by
the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal dated June 8, 2017 (the ‘Scheme’); all assets and liabilities
of these entities were transferred and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date of April 1, 2015. The
Scheme has accordingly been given effect to in these financial statements with effective from April 1, 2015.
	TWDC was into four main business segments namely, Media Networks Services, Disney Consumer Products right
licensing, Home Entertainment and Interactive.
	Indiagames were in the business of developing, aggregating and distributing content on interactive media and digital
platforms and also creating digital applications.
	The amalgamation had been accounted based on the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement given
under the Scheme and accordingly, the Company has not applied pooling of interest method prescribed under Ind AS
103 - Business Combination with respect to accounting for common control business combinations.
	Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of TWDC and Indiagames as at April 1, 2015 have been taken over at their fair
values as determined by an independent valuer.
	1. 	Pursuant to scheme, USCL has issued 11,394,818 equity shares subsequently on July 24, 2017 to Disney
Enterprises Inc., on amalgamation of TWDC into the Company.
	2. 	The Company’s investment (56%) in the equity share capital of Indiagames Limited stand cancelled. Further, the
Company has also issued 4,882,271 equity shares subsequently on July 24, 2017 to The Walt Disney Company
(Southeast Asia) Pte Limited for the remaining 44% stake on amalgamation of Indiagames into the Company.
	These additional equity shares issued subsequently by the company on amalgamation have been disclosed as “Shares
to be issued” under “Other Equity” as at April 1, 2015; March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017.
There were no differences in Accounting Policies of the Company and its above mentioned amalgamated companies.
	As approved under the Scheme, the difference between the amount of fair value of consideration over the fair value
of the overall net assets taken over (including Other Intangible Assets), has been debited to Goodwill Account, such
Goodwill would be amortised over a period of five consecutive financials years beginning the financial year ended
March 31, 2016 in line with above Scheme.
Consideration (including adjustment in investment held)
Fair Value of shares to be issued
Investment as on April 1, 2015 held by the Company
Total
Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities taken over
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Other Intangible Assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Total

TWDC

Indiagames

Total

4,466.77
4,466.77

1,913.85
259.19
2,173.04

6,380.62
259.19
6,639.81

312.73
2,587.95
31.50
2,654.15
(1,119.56)
4,466.77

23.27
1,350.06
524.37
1,196.90
(921.56)
2,173.04

336.00
3,938.01
555.87
3,851.05
(2,041.12)
6,639.81

Had the Company followed accounting for the above business combination in line with guidance give by business
combination amongst entities under common control, as specified under Ind AS 103 on Business Combination, the
impact would have been as under:
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i) 	

Impact on loss, in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account:
Particulars

Amortisation of Goodwill
Amortisation on other intangibles
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Decrease in Loss Before Tax
Decrease in Loss After Tax
ii)

In the Balance Sheet:
Particulars

Assets
Goodwill
Other Intangible Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment
Other Financial Assets (Non-current)
Other Equity
33

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
(1,575.21)
(319.01)
(5.59)
87.00
(1,812.81)

(2,362.81)
(395.34)
(7.81)
87.00
(2,678.96)

Other events after the reporting period
a)

The Board of Directors and Shareholders in their meeting held on April 06, 2018 and on May 29, 2018 respectively,
had approved the reduction of paid up equity share capital of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section
66 and Section 52 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the National
Company Law Tribunal (Procedure for reduction of share capital of Company) Rules, 2016 from ` 8,918.65 million
to ` 8,917.09 million by cancelling 1,56,995 of equity shares held by the Non-promoters for a fair consideration of
Rs. 500 (Rupees Five Hundred only) per equity share and the consequential reduction of the securities premium
account by a sum not exceeding ` 76.93 million subject to requisite approvals from the National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal”) and other regulatory authorities and concerned persons as may be
necessary.

		

Upon the Capital Reduction becoming effective under the Act (1) the Company shall debit the equity share capital
account to the extent of the face value of the shares cancelled under the Capital Reduction and (2) the difference
between the face value per cancelled share and the amount of consideration paid per cancelled share to the
Non-promoter shareholder be debited to the securities premium account under the head “Other Equity”.

		

Pursuant to the aforesaid approvals, the Company had filed an application with the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Hon’ble Tribunal”) on June 14, 2018 to seek confirmation for reduction of paid-up
equity share capital and consequential reduction of securities premium account of the Company. Accordingly the
reduction application was admitted by the Hon’ble Tribunal on July 04, 2018.

b)
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For the year
For the year
ended March ended March 31,
31, 2018
2017
Increase /
Increase /
(Decrease)
(Decrease)
(787.60)
(787.60)
(76.33)
(76.33)
(2.22)
(3.06)
(866.15)
(866.99)
(866.15)
(866.99)

The Board of Directors of Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited (‘DBIL’) at its meeting held on December 22,
2015, had approved the draft Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation between DBIL and United Home
Entertainment Private Limited (‘UHEPL’) (the ‘Scheme’), whereby UHEPL will stand merged and amalgamated
with DBIL with effect from the appointed date of April 1, 2015, and filing of the same with Hon’ble High Court/
National Company Law Tribunal at Mumbai. Accordingly, the petition was filed before the National Company Law
Tribunal (‘NCLT’), Mumbai bench for sanctioning the Scheme, which was heard by the Hon’ble Tribunal on June
8, 2017 and based on the submissions made, the Hon’ble Tribunal on June 8, 2017 was pleased to sanction the
Scheme.
The Scheme was effected on September 16, 2018 upon the filing of E-Form INC-28 by DBIL with the Registrar of
Companies (‘ROC’) pursuant to the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal dated June 8, 2017 and
of the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting dated August 29, 2018.
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The Board of Directors of Genx Entertainment Limited (‘Transferor’ / ‘Genx’) at its meeting held on March 9, 2018,
had approved the draft Scheme of Merger by absorption between Genx and Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
(‘Transferee’ / ‘DBIL’) and their respective shareholders and creditors (the ‘Scheme’) and filing of the same with
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (the ‘Tribunal’). The Scheme is envisaged under the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and is to come
into effect from April 1, 2017 (the ‘Appointed Date’). The Scheme was approved by the Members at their meeting
convened on May 22, 2018, on the direction of the Hon’ble Tribunal where the application seeking permission for
the Scheme was filed. Accordingly, Joint Petition was filed before the Hon’ble Tribunal for sanctioning the Scheme
on June 8, 2018, which was heard by the Hon’ble Tribunal on August 30, 2018 and based on the submission
made, the Hon’ble Tribunal on August 30, 2018, sanctioned the Scheme. The Scheme will be effective only after
obtaining approval from Ministry of Information and Broadcasting (‘MIB’) and then filling of E-Form INC-28 with
ROC. Accordingly, the accounting treatment will be given once the Scheme is effective.

Related party transactions
The names of related parties with relationship and transactions with them:
(a) Relationship:
(1) Ultimate Holding Company
Name
The Walt Disney Company, USA
(2) Intermediate/Immediate Holding Company
Name
The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
Disney Enterprises, Inc.

		

Relationship
Immediate Holding Company
Intermediate Holding Company

(3) Subsidiaries of the Company:
Name

Principal
Activity
UTV Communications (USA) LLC
Engaged in Film
Distribution
business
IG Interactive Entertainment
Engaged in Film
Limited
Distribution
business
UTV Games Limited
Investment
holding
Disney Entertainment (India)
Engaged in
Limited
television
channel
broadcast
business and
Stage play
Genx Entertainment Limited
Engaged in
television
channel
broadcast
business.
Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited
Engaged in
**
television
channel
broadcast
business.

Ownership Interest %
Place of
As at
As at
Incorporation March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
United States of
100%
100%
America
United Kingdom

100%

100%

Mauritius

100%

100%

India

57.43%

91.24%

India

57.43%

91.24%

India

57.43%

91.24%
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(4) Fellow Subsidiaries of the Company:
Name
The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
The Walt Disney Co, UK
American Broadcasting Companies, Inc
Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
Buena Vista International Inc.
DCP International Inc,USA
Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services (Shanghai) Co Ltd
Disney Consumer Product Latin America Inc, USA
Disney Destinations, LLC
Disney Shopping, Inc. (Formerly known as Disney Direct Marketing Services, Inc)
Disney Financial Services LLC
Disney International Employee Service Ltd.
Disney Online, USA
Disney Store USA, LLC
Disney Worldwide Services, Inc
ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
Intregration Services, LLC
Marvel Characters B.V.
The Walt Disney Company ( China) Limited
The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
United Home Entertainment Private Limited **
Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US, Inc.
Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
WEDCO International Hold.
PT. Walt Disney Indonesia
The Walt Disney Company (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
The Walt Disney Company (Philippines), Inc.
The Walt Disney (Thailand) Co Ltd
Marvel Brands LLC
Walt Disney Co Japan Ltd
Disney FTC Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd.

		

(5) Other related parties:
Name
UTV Software Communication Limited Employee's Group Gratuity
The Walt Disney Company (India) Private Limited Employee's Group
Gratuity
Indiagames Limited Employee's Group Gratuity

		

Principal
Activity
Gratuity benefit
plan
Gratuity benefit
plan
Gratuity benefit
plan

Place of
Incorporation
India
India
India

(6) Key Management Personnel:
Particulars
Mr. Mahesh Samat
Mrs. Parul Tevatia
Mr. Sujit Vaidya
Ms. Monisha Shroff
Mr. Narendra Kumar Ambwani
Mr. Prem Raj Mehta

Designation
Managing Director (w.e.f July 1, 2017)
Director (resigned w.e.f July 01, 2017)
Whole Time Director (w.e.f July 01, 2017)
Non-Executive Director (w.e.f July 01, 2017)
Independent Director (w.e.f March 31, 2015)
Independent Director (w.e.f March 31, 2015)

		
Note: All the global and other entities under common control of The Walt Disney Company, USA, which do not have
any transactions with the Company during these years are not disclosed.
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Transactions during the year with related parties referred to in item (a) (1) to (6) above:
(1) Transactions with Key management personnel referred in (a)(6) above:
Particulars
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Short Term Employee Benefits
40.99
48.11
Long term Employee Benefits
8.98
6.58
Employee share-based payment
11.82
11.03
Sitting Fees
1.00
2.16
Total compensation
62.79
67.88

		

Note: During the previous financial year ended March 31, 2017 and for the period April 2017 to June 2017 in
current financial year ended March 31, 2018, directors of the Company, namely, Ms. Parul Tevatia, Mr. Sujit
Vaidya and Mr. Nimish Shah were paid salaries in their capacity as employees in the The Walt Disney Company
(India) Private Limited, which got subsequently merged into the Company with effect from the appointed date viz.
April 1, 2015 vide NCLT order (refer Note 31).

		

However, the Company has not paid any remuneration to the above directors during the financial year ended
March 31, 2017 and pursuant thereto compliance of the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act was not applicable to the Company.

		

(2) Transactions with related party referred in (a)(5) above:

		

For information on transactions with other related parties, refer Note 21.

		(3) Transactions with related parties referred in (a)(1) to (a)(4) above:
Particulars

Sales and services revenue
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC *
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited *
- Genx Entertainment Limited
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
- UTV New Media Limited
- Indiagames Limited
- Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
- Marvel Characters B.V.
- Marvel Brands LLC
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
- Disney Enterprises Inc., USA
- Buena Vista International Inc.
Support Services to Group Companies
- Disney Online, USA
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited **
- Genx Entertainment Limited
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
- Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US, Inc.
- Disney Destinations, LLC
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
- Disney Worldwide Services, Inc
- Disney Financials Services LLC

Holding Company/
Subsidiary Companies/
Immediate Holding
Fellow Subsidiary
Company
Companies
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018
2017
2018
2017
-

-

32.95
53.62
2.60
497.83
(0.00)
(0.00)
74.64
24.33

239.36
232.43
471.91
-

1.78
-

2.25
-

8.73
56.24
157.62
12.09
32.03
1.73
16.14
17.61

20.47
90.08
78.23
90.36
9.89
29.03
5.44
28.64
12.33
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Particulars

Holding Company/
Subsidiary Companies/
Immediate Holding
Fellow Subsidiary
Company
Companies
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018
2017
2018
2017
- Buena Vista International Inc.
1.81
- WEDCO International Hold.
8.21
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
8.48
- Walt Disney Co Japan Ltd
2.29
-The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
22.76
- PT. Walt Disney Indonesia
9.60
-The Walt Disney Company (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
6.57
-The Walt Disney Company (Philippines), Inc.
14.62
-The Walt Disney (Thailand) Co Ltd
7.64
Purchases
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
21.32
16.44
- Genx Entertainment Limited
0.63
3.45
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited **
8.31
- Buena Vista International Inc.
2.48
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
1.21
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
3.76
- Walt Disney Co Japan Ltd
0.95
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
2.89
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
8.41
Interest Income from
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
9.99
Royalty Expenses
- Disney Enterprises, Inc. *
17.19
72.01
- Marvel Characters B.V. *
3.80
20.35
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Ltd
2.03
4.17
- Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
1.50
1.50
- Disney Online, USA
1.50
17.11
- Buena Vista International Inc. *
2,809.13
1,854.04
- Marvel Brands LLC *
3.19
Expenses Reimbursed to
- Buena Vista International Inc.
0.01
51.11
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
0.01
1.87
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
10.76
-The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
0.67
Central Support Fees Expenses / (reversals)
- Disney financial Services LLC
(0.43)
0.45
- Disney Online, USA
17.24
20.16
- Disney Worldwide Services Inc.
53.91
78.32
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
27.49
25.12
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
1.26
- Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services
21.28
12.11
(Shanghai) Co Ltd
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
0.04
- The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
19.93
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Particulars

Holding Company/
Subsidiary Companies/
Immediate Holding
Fellow Subsidiary
Company
Companies
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2018
2017
2018
2017
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
11.64
- Disney FTC Services (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
0.59
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
6.14
Expenses recovered from
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
1.29
2.56
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
154.04
120.02
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited **
17.41
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
3.30
3.30
- Genx Entertainment Limited
55.36
61.58
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC
0.18
5.13
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited
1.20
3.98
Other Expenses
- Disney Financial Services LLC
0.11
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
0.10
- Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services
5.43
(Shanghai) Co Ltd
Investment Activities
- Equity Shares in Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
1,030.00
Interest Charged by
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
1.14
Issue of Equity/Preference Shares (including
Secrurities Premium)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
- 10,630.00
Issue of Equity Shares on Conversion of Preference
Shares (including Securities Premium)
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
2,499.00
Impairment of Investments / Loans / (written back)
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC
29.70
40.00
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
- (1,067.50)
505.93
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited
198.58
67.50
Loans Repaid by
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
133.70
Expenses for Cash/Equity share based compensation
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
(51.78)
79.79
Deferred Revenue Income
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
25.79
- Genx Entertainment Limited
9.89
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
0.36
-
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(c)

Outstanding balances of related parties referred to in item (a)(1) to (a)(4) above:
Holding Company/
Immediate Holding
Company
As at
As at
March 31, March 31,
2018
2017

Subsidiary Companies/
Fellow Subsidiary
Companies
As at
As at
March 31, March 31,
2018
2017

Outstanding Corporate Guarantee taken from
- Disney Enterprises, Inc.
7,450.00
7,850.00
Outstanding Balance
- Net Payable to
- The Walt Disney Company (Hongkong)
4.40
- Buena Vista International Inc.
2,435.79
1,737.49
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
54.18
69.90
- Buena Vista Home Entertainment Inc.
5.81
8.16
- Disney Shopping, Inc. (Formerly known as Disney
0.73
0.55
Direct Marketing Services, Inc)
- Disney Online, USA
4.08
14.18
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
10.83
- Marvel Characters B.V.
20.72
39.32
- Marvel Brands LLC
2.84
- Disney Asia Pacific Shared Business Services (Shanghai)
25.49
19.18
Co Ltd
- Disney Enterprises, Inc.
23.51
81.20
- Disney Consumer Product Latin America Inc, USA
4.20
3.59
- DCP International Inc, USA
0.27
0.26
- Disney Store USA, LLC
0.03
0.03
- Disney Worldwisde Services, Inc
26.82
10.87
- The Walt Disney Company ( China) Limited
0.43
- Walt Disney Pictures and Television, USA
0.98
- The Walt Disney Company (Australia) P/L
8.80
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
0.48
- Disney FTC Services (Singapore) Pte
0.47
Accrual for Equity share based compensation
- The Walt Disney Company, USA
28.57
55.35
- Net Receivable from
- UTV Communications (USA) LLC (Net of Provision)
0.55
3.04
- IG Interactive Entertainment Limited (Net of Provision)
14.41
130.74
- Disney Broadcasting (India) Limited **
208.70
281.51
- ESPN Digital Media (India) Private Limited
0.87
- Walt Disney Parks & Resorts US, Inc.
3.36
2.74
- Intregration Services, LLC
0.68
0.68
- Disney Financial Services LLC
4.32
0.95
- Disney Destinations, LLC
10.33
8.18
- United Home Entertainment Private Limited **
27.81
- Genx Entertainment Limited
36.93
57.16
- WEDCO International Hold.
8.21
- The Walt Disney Company (Hong Kong)
68.90
- The Walt Disney Company (Southeast Asia) Pte Limited
11.12
- The Walt Disney Co, UK
4.89
- PT. Walt Disney Indonesia
9.60
- The Walt Disney Company (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
6.57
- The Walt Disney Company (Philippines), Inc.
14.62
- The Walt Disney (Thailand) Co Ltd
7.64
- Walt Disney Co Japan Ltd
2.29
- Disney Entertainment (India) Limited
0.49
3.36
* Represents amount billed during the respective years.
** Transactions amount for Year ended March 31, 2018 and closing balances as on March 31, 2018 for Disney Broadcasting
(India) Limited includeds respective balances from United Home Entertainment Private Limited (Refer Note 33)
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Terms and conditions:
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions.
All outstanding balances are unsecured and are payable in cash.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017-18

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)
Note 35 - Fair Value Measurements
Financial Instruments by Category
As at March 31, 2018
FVPL
Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of
long-term debt and Interest accrued but not
due)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities
(i)

As at March 31, 2017
FVPL
Amortised Cost

0.01
-

136.30
1,656.94
693.34
1.78

0.05
-

124.33
1,736.07
778.47
1.76

0.01

3,135.80
5,624.16

0.05

440.93
3,081.56

-

-

-

308.87

-

4,812.50
2.30
4,814.80

-

3,519.41
8.67
3,836.95

Fair Value hierarchy and valuation technique used to determine fair value :

	This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three level prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows below the table.
Financial Assets measured at Fair Value - recurring fair Value
measurements at March 31, 2018
Financial Assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL
Quoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Preference Shares Investment
Total Financial Assets

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-

-

0.01
0.01

0.01
*
0.01

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at amortised cost for
which fair value disclosed at March 31, 2018
Financial Assets
Loans
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Other Financial Assets
Total Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of long-term debt and
Interest accrued but not due)
Trade Payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

-

-

136.30
1,656.94
693.34
1.78
3,135.80
5,624.16

136.30
1,656.94
693.34
1.78
3,135.80
5,624.16

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,812.50
2.30
4,814.80

4,812.50
2.30
4,814.80
143

UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts in ` million, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value - recurring fair Value
measurements at March 31, 2017

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

0.04
-

-

-

0.04

-

0.01

0.01

Financial Assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL
Quoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Equity Shares Investments
Unquoted Preference Shares Investment

-

-

*

*

0.04

-

0.01

0.05

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Loans

-

-

124.33

124.33

Trade receivables

-

-

1,736.07

1,736.07

Cash and cash equivalents

-

-

778.47

778.47

Bank balances other than cash
and cash equivalents

-

-

1.76

1.76

Total Financial Assets
Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at amortised cost for
which fair value disclosed at March 31, 2017
Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets

-

-

440.93

440.93

Total Financial Assets

-

-

3,081.56

3,081.56

Borrowings (Including current
maturities of long-term debt and
Interest accrued but not due)

-

-

308.87

308.87

Trade Payables

-

-

3,519.41

3,519.41

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities

-

-

8.67

8.67

Total Financial Liabilities

-

-

3,836.95

3,836.95

* Amount is below rounding off norms adopted by Company.
The fair value of financial instruments referred above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs
used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The categories used
are as follows :
- Level 1:
This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments which are
traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.
- Level 2:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. The Company does not
have any investment under this category.
- Level 3:
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The
Company has classified unlisted equity shares investments and unlisted preference shares investments, which are valued
using discounted cash flow analysis.
Valuation processes :
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO).
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(ii)

Fair Value of financials assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:
March 31, 2018
Carrying
Fair Value
Amount

March 31, 2017
Carrying Amount
Fair Value

Financial Assets
Loans
136.30
136.30
124.33
124.33
Trade receivables
1,656.94
1,656.94
1,736.07
1,736.07
Cash and cash equivalents
693.34
693.34
778.47
778.47
Bank balances other than cash and cash
1.78
1.78
1.76
1.76
equivalents
Other Financial Assets
3,135.80
3,135.80
440.93
440.93
Total Financial Assets
5,624.16
5,624.16
3,081.56
3,081.56
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Including current maturities of
308.87
308.87
long-term debt and Interest accrued but not
due)
Trade Payables
4,812.50
4,812.50
3,519.41
3,519.41
Other Financial Liabilities
2.30
2.30
8.67
8.67
Total Financial Liabilities
4,814.80
4,814.80
3,836.95
3,836.95
a)
The carrying amount of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents, other current financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are
considered to be the same as their value, due to their short-term nature.
b)
The fair values and carrying value of loans, other non-current financial assets and borrowings are materially the same.
36

Financial risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects
on the financial performance of the Company.
This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk.
Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement

Management

Credit risk

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Bank
balances other than cash and cash
equivalents, Trade receivables and
Other financial assets

Ageing analysis

Diversification of bank deposits
and credit limits

Liquidity risk

Borrowings and Other Liabilities

Borrowings
maturity and cash
flow forecasts

Availability of committed credit
lines and borrowing facilities

Market risk – foreign
currency risk

Recognised financial assets and
liabilities not denominated in
Rupees

Sensitivity analysis

There is no major time gap
between booking and payment/
receipts

Market risk – interest
rate risk

Borrowings - Short term

Sensitivity analysis

Periodical monitoring of
variable interest rates, using
benefit of guarantee given by
the ultimate parent company.

The Company’s risk management is carried out by treasury department under policies approved by the board of
directors. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity. There is no change in
objectives, policies and process for managing the risk and methods used to measure the risk as compared to previous
year.
(I)

Credit risk							

		Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables), including deposits with bank, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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		The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers
to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.
a)

Trade receivables

		
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, due to the Company’s customer
base being large. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default on a regular basis. Our historical
experience of collecting receivables, supported by the level of default, is that the credit risk is low.
		Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to
determine incurred and expected credit losses. The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on the
Company’s credit policy. Under the Company’s credit policy, each new customer is analyzed individually for credit
worthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company
assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost. For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instrument, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward looking information.
		

Trade receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
Particulars
Trade receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts)

As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,656.94
1,736.07

Following is the movement in allowance for doubtful debts:
Particulars
Loss allowance at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Loss allowance as at the end of the year
b)

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
41.12
22.37
98.62
18.75
139.74
41.12

Other financial assets

		
The Company is also exposed to credit risks arising on cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks.
The Company believes that its credit risk in respect to cash and cash equivalents and term deposits is insignificant
as funds are invested in term deposits at pre-determined interest rates for specified period of time. For cash and
cash equivalents only high rated banks are accepted.
		The Company periodically monitors the recoverability and credit risks of its other financials assets including
security deposits and other receivables. The Company evaluates 12 month expected credit losses for all the
financial assets for which credit risk has not increased. In case credit risk has increased significantly, the Company
considers life time expected credit losses for the purpose of impairment provisioning.
		

Following is the movement in allowance for doubtful loans:
Particulars
Loss allowance at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Loss allowance as at the end of the year
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(1.00)
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Following is the movement in allowance for doubtful other financial assets:
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
89.98
89.98
89.98
89.98

Loss allowance at the beginning of the year
Changes in allowance during the year
Loss allowance as at the end of the year
(II)
		

a)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below), by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
Financing arrangements

		The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities for working capital at the end of the
reporting period:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
7,450.00
7,541.37
7,450.00
7,541.37

Expiring within one year
Total
b)

Maturities of financial liabilities							

		The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their
contractual maturities which are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.:
		The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not material.
As at March 31, 2018
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

1 - 3 years

> 3 years

Total

Carrying
value

Borrowings (Current maturities of long-term
debt and Interest accrued but not due)
Trade payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total financial liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

4,812.50
2.30
4,814.80

-

-

4,812.50
2.30
4,814.80

4,812.50
2.30
4,814.80

As at March 31, 2017
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

< 1 Year

Borrowings (Current maturities of long-term
debt and Interest accrued but not due)
Trade payables
Other Financial Liabilities
Total financial liabilities
(III)

< 1 Year

1 - 3 years

> 3 years

Total

308.87

-

-

308.87

Carrying
value
308.87

3,519.41
8.67
3,836.95

-

-

3,519.41
8.67
3,836.95

3,519.41
8.67
3,836.95

Market risk - foreign currency risk

		
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed by settling payment/receipts within shorter period.
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a)

Foreign currency risk exposure

		The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in equivalent in
Indian Rupees is as follow:
USD
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Other Financials Assets
Exposure to foreign currency
risk (assets)
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Exposure to foreign currency
risk (liabilities)
Total Exposure to foreign
currency risk (Net)

b)

As at March 31, 2018
GBP
Others

USD

As at March 31, 2017
GBP
Others

140.99
1,883.97
2,024.96

14.41
14.41

74.46
20.02
94.48

61.68
2.77
64.45

130.74
130.74

10.20
10.20

2,625.60
2,625.60

1.09
1.09

28.12
28.12

2,140.34
2,140.34

2.94
2.94

6.00
6.00

(600.64)

13.32

66.36

(2,075.89)

127.80

4.20

Foreign currency sensitivity

		
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instruments.
Net impact on loss before tax
Net impact on other equity
Decrease/ (Increase)
Decrease/ (Increase)
As at
As at
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
USD sensitivity
INR/USD - Increase by 1% (March
31, 2017 - 1%)*
INR/USD - Decrease by 1% (March
31, 2017 - 1%)*
GBP sensitivity
INR/GBP - Increase by 1% (March
31, 2017 - 1%)*
INR/GBP - Decrease by 1% (March
31, 2017 - 1%)*
		
(IV)

(6.01)

(20.76)

(6.01)

(20.76)

6.01

20.76

6.01

20.76

0.13

1.28

0.13

1.28

(0.13)

(1.28)

(0.13)

(1.28)

* Holding all other variables constant
Market risk - interest rate risk

		The Company had borrowed funds at floating interest rates. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from both
long-term and short term borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk.
a)

Interest rate risk exposure

		The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Floating rate borrowings (Excluding Liability component of compound
308.63
financial instrument and interest accrued but not due)
Total borrowings
308.63
Particulars
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Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
Net impact on loss before tax
Net impact on other equity
Decrease/ (Increase)
Decrease/ (Increase)
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest rate increase by 50 basis points
(1.54)
(1.54)
(March 31, 2017 - 50 basis points)*
Interest rate decrease by 50 basis points
1.54
1.54
(March 31, 2017 - 50 basis points)*
* Holding all other variables constant
37

Capital management
Risk management
The Company determines the capital requirements based on its financial performance, operating and long term
investment plans. The funding requirements are met through operating cash flows generated. For the purpose of
Company’s Capital Risk Management, “Capital” includes issued equity share capital, securities premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to it’s shareholders.
The Company’s objective in managing its capital is to:
- safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise shareholder’s values and
- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s assessment of the appropriate balance of key elements
in order to meet its strategic and day-to day needs. The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to
risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Company maintains a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain shareholders
and creditors confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company takes appropriate
steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

38

Share based payments
Certain employees of the Company, have been granted long-term incentive plans namely stock options and restricted
stock units (RSUs) by the ultimate holding company (Grantor), The Walt Disney Company, USA.
Stock options are generally granted at exercise prices equal to or exceeding the market price at the date of grant and
become exercisable ratably over a four-year period from the grant date. The contractual terms for our outstanding stock
option grants are 10 years. RSUs generally vest ratably over four years.
The fair value of options is estimated based on the binomial valuation model. The binomial valuation model takes into
account variables such as volatility, dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate. The binomial valuation model also
considers the expected exercise multiple (the multiple of exercise price to grant price at which exercises are expected
to occur on average) and the termination rate (the probability of a vested option being canceled due to the termination
of the option holder) in computing the value of the option.						
The details pertaining to number of stock options/RSUs considered for fair value are disclosed below:

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Options granted during the year
Exercised during the year
Lapsed during the year
Options outstanding at the end of the year
Options vested and exercisable at the end of the year

March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Stock Option
RSUs
Stock Option
RSUs
24,933
19,753
67,893
39,013
17,134
9,996
15,507
11,712
13,302
6,305
58,467
30,972
3,392
28,765
20,052
24,933
19,753
9,426
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Expenses Arising from share based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in statement of profit or loss as part of
employee benefit expense were as follows:
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(46.80)
44.95

Particulars
Share based payment
39

Revenue from operations under IndAS 18
(I)

Distribution and Licensing of Movies

		
In relation to the distribution and licensing arrangement with the group company for Hollywood movies, the
Company has presented revenue after reducing related distribution expenses in line with IndAS 18 on ‘Revenue’.
Similarly, in relation to the distribution and licensing arrangement with subsidiary companies for overseas
distribution of the Company’s movies, revenue is presented considering the revenue earned by these subsidiary
companies from distribution of movies in the overseas market.
Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Amount Invoices/ accrued
7,215.70
7,735.14
Less: Distribution and Licensing expenses for Hollywood movies
(3,687.28)
(2,612.27)
Add: Distribution and Licensing expenses incurred for overseas distribution
9.12
73.38
of movies
Revenue from Distribution and Licensing of Movies as per Note 18
3,537.54
5,196.25
(II)
		

Royalty on Merchandise Licensing
In relation to Revenue on Merchandise Licencing, the Company has presented revenue after reducing related
licencing expenses in line with IndAS 18 on ‘Revenue’.

Amount Invoices/ accrued
Less: Distribution and Licensing expenses for Merchandise Licencing
Revenue from Distribution and Licensing of Movies as per Note 18

Year ended
Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
838.19
(737.61)
100.58
-

40	The preparation of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 is in progress and
accordingly, the company has not presented the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements for approval in the board
meeting dated November 12, 2018, as required under section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and the same will
be presented for approval in the next board meeting.
41	The previous year’s figures have been reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to conform to current year’s
classification.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements.
For MSKA & Associates (formerly known as MZSK & Associates)
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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CIN: U7200MH1990PLC056987
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Whole time Director
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Managing Director
DIN: 02321902
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Company Secretary
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Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

31-Mar-18 GBP INR 91.3438
31-Mar-18 GBP INR 91.3438
31-Mar-18 USD INR 65.1200
31-Mar-18 USD INR 65.1200
31-Mar-18 USD INR 65.1200
31-Mar-18
31-Mar-18
31-Mar-18

Ignition Entertainment Limited, UK

Ignition London Limited, UK

Ignition Entertainment Limited,
USA

UTV Games Limited, Mauritius

True Games Interactive, Inc., USA

Disney Entertainment (India)
Limited

Genx Entertainment Limited

Disney Broadcasting (India)
Limited

INR

INR

-1,904.77

-1,610.25

-1,859.25

-0.36

-5,059.52

-7,049.58

-406.13

Reserves
& Surplus

124.34

109.69

1,241.00

3.96

0.00

0.00

5.47

0.00

0.00

68.83

54.26

Turnover
**

-118.20

267.85

1,449.13

-0.25

-0.45

4.82

0.00

0.00

-3.85

-55.42

Profit
before
taxation
**

0.00

53.83

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Provision
for
taxation
**

-118.20

214.02

1,449.13

-0.25

-0.45

4.82

0.00

0.00

-3.85

-55.42

Profit
after
taxation
**

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Proposed
Dividend
**

57.43

57.43

57.43

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

% of
Shareholding

Place: Mumbai
Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/Sujit Vaidya
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03287161
Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Mahesh Samat
Managing Director
DIN: 02321902
Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17151

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - 1) Indiagames Limited stands merged with the Company pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement
sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“the Tribunal”) vide its order dated June 08, 2017 which has become effective from June 30, 2017 i.e. the date on which it has been
filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. 2) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, United Home Entertainment Private Limited, Step Down Subsidiary stands merged with Disney Broadcasting
(India) Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“the Tribunal”) vide its order dated June 08, 2017 which has
become effective from June 30, 2017 i.e. the date on which it has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra.

0.00 4,044.42

0.00

12,676.80

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

619.62

Investments

Names of the subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - NIL

2,339.14

511.37

4.65

1,122.89

0.62

1,868.91

0.00

0.02

122.81

782.08

Total
Liabilities
*

2.

7,719.31

1,979.41

12,915.38

0.21

0.00

9.79

0.09

14.28

744.15

756.91

Total
Assets

Amount in ` millions

1.

5,255.83

1,358.35

54.43 12,856.30

782.09

1,609.64

0.13

0.46

5,073.79

7,670.93

380.95

Share
Capital

** Converted at an average exchange rate - USD INR 64.5017 and GBP INR 86.2237

* Excluding Share Capital and Reserves & Surplus

31-Mar-18 GBP INR 91.3438

INR

31-Mar-18 USD INR 65.1200

Reporting
Currency &
Exchange Rate

IG Interactive Entertainment
Limited, UK

Reporting
Period ended

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

UTV Communications (USA) LLC

Name of Subsidiary

Form AOC-I
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
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Extent of holding
in %

Description
of how there
is significant
influence

Reason
why the
associate/
joint venture
is not
consolidated

Net worth
attributable to
shareholding
as per latest
audited Balance
Sheet

DIN: 03287161
Sd/Vishwas Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/Puneet Juneja
Company Secretary
Membership No. A17151

Whole Time Director

DIN: 02321902

Sujit Vaidya

Managing Director

Date: November 16, 2018

Sd/-

Mahesh Samat

Place: Mumbai

Sd/-

For UTV SOFTWARE COMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified				

Names of Associate companies/Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - NIL

NOT APPLICABLE

Amount of Investment in
Associates/ JV

Names of the Associate companies/Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations - NIL

No.

Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the
year end

2.

Latest audited
Balance Sheet
Date

1.

Name of Associates / JV

“Part B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures
Amount in millions

Considered in
consolidation

Not Considered in
consolidation

Profit/Loss for the year
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